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SECURITES AND ENCHANGE COMMISSION (
SEC FORM 20- 15
INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
Check the appropriate box;

Preliminary information Statement
X Definitive Information Stalement

Name of Registrant as specified in itz charter: PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION

Country of Incorporation; PHILIPPINES

SEC ldentification Number: 108476

BIR Tax Identification Mumber: 000-390-189-000
Address of Principal Office:

7™ Floor, The Columbia Tower

Drtigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City

1550

Telephore Number:  {632) 724-4441 to 51

Date, Ume and place of the meeting of security holders:

duly 18, 2013 (Thursday)

2:00 p.m.

Crowne Plaia Galleria Manila

Ortigas Avenue corner ADB Avenue, Quezon City

Approximate date on which the information Statement is first to be sent or given to secirity holders:

June 17, 2013

. In case of proxy solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor- NIA

Address and Telephone No.:

Segurities registered pursuant to Sections B and 12 of the Code or Sec. 4 & B of the RSA:

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stocks
Dutstanding or Amount of debt Outstanding

£ommon 398,639,411

Warrants -

Are any or all registrant’s securities fisted on the Stock Exchange?

Yos X o

Title of each Class Listed Shares Stock Exchange

Commaon Shares 399,325,661 Philippine Stock Exchange




PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
7" Floor, The Columbia Tower
Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City
Tel. Nos. 724-4441 to 51
Fax No. 705-52-09

Notice is hereby given that the annual stockholders meeting of PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
(the “Corporation”), will be held at the Crowne Plaza Galleria Manila, Ortigas Avenue corner ADB Avenue,
Quezon City, on Thursday, 18 July 2013 at 2:00 P.M. for the purpose of taking up the following:

1. Certification of Quorum and Call to Order
2. Approval of Minutes of the Annual Stockholders Meeting held on July 24, 2012
3. a. Chairman’s Message

b. President’s Report
4, Approval of 2012 Audited Financial Statements

5. Ratification of Actions Taken by the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Board
Committees and Management since the last annual stockholders meeting

6. Approval of Stock Dividend Declaration

7. Election of the Board of Directors for 2013
8. Appointment of External Auditor

9. Other Matters

10. Adjournment

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of June 04, 2013 are entitled to vote in
the said meeting.

For your convenience in registering your attendance, please have some available form of
identification (ID), such as company ID, government IDs, passport or driver’s license. Registration will start
at 1:00 p.m.

We are not soliciting your proxy. However, you may attend the meeting by submitting a duly-
accomplished proxy substantially in the form attached hereto which must be submitted to the Office of
the Corporate Secretary, 7™ Floor, The Columbia Tower, Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City on or before
July 09, 2013. The proxies shall be validated on July 11, 2013, from 2:00 to 4:00 P.M. at BDO South Tower,
Makati Ave., cor. H.V. Dela Costa St., Makati City.

EVELYN S. ENRI%:;S/

Corporate Secretary



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
INFORMATION STATEMENT

This Information Statement is being furnished to stockholders of record of Philippine Seven Corporation as of June
04, 2013 in connection with its annual stockholders’ meeting.
WE ARE NOT ASKING FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.
A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, Time and Place of Meeting of Shareholders

Date of Meeting : July 18, 2013
Time of Meeting : 2:00 P.M.
Place of Meeting : Crowne Plaza Galleria Manila

Ortigas Avenue corner ADB Avenue, Quezon City

Complete Mailing Addres  : Philippine Seven Corporation
7 Floor, The Columbia Tower
Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City 1550

This Information Statement will be first sent or given to security holders on June 17, 2013.
Item 2. Dissenter’s Right of Approval

The stockholders of the Company may exercise their right of appraisal against any proposed corporate action which
qualifies as an instance under Section 81 of the Corporation Code which gives rise to the exercise of such appraisal right
pursuant to and in the manner provided in Section 82 of the Corporation Code.

Any stockholder of a corporation shall have the right to dissent and demand payment of the fair value of his shares in
the following instances:

1. Incase any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or restricting the rights of any
stockholders or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any respect superior to those of outstanding
shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the terms of corporate existence.

2. In case of sale, lease, exchange, transfer, mortgage, pledge or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
corporate property and assets as provided in this Code; and

3. Incase of a merger or consolidation.
An appraisal right is also available to dissenting shareholders in case the corporation decides to invest its funds in
another corporation or business as provided for in Section 42 of the Corporation Code.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in Matters to be Acted Upon

None of the members of the Board of Directors or senior management has any substantial interest in the matters to
be acted upon by the shareholders in the stockholders meeting, except for the election of directors. The following are the
incumbent directors for the year 2012 - 2013 (prior to the 18 July 2013 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting):

1. Vicente T. Paterno 7. Mao-Chia Chung

2. Jose Victor P. Paterno 8. Lien-Tang Hsieh

3. Jorge L. Araneta 9. Wen-Chi Wu

4. Diana Pardo-Aguilar 10. Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr.*
5. Nan-Bey Lai 11. Michael B. Zalamea*

6. Jui-Tang Chen

*

Independent Director

The Board of Directors and senior management, as a group, own 34,392,679 common shares which constitute
approximately 8.63% of the issued and outstanding common stock. The Board of Directors of the Company is not aware of any
party who has indicated an intention to oppose the motions set forth in the Agenda.

Cumulative voting is allowed for the election of the members of the Board of Directors. Each stockholder may vote
the number of shares of stock outstanding in his own name as of the record date of the meeting for as many persons as there
are directors to be elected or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall equal, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many
candidates as he shall see fit; provided that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares
owned by him as shown in the books of the corporation multiplied by the whole number of directors to be elected and
provided, however, that no delinquent stock shall be voted.



B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION
Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

As of April 30, 2013, there were 398,639,411 shares of the common stock of Philippine Seven Corporation
outstanding and entitled to vote for election of directors and matters scheduled for approval at the Annual Meeting. Only
holders of the company’s stock as of the close of business on record date of June 04, 2013 acting in person or by proxy on
the day of the meeting are entitled to notice and to vote at the Annual Meeting to be held on July 18, 2013.

The following is the breakdown of the number of shares owned by local and foreign shareholders as of April 30, 2013
as provided by the Stock Transfer Agent BDO Unibank, Inc.:

No. of shares %
Foreign Owned Shares 301,449,524 75.6196%
Local Owned Shares 97,189,887 24.3804%
Outstanding Shares 398,639,411 100.00%

For the purpose of electing the directors, shareholders entitled to vote as of above record date shall vote
cumulatively in accordance with Section 24 of the Corporation Code to elect the 11 directors of the company. Each share
entitled to vote shall be entitled to 11 votes.

For the purpose of approving the other matters set forth in the Agenda of the Annual Meeting, the shareholders
entitled to vote as of above record date shall be entitled to one (1) vote for each share entitled to vote.

a) As of April 30, 2013, the following are the record and beneficial owners of more than 5% of registrant’s voting

securities:
Re:zt'::::'\z;::,:he Amount and Nature of Percent of
Title of Name and Address of Record/Beneficial Citizenship . | Record/Beneficial Outstanding Common
representative with .
Class Owner the issuer and said Ownership Stock as of
April 30, 2013
owner

President Chain Store (Labuan) Holding,
Common Ltd." o

7(E), Main Tower, Financial Park, Labuan, Malaysian Stockholder 205,544,409 (R) >1.56%

Malaysia

Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited - o
Common 7A Lorong Telok Singapore, 049019 Singaporean Stockholder 41,756,833 10.47%

N 3

Common X:j:;‘?gf;smo 1,220,237 (R) 0.31%

16 Hidalgo Place, Hidalgo Village Filipino Chairman 32,358,795 (B) 8.12%

€ » Midalgo Villag P Jstockholder 33,579,032 8.42%
Rockwell, Makati City
Asian Holdings Corporation 2
th ey o

4 Floor,.Um Qil Bldg., Commerce Ave. . 26,784,047 (R) 6.72%
Common cor. Acacia St., Madrigal Business Park, Filipino Stockholder

Ayala Alabang, Muntinlupa City

* Mr. Chang-Sheng Lin of President Chain Store (Labuan) Holding, Ltd. has the voting power in behalf of the Corporation

% Mss. Elizabeth Orbeta or Ms. Diana Pardo-Aguilar has the voting power in behalf of Asian Holdings Corp.

3 Mr. Vicente T. Paterno has the power of attorney to vote the 32,358,795 shares of his children: Ma. Cristina Paterno-7,189,210; Jose Victor Paterno- 10,420,327;
Paz Pilar P. Benares -4,926,931 ; Ma. Elena P. Locsin-6.054,377; Ma. Theresa P. Dickinson-3,767,950

“Ms. Rebecca Lewis of Arisaig Asia Consumer Fund Limited has the voting power in behalf of the Corporation

b)  Security Ownership of Management as of April 30, 2013

Title of Class Name of Beneficial Amou'n't & Nature I?f Citizenship Percent of Class
Owner Beneficial Ownership
1,220,237 (R) 0.31%
Common Vicente T. Paterno 32,358,795 (B) Filipino 8.12%
33,579,032 8.42%
Common Jose Victor P. Paterno 10,420,3271 Filipino 2.61%
Common Jorge L. Araneta 13 Filipino 0.00%
Common Diana Pardo-Aguilar 13 Filipino 0.00%
13
Common Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr. 806,094° Filipino 0.20%
806,095
Common Michael B. Zalamea 13 Filipino 0.00%
Common Jui-Tang Chen 13 R.O.C. 0.00%
Common Mao-Chia Chung 13 R.O.C. 0.00%
Common Nan-Bey Lai 13 R.O.C. 0.00%
Common Wen-Chi Wu 1’ R.0.C. 0.00%
Common Lien-Tang Hsieh 13 R.O.C. 0.00%
Common Evelyn Sadsad-Enriquez 3,107’ Filipino 0.0008%
Common Liwayway T. Fernandez 4,438* Filipino 0.0011%

! Shares directly owned by Vicente T. Paterno is 1,220,237 which is 0.31%, and he has power of attorney for 32,358,795 shares held by his 5 children including above
shares of Jose Victor Paterno — 10,420,327 (2.61%)

2 Directly owned shares

® Qualifying shares




c) Power of Attorney to vote shares of 5% or more

Mr. Vicente T. Paterno, Chairman of the Board, has the power of attorney for 32,358,795 shares or 8.12%
owned/registered in the name of his children: Jose Victor P. Paterno — 10,420,327 shares; Ma. Theresa P. Dickinson —
3,767,950 shares; Paz Pilar P. Benares — 4,926,931 shares; Ma. Cristina P. Paterno — 7,189,210 shares and Ma. Elena
P. Locsin — 6,054,377 shares.

d) Changes in Control

There has been no arrangement which may result in a change in control of the Company. There has been no
change in control of the Company since Y2000.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant
a) Directors and Corporate Officers
The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall management and direction of the Corporation. The Board meets

at least twice every year or as needed to review and monitor the Corporation’s financial position and operation.

The directors of the Company are elected at the Annual Stockholders Meeting to hold office for one (1) year and until
the next succeeding annual meeting or until their respective successors have been elected and qualified. The officers are
likewise elected annually by the Board of Directors to serve for one (1) year and until their respective successor have been
elected and qualified. The members of the Board of Directors and corporate officers of the Company are the following:

Term of No. of
NAME AGE Present Year(s) In Business Experience
Position Service
CHIN-YEN KAO 83 11 yrs. 11 yrs. * Chairman - Uni-President Enterprise Corp.; President Chain Store Corporationl;
Honorary Chairman of the Board President Fair Development Corp.; President International Development Corp.;
Ton Yi Industrial Corp.; TTET Union Corp.
Citizenship: R.O.C. ¢ Director-President Chain Store (Labuan) Holdings Ltd.; PCSC (China) Drugstore
Limited; PCSC; President Chain Store (BVI) Holdings Ltd.; Kai Yu (BVI) Investment
Co., Ltd.; Global Strategic Investment, Inc.; President Energy Development
(Cayman Islands) Ltd.; Cayman President Holdings Ltd.; Kao Chyuan Investment
Co.Ltd.; Uni-President China Holdings Ltd.; Tainan Spinning Co., Ltd.; Hantech
Venture Capital Corp.
* Honorary PhD, Lincoln University, USA; Honorary PhD, Sun Yat-sen University;
Honorary PhD, National Cheng Kung University
VICENTE T. PATERNO 87 30 yrs. 30 yrs. e Chairman - Store Sites Holding Inc.; PhilSeven Foundation Inc.
Chairman of the Board e Former Director - State Land Investment Inc., First Philippine Holdings
and Director Corporation’; Benpres Holdings Corporation
¢ Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering, University of the Philippines;
Citizenship: Filipino * Master of Business Administration (with Distinction), Harvard University
YEN-SEN YANG* 53 7yrs. &4 7yrs. &4 * Senior Vice-President - President Chain Store Corp. 1
Vice- Chairman and Director mos. mos. * Director — President Being Corp.; 21 Century Enterprise Co., Ltd.; Duskin Serve
Taiwan Co.; Books.com. Co., Ltd.; President Chain Store Tokyo Marketing
Citizenship: R.0.C Corporation; Philippine Seven Corp.”; Pet Plus Co., Ltd. Presiclerc Limited;
President Technology Corp.; Mech-President Corp., PCSC (SICHUAN)
*Resigned as of November 13, Hypermarket Limited; PCSC (CHENGDU) Hypermarket Limited; President
2012 Information Corp.; Presicarre Corp.
* MBA, Baruch College, New York City University
NAN-BEY LAI* 61 2yrsand 9 2yrsand9 | e President — Books.com Co., Ltd.
Vice-Chairman and Director mos. mos. «  Senior Vice President- President Chain Store Corporation®
e Chairman- Duskin Serve Taiwan Co.; Rakuten Taiwan Co., Ltd.; Bank Pro E-Service
Technology Co., Ltd; PCSC (Vietnam) Supermarket Ltd.
Citizenship: R.0.C. *  Vice Chairman- Philippine Seven Corp.
e Director- Books.com Co., Ltd.; President Chain Store Corporationl;President
*Elected as Vice-Chairman as of Drugstore Business Corp.; Mech-President Corp.;President Transnet Corp.;
November 13, 2012 President Collect Services Co., Ltd.;Uni-President Department Store Corp.; Pet
Plus Co., Ltd.;Muji (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.; President Organics, Co.; President SATO
Co., Ltd.; Q-ware Systems & Services Corp.; Ren-Hui Investment Corp.; SATO
(Shanghai) Catering Mathematics Co., Ltd.; Tong-Ho Development Corp.; Q-ware
Communications Co., Ltd.
e BA, Dept of Business Administration, Tunghai University




JOSE VICTOR P. PATERNO 45 8yrs. 15 yrs. President & CEO, Philippine Seven Corporationl
President and Director Chairman & President — Convenience Distribution, Inc;
Vice-Chairman- PhilSeven Foundation, Inc.
Citizenship: Filipino President — First MFI Network, Inc.
Chairman — Supply Chain Networks, Inc.
Director — Electronic Commerce Payment (EC Pay) Network, Inc.; The Straits Wine
Company, Inc.
Former Vice-President for Operations— Philippine Seven Corporation1
Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering (magna cum laude), Lehigh
Univerisity, Bethlehem Pennsylvania, U.S.A.
JORGE L. ARANETA 77 24 yrs. 24 yrs. Chairman & CEO - Araneta Center Inc.; Philippine Pizza Inc.; Progressive
Director Development Corporation
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, University of the Philippines
Citizenship: Filipino
DIANA PARDO-AGUILAR 49 14 yrs. 14 yrs. Commissioner- Social Security Commission; Social Security System
Director 8 mos. 8 mos. Director — Security Bank Corporation’; Asian Holdings Corporation; WenPhil
Corporation; Electronic Commerce Payments Network Inc.; Artemis Electronic
Citizenship: Filipino Systems, Inc.; DAJ Property Holdings Corp.; Gate Distribution Enterprises, Inc.;
ERA Philippines, Inc.
Director & Treasurer - Land & Housing Dev’t. Corporation/ Cable Entertainment
Corp.;
Member — Executive Finance Committee, De La Salle Santiago Zobel School
Treasurer - Franchise One Corporation; Foundation for International Research
Skills & Training, Inc.; Modesto Holdings Philippines, Inc.
Bachelor of Science in Computer Science (Dean’s List) De La Salle University;
Master in Business Administration Majoring in International Business and
Finance (cum laude), Pepperdine Unviersity, Malibu, U.S.A.
ANTONIO JOSE U. PERIQUET, JR. 52 2yrs.and 8 2yrand8 Chairman — Pacific Main Holdings, Inc.; Campden Hill Group, Inc.; Regis
Independent Director mos. mos. Financial Advisers
Director - The Straits Wine Company, Inc.
Citizenship: Filipino Independent Director- Ayala Corporation®; BPI Capital; DMCI Holdings, Inc.”;
Bank of the Philippine Islands’; BPI Family Bank; ABS-CBN Broadcasting
Corporation1
Trustee - Lyceum University of the Philippines
Member — Deans Global Advisory Council, Darden School of Business, University
of Virginia
AB Economics, Ateneo De Manila Unversity;
MSc Economics, Oxford University;
MBA, University of Virginia
MICHAEL B. ZALAMEA 48 8yrs.&5 8yrs. &5 Director — Philippine Coastal Storage & Pipeline Corp.; Clark Pipeline & Depot
Independent Director mos. mos. Company Inc.; Wespak Holdings, Inc.
Former Portfolio Manager — Global Fund, American International Group, Inc.
Citizenship: Filipino Director — The Straits Wine Company, Inc.
Trustee — The Beacon Academy
Bachelor of Science in Finance, Fordham University U.S.A;
MBA, University of Virginia
CHUNG-JEN HSU* 65 11 yrs. 11 yrs. President- President Chain Store Corporationl (Retired in 2012); Ren- Hei

Director
Citizenship: R.O.C.

*Resigned as of November 13,
2012

Investment Corp.

Chairman- President Drugstore Business Corp. Capital Inventory Services Corp.
Wisdom Distribution Service Corp. President YiLan Art and Culture Corp.
President Information Corp. Bank Pro E-Service Technology Co., Ltd. Duskin
Serve Taiwan Co. Mister Donut Taiwan Corp. Muji Taiwan Co., Ltd. Retail
Support International Corp. President FN Business Corp. Afternoon Tea Taiwan
Co., Ltd.; Pet Plus Co., Ltd. 21 Century Enterprise Co., Ltd. Ren-Hei Investment
Corp.; Mech-President Corp.; President Transnet Corp. President Collect Services
Co. Ltd.; President Logistics Internatinal Corp.;Chieh Shuen Logistics
International Corp.; President Jing Corp.; PRESIDENT SATO CO., LTD.; Shenzhen
Cosmed-Livson PharmacyChain Store Co., Ltd.

Vice Chairman- Uni-President Department Store Corp. Uni-President
Development Corp.; Tong-Jeng Development Corp.;

Director- Shanghai President Logistics Co., Ltd.; Uni-President Cold-Chain Corp.
Uni-President Oven Bakery Corp. President Coffee Corp. President
Pharmaceutical Corp. Tong-Ho Development Corp.; Philippine Seven Corp.*
Presiclerc LimitedShanghai President Starbucks Coffee Corp. President
International Development Corp.Shan Dong President Yinzuo Commercial
Limited PK Venture Capital Corp. Wuhan Uni-Presidemt Oven Fresh Bakery Co.,
Ltd. President Chain Store (Shanghai) Ltd. Cold Stone Creamery Taiwan Ltd.PCSC
(SICHUAN) Hypermarket Limited PCSC (CHENGDU) Hypermarket Limited
Shanghai Cold Stone Ice Cream CorporationPCSC Afternoon Tea Shanghai
Ltd.President Cosmed Chain Store (Shen Zhen) Co.,Ltd.; PCSC Afternoon Tea
Cayman Ltd.President Coffee (Cayman)Holdings Ltd. Duskin China(BVI)Holding
Limited.President Chain Store(Hong Kong) Holdings Limited; Shanghai SATO
Restaurant System Co., Ltd.; PRESIDENT Royal Host (SHANGHAI) LTD.; President
Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited; President (Shanghai) Health
Products Trading Co., LTD

MBA, University of Waseda




CHIEN-NAN HSIEH*
Director

Citizenship: R.O0.C.

*Resigned as of November 13,
2012

58

11 yrs.

11 yrs.

Senior Vice-President- President Chain Store Corporationl(Retired in 2012);
Chairman- Q-ware Communications Co., Ltd.; Q-ware Systems & Services Corp.;
Rakuten Taiwan Co., Ltd.

Director - Ren-Hui Investment Corp.; Capital Inventory Services Corp.; Wisdom
Distribution Service Corp.; Uni-President Cold-Chain Corp.; President Information
Corp.; Bank Pro E-Service Technology Co., Ltd.; Books.com. Co., Ltd.; Rakuten
Taiwan Co., Ltd.; President Musashino Corp.; Retail Support International Corp.;
Q-ware Systems & Services Corp.; Retail Support Taiwan Corp.; President
Logistics International Corp.; Chieh-Shuen Logistics International Corp.;
Philippine Seven Corp.l; President Chain Store (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited;
Shenzhen Cosmed-Livzon Pharmacy Chain Store Co., Ltd.; President Being Corp.;
President Chain Store (Shanghai) Ltd.; President- Books.com. Co., Ltd.

Bachelor degree of Business Administration

WEN-CHI WU
Director

Citizenship: R.O0.C.

43

4 yrs. and
6 mos.

4 yrs. and
6 mos.

Chief Financial Officer — President Chain Store Corporation

Director — Philippine Seven Corp.l; PCSC Afternoon Tea Cayman Ltd. President
Investment Trust Corp.;

Supervisor — Muji (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.; Books.com. Co., Ltd.; Rakuten Taiwan Co.,
Ltd.; Mister Donut Taiwan Corp.; President Coffee Corp.; Q-ware Systems &
Services Corp.; President Information Corp.; Integrated Marketing
Communications Co.; Ren Hui Investment Corp.; President Chain Store
(Shanghai) Ltd.; PCSC Afternoon Tea Shanghai Ltd.; Shanghai President
Starbucks Coffee Corp.; President (Shanghai) Health Product Trading Company
Ltd.; President Drugstore Business Corp.; Mech-President Corp.; President
Pharmaceutical Corp.; President Transnet Corp.; President Collect Services Co.,
Ltd.; Uni-President Department Store Corp.; President Coffee Corp.; Pet Plus
Co., Ltd.

School of Accountancy in University of Missouri in Columbia

JUI-TANG CHEN*
Director

Citizenship: R.0.C.

*Elected as of November 13,
2012

55

2 mos.

2mos.

President — President Chain Corporation®; Ren-Hui Investments Corp.

Chairman — President Drugstore Business Corp.; President Yilan Art and Culture
Corp.; President Transnet Corp.; President Collect Services Co.Ltd.; Muji (Taiwan)
Co., Ltd; Retail Support International Corp.; President Musashino Corp.; Ren-Hui
Investment Corp.

Director — Philippine Seven Corp.”; President Chain Store Corporation®; President
Chain Store (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited; President Coffee (Cayman) Holdings
Ltd.; Uni-President Department Store Corp.; President Being Corp.; 21 Century
Enterprise Co. Ltd.; President Coffee Corp.; Wisdom Distribution Service Corp.;
Uni-President Cold-Chain Corp.; President International Development Corp.;
President Chain Store (Shanghai) Ltd.; Shan Dong President Yinzuo Commercial
Limited; Shanghai President Starbucks Coffee Corp.; Nanlien International Corp.
BA, Dept of Economics, National Taiwan University

MAO-CHIA CHUNG*
Director

Citizenship: R.O0.C.

*Elected as of November 13,
2012

54

2 mos.

2 mos.

Senior Vice President — President Chain Store Corporation1

Chairman — Capital Inventory Services Corp.; President Information Corp.;
President Chain Store Corporationl,' Insurance Brokers Co., Ltd.; President Chain
Store Good Neighbor Foundation

Director — Philippine Seven Corp.l; President Drugstore Business Corp.; President
Being Corp.; President Pharmaceutical Corp.; Books.com Co., Ltd.; Q-ware
Systems & Services Corp.; Bank Pro E-Service Technology Co., Ltd.; Integrated
Marketing Communications Co.; Presicarre Corp.; PK Venture Capital Corp.;
President Chain Store (Shaghai) Ltd.; President (Shanghai) Health Product
Training Company Ltd.; Presiclrec Limited; President Pharmaceutical (Hong
Kong) Holdings Limited.

Department of International Trade, Feng Chia University

LIEN-TANG HSIEH*
Director

Citizenship: R.0.C.

*Elected as of November 13,
2012

52

2 mos.

2 mos.

Vice President — President Chain Store Corporation1

Director — Philippine Seven Corp.l; Duskin Serve Taiwan Co.; Uni-President Cold-
Chain Corp.; President Baseball Team Corp.

Supervisor — Capital Inventory Services Corp.

Department of Business Administration, Chinese Culture University

PING-HUNG CHEN
Treasurer & CFO

Citizenship: R.0.C.

38

11 mos.

11 mos.

Treasurer & CFO- Philippine Seven Corporation1

Head of Investment Management — President Chain Store Corporationl
Head of Investor Relations — President Chain Store Corporationl
Financial Planning Specialist — President Chain Store Corporationl
Degree in Economics TungHai University;

MBA, National Kaoshiung First University of Science and Technology

EVELYN SADSAD-ENRIQUEZ
Corporate Secretary

Citizenship: Filipino

49

9yrs. &5

23 yrs.

Legal and Corporate Services Division Mgr. - Philippine Seven Corporation
Compliance Officer- Philippine Seven Corporationl

Corporate Secretary - Convenience Distribution Inc.; Store Sites Holding, Inc.;
Ferguson Park Tower Condominium Corporation, PhilSeven Foundation, Inc.,
Sterling Fluid Systems Enterprises, Inc.

President — Columbia Owners’ Association Inc.

BSC Economics, University of Santo Tomas

Bachelor of Laws (cum laude), University of Santo Tomas Faculty of Civil Law

i
Publicly Listed Companies (PLC)




b)

The Executive Officers

As of December 31, 2012, the Executive Officers and Management of the Corporation are the following:

Executive Officers Name

Honorary Chairman of the Board Chin-Yen Kao
Chairman of the Board Vicente T. Paterno
Vice-Chairman of the Board Nan-Bey Lai
President & CEO Jose Victor P. Paterno
Treasurer & CFO Ping-Hung Chen
Operations Director and Concurrent Marketing Director Ying-Jung Lee

Corporate Secretary, Compliance Officer
Legal & Corporate Services Division Manager

Atty. Evelyn S. Enriquez

Finance & Accounting Services Division Manager Lawrence M. De Leon
Corporate Planning Manager Chao-Shun Tseng
Operations Division Manager Liwayway T. Fernandez
Business Development Division Manager Francis S. Medina
General Merchandise Division Manager Jose Ang, Jr.
Strategic Merchandise Division Manager Armi A. Cagasan
Procurement Division Manager Eduardo P. Bataclan
Human Resources and Administration Division Manager Violeta B. Apolinario
Management Information Division Manager Jason Jan G. Ngo
Internal Audit Division Manager Maria Celina D. De Guzman
¢) Identifying Significant Employees

d)

e)

1

ag)

Other than aforementioned Directors and Executive Officers identified in the item on Directors and Executive
Officers in this Annual Report, there are no other employees of the Company who may have a significant
influence in the Company’s major and/or strategic planning and decision-making.

Family Relationships

i. Mr. Jose Victor P. Paterno, President & CEO of PSC and concurrent Chairman and President of Convenience
Distribution Inc. (CDI), a wholly owned subsidiary of PSC, is the son of PSC Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Vicente T. Paterno

ii. Ms. Diana Pardo-Aguilar, director of PSC, is related to PSC Chairman, Mr. Vicente T. Paterno, by affinity
within the 3rd degree.

iii. Mr. Raymund Aguilar, Director of Gate Distribution Enterprises, Inc. and EC Payment Network Inc., a
supplier of the Company, is the spouse of Ms. Diana Pardo-Aguilar

Independent Directors

The independent directors, Mr. Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr. and Mr. Michael B. Zalamea are not officers or
substantial shareholders of Philippine Seven Corporation nor are they the directors or officers of its related
companies.

Litigation

To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the above-named directors of the Company, the present
members of its Board of Directors and its Corporate Officers are not, for the past 5 years and up to date of filing
this Information Statement, involved or have been involved in any material legal proceeding affecting/involving
themselves or their property before any court of law or administrative body in the Philippines or elsewhere.
Likewise, to the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the said persons have not been convicted by
any final judgment of any offense punishable by the laws of the Republic of the Philippines or the laws of any
nation/country.

Pending Legal Proceedings

The Company is a party to certain litigations involving minor issues, from time to time, before the Department of
Trade and Industry, employees suing for illegal dismissal, back wages and damage claims, claims arising from
store operations and as co-respondents with manufacturers on complaints with BFAD, actions on leases for
specific performance and other civil claims. The Company also filed criminal cases against employees and other
persons arising from theft, estafa and robbery; civil claims for collection of sum of money, specific performance
and damages. All such cases are in the normal course of business and are not deemed or considered as material
legal proceeding as stated in Part |, Paragraph (C) of “Annex C” of SEC checklist 17-A.



h) Qualification of Directors

i)

To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the above-named directors have all the qualifications
and none of the disqualifications as provided in the Company’s Manual on Corporate Governance, Code of By-
laws and the revised Securities Regulation Code.

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company (or “PSC”) executed a licensing agreement with Seven Eleven, Inc. (SEl), of Texas, USA granting the
exclusive right to use the 7-Eleven System in the Philippines and the Company pays, among others, royalty fee to
SEI. SEl is also a stockholder in PSC and holds 0.39% of PSC’s outstanding stocks.

PSC has transactions with PhilSeven Foundation, Inc. (PFI), a foundation with common key management of the
Company. PSC has a MOU with PFI whereby the latter supports the CSR program of PSC in the communities
where its 7-Eleven stores are located. The MOU also provides the pledge of PSC to donate % of 1% of its net
income before tax to support PFI’s programs.

The Company has warehousing and distribution management contract with Convenience Distribution Inc. (CDI),
its wholly-owned subsidiary. The Chairman of the Board and President of CDI, Mr. Jose Victor Paterno, is the son
of Mr. Vicente Paterno, the Chairman of the Board of PSC.

Store Sites Holdings, Inc. is a landholding company affililiated with PSC and it leases on long term basis certain
parcels of land to PSC for its operation of 7-Eleven Stores.

The Company, from time to time, makes purchases of equipment from President Chain Store Corporation (and
its subsidiaries/affiliates), which is the parent company of President Chain Store (Labuan) Holding Ltd., holding
51.56% of PSC’s outstanding shares. Certain products are also purchased from Uni- President Corporation,
which is the parent company of President Chain Store Corporation.

The Company have lease and/or sublease agreements with Wenphil Corporation and Progressive Development
Corporation for commercial spaces in excess of the requirements of the Company for its 7-Eleven stores, and
supply arrangement for certain products/services carried by the stores with Gate Distribution Enterprises Inc.
(GATE) and Electronic Commerce Payments Network Inc. (ECPAY). Ms. Diana Pardo-Aguilar, director of the
company, is a Director of Wenphil Corporation (owner of Wendy’s Philippine franchise) and GATE, Director and
CFO of ECPAY. She is also the wife of Mr. Raymund Aguilar, a Director of GATE and President of ECPAY which is
the supplier of physical and electronic phone cards (e-pins) of the company and the system provider for e-pins
and bills payment. Mr. Jorge L. Araneta, also a director of the Company, is the Chairman and President of
Progressive Development Corporation (owner of Pizza Hut Philippine franchise).

In addition to the preceding paragraphs, the related party transactions are described in detail pursuant to the
disclosure requirements prescribed by the Commission. Related party relationships exist when one party has
the ability to control, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.

The following related party transactions are classified as normal in the ordinary course of business. The
commercial terms covering the said transactions are done on an arms length basis and is priced in such a
manner similar to what independent parties would normally agreed with. The discussion on this item can be
correlated with Note 25, Related Party Transactions, of the Notes to the 2012 Audited Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company.

Transactions with related parties consist of:

a) The Company executed a licensing agreement with Seven Eleven, Inc. (SEl), a stockholder organized in
Texas, U.S.A. This grants the Company the exclusive right to use the 7-Eleven System in the Philippines.
In accordance with the agreement, the Company pays, among others, royalty fee to SEl based on a
certain percentage of monthly gross sales, net of gross receipts tax.

Royalty fees recorded by the Company amounted to P133,085,007 and P106,490,524 in 2012 and
2011, respectively. Royalty fees are paid on a monthly basis.

Royalty payable included under “Other current liabilities” account in the parent company balance
sheets amounted to P12,579,753 and P10,353,333 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

b) Distribution and warehouse agreement with a wholly owned subsidiary, Convenience Distribution, Inc.
(CDI). Distribution fees are calculated at various rates based on the type of goods delivered.
Distribution and warehousing charges amounted to P344,367,358 in 2012 and P274,589,321 in 2011.

Further, price tagging and backhauling services are rendered by CDI. Price tagging charges amounted

to P11,170,063 in 2012 and P7,934,294 in 2011. Backhauling charges amounted to P18,378,714 in
2012 and P17,658,833 in 2011.
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c) Lease of 7 parcels of land from a subsidiary, Store Sites Holding, Inc. (SSHI), by the Company for 10
years. The lease agreement started on November 15, 2000, automatically renewable for another 10
years or until 2020, unless terminated by either party, for use as store spaces by the Company. The
rental rate shall be subject to review annually, provided that if there is no new or adjusted rental rate
agreed upon, the rental rate for the immediately preceding year shall be the basis for the current
year’s rental payments. Related rent expense amounted to P1,490,588 in 2012 and 2011.

In addition, lease of its office space to SSHI for one year until December 31, 2011. The lease was
renewed for another year until December 31, 2012. Rental income amounted to P480,000 in 2012 and
2011.

d) The Company has transactions with Philseven Foundation, Inc. (PFI), a foundation with common key
management of the Company, consisting of noninterest-bearing advances pertaining primarily to
salaries, taxes and other operating expenses initially paid by the Company for PFI.

e) The Company and CDI participate in a group defined benefit retirement plan. Net defined benefit cost
is actuarially determined in accordance with PAS 19, while contributions to the plan is based on the
number of employees that each of the entity has.

j)  Election of Directors

The directors of the Company are elected at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to hold office for one (1) year and
until their respective successors have been elected and qualified.

The nominees to the Board of Directors were submitted to and pre-screened by the Nomination and Governance
Committee of the Corporation:

1. Vicente T. Paterno 7. Mao-Chia Chung

2. Jose Victor P. Paterno 8. Lien-Tang Hsieh

3. Jorge L. Araneta 9. Wen-Chi Wu

4. Diana Pardo-Aguilar 10. Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr.
5. Nan-Bey Lai 11. Michael B. Zalamea

6. Jui-Tang Chen

The composition of the Nomination and Governance Committee are as follows:

Chairman: Vicente T. Paterno - Chaman of the Board and Director
Members: Michael B. Zalamea - Independent Director

Diana Pardo-Aguilar - Director
Non-voting Member: Evelyn S. Enriquez - Corporate Secretary

k) Independent Directors

As of the date of this report, the nominees for independent directors are Messrs. Michael B. Zalamea and
Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr. Their nominations were submitted by Mr. Aquilino D. Soriano, Jr. and Ms. Paz Pilar P.
Benares, respectively, stockholders of the Corporation, and pre-screened by the Nomination & Governance
Committee of the Corporation in compliance with SEC Circular No. 16 on the Guidelines on Nomination and
Election of Independent Directors. They are neither officers nor substantial shareholders of Philippine Seven
Corporation, nor are they directors or officers of its related companies. Their shareholdings in the Corporation
are less than 2% of the Corporation’s outstanding capital stock pursuant to Section 38 of the SRC. Both persons
who respectively nominated the independent directors are not related to said nominees. A brief description of
the business experiences of Mr. Michael B. Zalamea and Mr. Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr. is included in Item 5 (a)
of this report.

Nomination Procedure:

1. Astockholder may recommend the nomination of a director to the Nomination & Governnace Committee;

2.  The nominating stockholder shall submit his proposed nomination in writing to the Nomination &
Governance Committee, together with the acceptance and conformity of the would-be nominee.

3. The Nomination & Governance Committee shall screen the nominations of directors prior to the
stockholders’ meeting and come up with the Final List of Candidates.

4.  Only nominees whose names appear in the Final List of Candidates shall be eligible for election as
independent director.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors & Executive Officers

For the calendar years December 31, 2012 and 2011, the total salaries, allowances and bonuses paid to the directors
and executive officers are as follows:
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(a) (b) (c) (d) (e)

Name/Position Year Salaries Bonus Others

Chairman and Top 4

Vicente T. Paterno

Chairman of the Board

Jose Victor P. Paterno

President & CEO

Jose Ang, Jr.

General Merchandise Division
Manager

Francis Medina

Business Development Division
Manager

Liwayway Fernandez

Operations Division Manager

2013 6,275,974.68 7,086,112.03
2012 6,621,039.08 6,379,554.44
Total 2011 4,940,936.40 5,133,368.49 N/A
2010 5,713,173.16 6,486,091.13
2009 5,426,112.36 6,369,768.51
2013 7,553,463.04 5,672,367.59
. _ 2012 7,720,485.56 7,690,127.17
élrloojgﬂn?;f:]zrj and Directors as a 2011 7,762,145.04 6,319,126.01 N/A
2010 5,980,927.24 5,713,034.49
2009 5,497,840.32 5,492,966.49

The Company has certain standard arrangements with respect to compensation and profit sharing. Per diems of £
7,500.00 (as may be fixed by the Board from time to time) are given to directors and corporate officers for attending any
regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee and Board Committees.

The Company established a policy effective January 01, 2012 to provide guidelines for annual director’s fee to be
provided to Independent Directors, as follows: a) P100,000.00 annually for the position of an independent director and
member of the Board; b) P150,000.00 annually for each position as Chairman of any Board Committees; c) P50,000.00
annually for each membership in any Board Committees. The independent director shall also be entitled to per diem of £
7,500.00 for every meeting attended.

In addition to per diems, profit sharing is provided in the Code of By-laws in an amount not exceeding 15% of the net
profits of the Corporation (after tax), which shall be distributed to the members of the Board of Directors and Executive
Committee members and officers of the Corporation in such amounts and manner as the Board may determine. Profit share
not exceeding 15% of net profits after tax of the Corporation shall be submitted to stockholders for approval. The last profit
sharing in 1996 was set at 5% of net income after tax thereon. The directors and the executive officers did not receive any
profit sharing in the years after 1996. In 2009, Target Incentive for Support Personnel and Annual Performance Bonus were
granted based on achievement rate of target pre-tax income. These are provided to regular employees and executive officers
of the Corporation.

There are no existing options, warrants or stock plan arrangements and none are held by the directors, executive and
corporate officers of the Corporation.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

The accounting firm of Sycip Gorres Velayo and Company (SGV) was appointed as the Corporation’s auditor in 2005.
Since their appointment, the Corporation has no disagreement with them on any matters relating to accounting principles and
practices, financial statement disclosures or auditing scope or procedures. The same auditing firm has been endorsed for re-
appointment by the Audit Committee to the Executive Committee. The Audit Committee is composed of the Chairman and
Independent Director, Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr.,, and members, Diana Pardo-Aguilar and Jose Victor P. Paterno. The
Executive Committee approved the endorsement and will nominate the appointment of the said auditing firm for stockholders’
approval at the scheduled Annual Meeting of the Stockholders. The said auditing firm has accepted the Corporation’s invitation
to stand for re-election this year and has designated Ms. Julie Christine Ong-Mateo as the audit partner to handle the 2013
audit for the Company.

Audit services of SGV for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 included the examination of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company, preparation of final income tax returns and other services related to filing made with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.

The company is in compliance with SRC Rule 68, paragraph 3(b)(iv) requiring the rotation of external auditors or
engagement partners who have been engaged by the company for a period of five (5) consecutive years or more as of
December 31, 2005. The present engagement partner is Ms. Julie Christine Ong-Mateo, an SEC accredited auditing partner of
SGV, and in her fifth year of assighment in the Corporation. Representatives of SGV shall be present during the annual meeting
of stockholders on July 18, 2013. They are also expected to respond at the Annual Stockholders Meeting to appropriate
questions from stockholders pertaining to said financial statements as needed.
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Item 8. External Audit Fees and Services

The following table summarizes the fees paid or accrued for services provided by our external auditors for the fiscal
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011:

2012 | 2011
(in thousands)
Audit Fees P1,832 P 1,669
Tax Fees 1,284 13
All Other Fees 132 448
Total P3,248 P2,130

Audit Fees. This category includes the audit of our annual financial statements, review of interim financial statements
and services that are normally provided by the independent auditors in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or
engagements for those fiscal years. This category also includes the advice on audit and accounting matters that arose during,
or as a result of the audit or the review of interim financial statements. Amount indicated above is only an estimate of fees for
the 2012 Audit services, exclusive of VAT and out of pocket expenses.

Tax Services. This category includes tax compliance, tax advice, tax planning and other services performed by our
independent auditors.

All Other Fees. This category consists primarily of fees for consultations, special engagements relating to issuance of
long form audit report and securing documents which are required for the payment of dividends and other incidental expenses.

The fees presented above includes out-of-pocket expenses incidental to our independent auditors’ work.

Our Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and non-audit services as these are proposed or endorsed before these
services are performed by our independent auditors.

Amount indicated above is only an estimate of long form audit fee for 2012 for job arrangement for this service is not
yet finalized.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES
Item 11. Financial and Other Information

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the Company’s Consolidated Audited Financial Statements for fiscal
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, including schedules for Property & Equipment, Accumulated Depreciation, Non-
trade Receivables and Capital Stock, are attached hereto as Annexes “A” and “D”, respectively. The Company’s 2012 Annual
Report will be distributed to stockholders of record during the Annual Meeting.

D. OTHER MATTERS
Item 15. Action with Respect to Reports

During the scheduled Annual Stockholders Meeting, the following reports shall be submitted to the stockholders for
approval:

1. Approval of the Minutes of the July 24, 2012 Annual Stockholders Meeting;

2. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year ending
December 31, 2012;

3. Ratification of all Acts and Resolutions of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Board Committees and
Management during the year 2012 as discussed in the Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors, Executive
Committee and Audit Committee, which include the approval of contracts, loans, investments or purchases in the
ordinary course of trade or business, management report and financial statements of the Corporation, and
appointment of corporate officers, corporate signatories and amendments thereof.

A brief summary of Minutes of the 2012 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and relevant resolutions of the Board of
Directors and the Committees for ratification by the stockholders are attached as Annexes “B” and “C.”

Item 18. Other Proposed Action
1. Election of Directors including the independent directors

2. Appointment of External Auditors
3. Approval of Stock Dividend Declaration
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Item 19. Voting Procedures
Vote required for approval

For election of directors, a shareholder may vote such number of shares for as many persons as there are directors to
be elected or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
multiplied by the number of his shares, or he may distribute them on the same principle to as many candidate as he shall see
fit.

For approval of stock dividend declaration, the vote of at least 2/3 of total outstanding shares entitled to vote is
required.

Method by which votes will be counted

All matters subject to a vote, except in cases where the By-laws provides otherwise, shall be decided by the plurality
vote of stockholders present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereat, a quorum being present.

Unless required by law, or demanded by a stockholder present in person or by proxy at any meeting, and entitled to
vote thereat, the vote on any question need not be by ballot. On a vote by ballot, each ballot shall be signed by the stockholder
voting, or in his name by his proxy if there be such proxy, and shall state the number of shares voted by him. The counting
thereof shall be supervised by the external auditors or the stock transfer agent of the Company.
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UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF A STOCKHOLDER, THE COMPANY WILL PROVIDE, WITHOUT CHARGE, A
COPY OF THE COMPANY’S SEC FORM 17-A (ANNUAL REPORT) DULY FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION. THE STOCKHOLDER MAY BE CHARGED A REASONABLE COST FOR PHOTOCOPYING THE EXHIBITS.

ALL REQUESTS MAY BE SENT TO:

psc-corp@7-eleven.com.ph

or

PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION

7™ FLOOR, THE COLUMBIA TOWER,

ORTIGAS AVENUE, MANDALUYONG CITY
1501

SIGNATURE
After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set forth on this
report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Mandaluyong on 04 June 2013.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this report to be signed

on its behalf by the undersigned hereto authorized.

PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
Issuer
June 04, 2013

By: %w

EVELYN S. ENR QUE
Corporate Secretary
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ANNEX “A”

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should
be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the
related notes as of December 31, 2012 and 2011. This discussion contains forward-looking
statements that reflect our current views with respect to future events and our future financial
performance. These statements involve risks and uncertainties and our actual results may
differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. On a periodic
basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to revenue recognition, goodwill,
capitalized assets and income taxes. We base our estimates on historical experience and on
various assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

For the Period Ended and As of December 31,

2012 2011 2010

SYSTEM WIDE SALES 13,370,773 10,696,614 9,112,829
Statement of Income Data:
Revenues and other income

Revenue from merchandise sales 11,713,760 9,435,604 7,612,243

Franchise revenue 683,573 534,026 442,823

Marketing income 375,768 239,889 147,469

Commission income 67,396 37,236 29,272

Others (net) 159,559 144,503 110,116
Cost and expenses

Cost of merchandise sales 8,523,151 6,844,562 5,388,498

General & administrative expenses 3,785,662 3,012,178 2,531,390

Interest expense 16,597 16,025 16,398
Total comprehensive income 464,626 356,343 276,880
Earnings per share (EPS) 1.17 0.89 0.69
Cash Flow Data:

Net cash provided by operating activities 869,491 787,909 664,305

Net cash used in investing activities (900,455) (760,848) (703,096)

Net cash used in financing activities 51,849 8,799 (50,931)
Balance Sheet Data:

Total assets 4,564,348 3,734,299 3,093,173

Total liabilities 2,637,758 2,237,670 1,922,744

Total stockholders’ equity 1,926,590 1,496,629 1,170,429

(Amount in thousands, except EPS)
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OVERVIEW

Philippine Seven Corporation (PSC or the Company) operates the largest convenience store
network in the country. It acquired from Southland Corporation (now Seven Eleven Inc.) of
Dallas, Texas the license to operate 7-Eleven stores in the Philippines in December 1982.

Operations commenced with the opening of its first store in February 1984 at the corner of
Kamias Road and EDSA Quezon City. In light of the country's economic condition in the eighties,
the Company grew slowly and steadily in the first few years of its existence.

In 1993, PSC, encouraged by the resurgent national economy, stepped up its rate of expansion.
This was supported by the proceeds coming from the initial public offering of its common
shares in 1998. Recognizing the need to establish stable system infrastructure and logistics,
the Company, in the year 2000, decided to create an alliance with President Chain Stores
Corporation, then the second largest 7-Eleven operator globally.

Store expansion grew at a faster pace beginning in 2005 through the franchise business model
and close collaboration with business partners. This was backed by a strong logistics system
and back office support.

At the end of 2012, 7-Eleven has 829 stores, mainly in Metro Manila and in major towns and
cities in Luzon. The Company successfully penetrated the Visayas through Cebu City as it was
able to end the year with 25 stores in that market.

Out of the 829 7-Eleven Convenience Stores, about two thirds are operated by third party
franchisees and the remainder are company-owned. A total of 148 new stores were opened in
2012 against 8 closures.

The retail chain of convenience stores is sustained by a manpower complement of 2,666
(regular and outsourced) employees engaged in corporate store operations and in various
support service units. Despite of growing competition, PSC maintains its leadership in the CVS
industry.

PSC derives its revenues principally from retail sales of merchandise, commissions, marketing
income and franchising activities. The primary expenses consist of cost of goods, general and
administrative expense and income taxes.

7-Eleven seeks to meet the needs of its customers and maintain a leadership position in the C-
store industry by taking advantage of economies of scale, technology, people and a widely
recognized brand. Its vision is to be the best retailer of convenience for emerging markets.

During the second half of 2012, PSC has successfully opened its first twenty-five stores, and its
second distribution center, in Cebu City. This is the Company’s first venture outside Luzon,
which is home to half the country’s population as well as the capital of Metro Manila. It is a
significant first step in the company’s push to bring modern convenience wherever feasible to
the rest of the archipelago — a more logistically complex market than the contiguous and highly
urbanized Luzon.

Cebu is the 2nd largest city after Metro Manila, and, we believe, the key to the Visayas. Itisa
tourist favorite, has a fast growing BPO sector, and is rapidly urbanizing. Given the importance
of this market, we invested heavily in advertising, and were rewarded with sales that exceeded
our expectations. We intend to have over a hundred stores on our 3™ year.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS IN 2012 COMPARED WITH 2011

Results of Operations

For the Fourth Quarter

Net income generated in the fourth quarter jumped by 32.3% to P240.2 million from P181.6
million registered in the same period last year.

System wide sales, which represent sales of all corporate and franchise-operated stores, rose
by 22.8% to P3.7 billion during the quarter. This is largely driven by the opening of new stores
and complemented by the 1.6% growth in same store sales. Q4 ended with 829 stores, up by
140 stores or 20.3% from the same period last year.

Several of the stores we opened in Cebu were converted Caltex convenience stores. PSC has
renewed its strategic alliance with Chevron Philippines which make investment in conversions
more viable. There are close to forty 7-Eleven outlets in various Caltex stations in Metro
Manila and Cebu City at the end of Q4, and we expect this number to increase.

Q4 earnings grew at a faster rate compared to sales and can be attributed to improvement in
gross margin, increase in marketing income and higher franchise fee collection.

Costs increased because of our push into Cebu, where frontloaded advertising spend even
before opening and high logistics costs from an underutilized warehouse drove up expenses.
We expect the region to become profitable as we normalize ad spend and achieve scale, and
view the initial expenses as a necessary investment to gain first mover advantage in the Visayas.

Marketing income continues to enhance the bottom-line by posting growth of 44.0% to P284.3
million. This represents suppliers’ support from various promotions. Historically, bulk of
marketing income is earned during the latter part of the year - more promo activities are slated,
and annual volume rebates, in the fourth quarter.

Following reporting conventions of listed local and international retailers, some components of
marketing income were reclassified to cost of goods sold. Previous periods were also restated
for comparability. There is no impact on net income and retained earnings.

Further, franchise revenues registered an increase of 28.0% to P196.2 million from P153.2
million a year ago as we increased the number of franchised stores.

Management believes the Company can sustain momentum moving forward to meet store
expansion and profit goals. We however may do what we have to in the short term to protect
and expand industry leadership in the long term, as rewards for market share are especially
strong in the convenience store sector.

For the Twelve Months Ended December 31
At the end of 2012, PSC has generated net income aggregating to P464.6 million. This
represents an increase of 30.4% compared with the 2011 level of P356.3 million. EPS during

the period likewise grew by 31.5% and is pegged at P1.17 per share from P0.89 per share a year
ago.
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The improved earnings results can be attributed to the 3.0% growth in same store sales and
increase in marketing income and franchise revenues. Inventory management system and
effective execution of promotion programs also contributed favorably.

System-wide sales rose by 25.0% to P13.4 billion from P10.7 billion in 2011. This was driven
mainly by the increase in store base and favorable sales registered by mature stores. Total
stores reached 829 at the end of 2012. This represents a net increase of 140 stores or 20.0%
over the 2011 level.

Revenue from merchandise sales registered increase of 24.1% to P11.7 billion while cost of
goods sold went up by 24.5% to P8.5 billion resulting into gross profit of P3.2 billion, higher by
23.1% compared with the same period in 2011.

New operators boosted franchise store count to 554 and grew franchise revenues by 28.0% to
P683.6 million from P534.0 million at the end of 2011. To date, franchised stores accounted
for 67.0% of total compared to 64.0% in the same period last year.

Marketing income posted growth of 56.6% to P375.8 million as we expanded brand building
opportunities for vendor partners, and as increased sales made it easier to request for more
equitable treatment vis-a-vis other channels.

Following reporting conventions of listed local and international retailers, some components of
marketing income were reclassified to cost of goods sold. Previous periods were also restated
for comparability. There is no impact on net income and retained earnings.

EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) rose by 33.5 percent
from P912.9 million in 2011 to P1.2 billion at end 2012 while EBITDA margin improved to 8.9%
from 8.3%.

The ability of the Company to generate free cash flow did not substantially change in 2012
despite of the faster rate of increase in current assets, which grew by 34.8% against the 19.8
uptick in current liabilities.

Current assets increased due to inventory build up, timing difference in receivables and
payment of advance rent for stores waiting to open. Current liabilities, on the other hand,
increased at a slower pace as we took advantage of shorter payment terms in return for
increased rebates and discounts.

As a result, net cash flow provided by operations stood at P869.5 million against net cash
outflow from investing activities, which mainly came from capital expenditures, of P900.4
million. This translated into a negative free cash flow of P31.0 million, a reversal from the
positive free cash flow of P27.1 million in 2011.

Stock price of PSC increased over 250% from only P25.90 at the beginning of the year to P92.00
per share by year-end, a price-earning multiple of nearly 80 times.

Revenue and Gross Margin
The Company registered total revenue from merchandise sales of P11.7 billion in 2012, an

increase of 24.1% compared to P9.4 billion in 2011. Cost of merchandise sold rose by P1.7
billion to P8.5 billion during 2012.
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Gross Profit stood at P3.2 billion, while GP in relation to sales went down by 0.22% owing to
the dilution brought about by the increase in Company’s sales to franchise stores, which are
accounted for at zero mark-up. Notwithstanding this factor, real gross profit ratio to sales
went up by 0.7% points compared to the level a year ago.

Along with its 24/7 convenience, PSC also offers services including bills payment, phone/call
cards and sim packs, and 7-Connect that allows customers to pay for selected online purchases
with cash through any 7-Eleven store. These products in the services category plus consigned
goods form part of commission income, which increased by 81.0% to P67.4 million during the
year.

We intend to grow services as new opportunities surface due to technological progress. In the
third quarter of 2012, we announced a partnership with Philippine Airlines that allows
passengers to pay for tickets booked online at our stores. This latest innovation will be
implemented in partnership with our third party payment processor ECPay.

FY2012 FY2011 Increase (Decrease)
Value Percentage
Revenue from merchandise sales 211,713,760 £9,435,604 82,278,156 24%
Cost of merchandise sales 8,523,151 6,844,562 1,678,589 25%
Gross profit £3,190,609 £2,591,042 B£599,567 23%
Commission income £67,396 237,237 £30,159 81%
(amount in thousand Pesos)

Other Income

Other income mainly consists of marketing income, franchise revenues and rentals. The
Company’s total other income increased by P310.3 million, to P1.2 billion as a result of the
following:

Marketing income grew by 57.0% to P375.8 million from 2011 level. This is due to increased
supplier-supported ad and promo spending, driven by system innovations that allow an
increasing number of options for our supplier partners to build their brands in our stores. The
goal is to leverage the convenience of our locations and the interconnectedness of our systems
to become the preferred venue for manufacturer's brand building needs. Increased sales have
also made it easier for us to seek a fairer share of manufacturer’s trade spend vis-a-vis other
more established channels such as supermarkets.

Following reporting conventions of listed local and international retailers, some components of
marketing income were reclassified to cost of goods sold. Previous periods were also restated
for comparability. There is no impact on net income and retained earnings.

Display charges and certain marketing support funds previously recorded within marketing
income have been reclassified as purchase discounts as part of “net purchases” under “cost of
merchandise sales”. Total amount reclassified amounted to P297.9 million and P246.9 million
in 2012 and 2011, respectively

The Company’s share in the gross profit of franchise-operated stores is recognized as franchise
revenue and it climbed to P683.6 million from P534.0 million at the end of 2011. This was the
result of the increase in number of franchise-operated stores. Moreover, rent income related
to the stores’ subleased spaces increased by 4% to P45.8 million which was attributable to the
increase in occupancy rate.
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No significant element of income came from sources other than the result of the Company’s continuing
operations.63+

FY2012 FY2011 Increase (Decrease) |

Value Percentage
Franchise revenue 683,573 534,026 149,547 28%
Marketing income 375,768 239,889 135,879 57%
Rental income 45,752 44,144 1,608 4%
Other income 128,403 105,165 23,238 22%
Total 1,233,496 923,224 310,272 34%
(amount in thousand Pesos)

General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense which is comprised of store operating and selling expenses as well
as headquarters expenses went up by 25.7% or £773.5 million and totaled to £3.8 billion in 2012. The
increase in expense can be mainly attributed to the higher number of operating stores.

Communication, light and water were the highest contributor in expenses and accounted for 21.7% of
the total G & A in 2012. This represents a 34.6% increase compared with 2011 level, largely due to an
increase in electricity rates.

Outside services accounted for 17.5% of total G & A expense and this is followed by depreciation and
amortization with 13.9% and rent expense with 12.9% contribution. Relative to sales, rent expense
incurred improved to 4.2% from 4.3%.

Personnel costs aggregated to £270.0 million and declined by 0.7% compared with preceding year’s level
as the Company continued with its outsourcing initiatives to contain costs. Ratio to sales was 2.3% in
2012 and 2.9% in 2011. Personnel costs include salaries and wages at £217.4 million, employee benefits
at £36.4 million and pension costs at £16.2 million. Combined personnel and outsourced services, net of
service fees improved in relation to revenue.

All other expense types went up over preceding year’s level as a result of the increased number of
stores. The said growth is considered to be incidental and proportionate as PSC continues to grow its
store base.

There are no significant nor unusual expense incurred during the calendar year and is considered to be
incurred in the normal course of business.

FY2012 FY2011 Increase (Decrease)
Value Percentage
Communication, light and water 822,136 610,998 211,138 35%
Outside services 663,222 527,283 135,938 26%
Rent 527,787 378,355 149,431 39%
Depreciation and amortization 488,292 401,629 86,664 22%
Personnel costs 269,969 271,925 -1,957 -1%
Advertising and promotion 171,676 128,106 43,571 34%
Royalties 139,445 119,151 20,294 17%
Trucking services 133,085 106,491 26,594 25%
Repairs and maintenance 120,155 101,447 18,708 18%
Supplies 119,945 98,719 21,226 22%
Taxes and licenses 95,053 69,397 25,656 37%
Warehousing services 85,985 76,190 9,796 13%
EAR 38,477 26,473 12,004 45%
Transportation and travel 24,610 28,170 -3,560 -13%
Inventory losses 23,875 19,907 3,968 20%
Dues and subscription 9,356 5,898 3,458 59%
Insurance 8,969 6,033 2,936 49%
Amortization of software 1,490 2,599 -1,108 -43%
Provision for impairment 789 3,811 -3,022 -79%
Others 41,346 29,596 11,749 40%
Total 3,785,662 3,012,178 773,484 26%
(amount in thousand Pesos)
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Interest Expense

Interest incurred to service debt went up by 3.8% to P16.3 million compared with 2011 level of
P165.7 million. Outstanding loan balance at the end of 2012 was pegged at P477.8 million, up
by P103.1 million or 27.5% from P374.7 million at the beginning of the year.

Net Income

Net income in 2012 grew by P108.3 million or 30.4% to P464.6 million. This was primarily due
to improved sales, higher margins and continued store expansion.

The net income generated during 2012 translated into a 4.0% return on sales and 27.1% return
on equity. The key ratios in 2012 are slightly better compared to the ROS and ROE of 3.8% and
26.7%, respectively, a year ago. Moreover, earnings per share reached P1.17 per share at the
end of 2012, up from P0.89 a year earlier.

Financial Condition

Balance Sheet Highlights %
5,000 - (in Php Million except book value 2012
Change
4,500 - per share)
4,000 7 Total Assets 4,564  22%
3,500 -
3,000 1 F Total Assets Current Assets 1,786  35%
2,500 7 = Total Liabilities
2,000 - Non-current Assets 2,778 15%
1,500 - Stockholders’
1,000 - Equity Current Liabilities 2,386 20%
500 -
Total Liabilities 2,638 18%
2012 2011
Stockholders’ Equity 1,926 29%
. HIH o,
Total assgt's increased by P830.0 million or 22.2% Book Value Per Share (P) 183 12%
to P4.6 billion at the end of 2012. Cash and cash

equivalents during the year increased to P415.3 million from P394.7 million at the beginning of
the year.

Cash flow from operations increased by 10%, and revolving credit lines were utilized to support
investing activities and payment of 10 centavo cash dividend totaling to P34.6 million.

Receivables increased by P135.3 million or 56.5% due to higher balance of supplier collectibles
arising from ad and promo programs implemented during the year. Other receivables also
increased as the company leverages its balance sheet to provide collateralized financing to
franchisees.

Merchandise inventories reached P727.0 million, an increase of P207.7 million or 40%
compared with 2011 level attributed to forward buying aimed towards generating additional
revenues. Inventory turnover likewise slowed to 13.7 times from 14.9 times in the preceding
year.

Prepayments and other current assets grew by P97.5 million owing to increase in advance rent
paid for new stores and down payments to equipment vendors. The aforementioned factors
resulted into a net increase in total current assets by P461.1 million from the balance at the
start of the year.

Total current liabilities increased by P395.1 million or 19.8% mainly due to the increase in non-
trade accounts payable.
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The Company operates on a negative working capital position, which is manifested by a current
ratio of 0.75:1 from 0.67 in 2011. This is because cash proceeds from retail sales are invested
in long-term assets and at the same time utilizing credit term extended by trade suppliers.

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation increased by £330.9 million mainly
due to capital expenditure spent in relation to store expansion and investment in store
equipment to support new product lines.

During the year, the company invested in the remodeling of 20 existing stores to a new look,
which features softer lighting, earthier tones, and increased dining space.

Stockholders’ equity at the end of 2012 comprises 42.2% of total assets, compared to 40.1% at
the beginning of 2012. Debt to equity ratio is pegged at 1.37 for 2012 from 1.50, end of 2011.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company obtains majority of its working capital requirements from cash generated by
retailing operations and franchising activities and borrowings under the revolving facility
extended by banks.

PSC believes that operating activities and available working capital sources will provide
sufficient liquidity in 2013 as it continues to expand its store base. This will enable the
Company to fund its capital expenditure, pay dividends and other general corporate purposes.

The ability of the Company to generate free cash flow did not substantially change in 2012
despite of the faster rate of increase in current assets, which grew by 34.8% against the 19.8
uptick in current liabilities.

Current assets increased due to inventory build up, timing difference in receivables and
payment of advance rent for stores waiting to open. Current liabilities, on the other hand,
recorded a slower pace of increase due to shorter payment terms observed with the objective
of generating additional revenues in the form of rebates and discounts.

As a result, net cash flow provided by operations stood at P869.5 million against net cash
outflow from investing activities, which mainly came from capital expenditures, of P900.4
million. This translated into a negative free cash flow of P31.0 million, a reversal from the
positive free cash flow generated in 2011, which stood at P27.1 million.

Management believes that this trend will be favorable in the long term, as rate of store
expansion will be entering a more rapid stage augmented by improving economic outlook and

prevailing positive investor sentiment in the country.

The following are the discussion of the sources and uses of cash in 2012.

2012 2011 VELET )
(in million PhP) Amount %
Income before income tax 674 518 156 30%
Depreciation and amortization 528 378 150 40%
Working capital changes -333 -108 -225 208%
Net cash from operating activities 869 788 81 10%
Additions to property and equipment -859 -717 -142 20%
Increase in other assets -41 -44 3 -7%
Net cash used in investing activities -900 -761 -139 18%
Net availment (payment) of bank loan 102 55 47 85%
Payment of cash dividend -34 -30 -4 13%
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Interest paid -17 -16 -1 6%

Net cash from financing activities

Net decrease in cash
Cash and cash equivalent, beginning 395 359 36 10%
Cash and cash equivalent, ending 415 395 20 5%

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operating activities in 2012 resulted to £869.5 million, compared to
P788.0 million generated last year. Such is attributable to increase in income before income tax
by 156.2 million compared last year. Other current liabilities also increased by 243.4 million this
year. Depreciation and amortization also increased cash from operating activities with an
amount higher by 149.4 million compared with last year.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to £900.5 million in 2012 compared to net cash
out flow of £760.8 million in 2011. Major cash outlay went to the procurement of store
equipment, new store constructions and renovations. There are 148 new stores opened in
2012

We have updated the look of our stores, and made them more energy efficient. Beginning in
the third quarter, all new stores will be built to this standard, which requires slightly more
capital expenditure than the previous but more profitable in the long run. We have also
renovated close to 20 stores to date, and will be renovating more as they come due.

Majority of the company’s commitments for capital expenditures for the year are for new store
constructions and renovations. Funds for these expenditures are expected to come from the
anticipated increase in cash flows from retail operations and from additional borrowings if the
need for such may arise.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Net cash inflow from financing activities reached P51.8 million representing availments of new
short-term loans in the amount of P210.0 million, payment of cash dividends and bank loans of

P34.7 million and P106.9 million, respectively.

We expect to take advantage of supplier credit and utilizing the line extended by leading local
banks in funding our market development strategy.

DISCUSSION OF THE COMPANY’S KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

System Wide Sales
System-wide sales represents the overall retail sales to customers of corporate and franchise-
operated stores.

Revenue from Merchandise Sales

Revenue corresponds to the retail sales of corporate owned and sales made by stores under
labor franchise. This also includes merchandise sales of the Company to franchise operated
stores.
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Net Income Margin
Measures the level of recurring income generated by continuing operations relative to
revenues and is calculated by dividing net income over revenue from merchandise sales.

Return on Equity (ROE)
The ratio of the net income over average stockholders’ equity and indicates the level of
efficiency with which a company utilizes owners’ capital.

Current Ratio
Current Ratio is a measure of the Company’s liquidity, an indicator of its capability to settle
short-term obligations.

Debt-Equity Ratio
Debt-Equity Ratio is a measure of the Company’s liabilities in relation to its shareholders’ equity.

Asset-to-Equity Ratio
The asset/equity ratio is one of the standard formulas used to ascertain the overall financial stability of
a company.

FOR THE YEAR 2012 2011 % change
System wide Sales (in ‘000s) 13,370,773 10,696,614 25%
Revenue from Merchandise Sales (in ‘000s) 11,713,760 9,435,604 24%
Net Income Margin 3.97% 3.78% 5%
Return on Equity 27.15% 26.72% 1%
Current Ratio 0.75 0.67 12%
Debt-to-equity ratio 1.37 1.50 -8%
Asset-to-equity ratio 2.37 2.50 -5%
Interest rate coverage ratio 41.65 33.36 25%
Earnings Per Share 1.17 0.89 31%

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS IN 2011 COMPARED WITH 2010

Results of Operations

At the end of 2011, PSC has generated net income totaling to £356.3 million. This represents
an increase of 29% compared with the 2010 level of £276.9 million. EPS during the period
likewise grew by 29 percent and is pegged at £1.03 per share. Moreover, share prices of the
Company surged by 72% from £15.04 at the beginning of the year to £25.90 per share at the
end of 2011.

The improved earnings results can be attributed to the growth in system-wide sales brought
about by the opening of 147 new stores. This increased store base by 25% bringing store count
to 689 by year-end. In addition, continuous supplier support and sustained franchise revenues
contributed positively to the bottom-line.

System-wide sales, the measure of sales of all corporate and franchise-operated stores, rose by
17% to £10.7 billion from £9.1 billion in 2010. This was driven mainly by the increase in store
base and favorable sales registered by mature stores, which generally recovered during the
second half of the year.

Revenue from merchandise sales grew by 24% to £9.4 billion while cost of goods sold went up
by 27% to £7.1 billion resulting into gross profit of P2.3 billion.
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New operators boosted franchise store count to 443 and grew franchise revenues by 21% to
P534.0 million. Marketing income continued to support corporate earnings by delivering
£484 .9 million, an increase of 43% from 2010 level.

EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) rose by 31 percent
from £682.6 million in 2010 to £891.1 million while EBITDA margin improved to 8.3% percent
at the end of the year.

Revenue and Gross Margin

The Company registered total revenue from merchandise sales of P9.4 billion in 2011, an
increase of 24% compared to P7.6 billion in 2010. Cost of merchandise sold rose by P1.5 billion
to P7 billion during 2011.

Gross Profit stood at P2.3 billion, while GP in relation to sales went down by 1.8% owing to the
dilution brought about by the increase in Company’s sales to franchise stores, which is
accounted for at zero mark-up.

Products in the services category, which form part of the Company’s commission income, are
physical cards, bills payment and consigned goods. Commission income rose by 27.2% to P37.2
million.

FY2011 FY2010 Increase (Decrease)
Value Percentage
Revenue from merchandise sales £9,435,604 £7,612,243 £1,823,361 24%
Cost of merchandise sales 7,091,497 5,585,270 1,506,227 27%
Gross profit 22,344,107 £2,026,973 £317,134 16%
Commission income £37,236 £29,272 P7,964 27%
(amount in thousand Pesos)

Other Income

Other income mainly consisted of franchise revenues, marketing income and rentals. The
Company’s total other income increased by P244.0 million, to P1.1 billion as a result of the
following:

Marketing income grew by P142.6 million from 2010 level. This was due to increased supplier-
supported ad and promo spending, driven by system innovations that allow an increasing
number of options for our supplier partners to build their brands in our stores. The goal is to
become the preferred trade partner for manufacturer's brand building needs.

The Company’s share in the gross profit of franchise-operated stores is recognized as franchise
revenue and it climbed to P534.0 million from P442.8 million in 2010. This was the result of
the increase in number of franchise-operated stores that reached 274 at the end of the 2011.
Rent income increased by 18% from P37.4 million to P44.1 million.

In 2010, the Company collected from Meralco the PPA refund by virtue of the Supreme Court
Ruling of 2003 in the amount of £23.1 million.

No significant element of income came from sources other than the result of the Company’s
continuing operations.
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General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense which is comprised of store operating and selling expenses
as well as headquarters expenses went up by 19% or £480.8 million and totaled to £3.0 billion
in 2011. The increase in expense can be mainly attributed to the higher number of operating
stores.

Communication, light and water were the highest contributor in expenses and accounted for
20% of the total G & A in 2011. This represents a 16% increase compared with 2010 level as
electricity rates became stable in 2011. Outside services accounted for 18% of total G & A
expense and this is followed by rent, depreciation and amortization accounting for 13% apiece.
Relative to sales, rent improved to 4.3% from 4.5%.

Personnel costs aggregated to £271.9 million and declined by 5% compared with preceding
year’s level as the Company continued with its outsourcing initiatives to contain costs. Ratio to
sales was 2.9% in 2011 and 3.8% in 2010. Personnel costs include salaries and wages at £161.2
million, employee benefits at £98.3 million and pension costs at £12.4 million. Combined
personnel and outsourced services, net of service fees improved in relation to revenue.

All other expense types went up over preceding year’s level as a result of the increased number
of stores. The said growth is considered to be incidental and proportionate as PSC continues to
grow its store base. There are no significant nor unusual expense incurred during the calendar
year and is considered to be incurred in the normal course of business.

FY2011 FY2010 Increase (Decrease)
Value Percentage
Communication, light and water £610,998 £528,123 P82,875 16%
Outside services 527,283 389,213 138,070 35%
Rent 401,629 341,397 60,232 18%
Depreciation and amortization 378,356 291,804 86,552 30%
Personnel costs 271,925 287,246 -15,321 -5%
Advertising and promotion 119,152 101,175 17,977 18%
Royalties 106,491 90,693 15,798 17%
Trucking services 128,106 89,416 38,690 43%
Repairs and maintenance 101,447 86,964 14,483 17%
Supplies 98,719 81,307 17,412 21%
Taxes and licenses 76,190 68,340 7,850 11%
Warehousing services 69,397 58,180 11,217 19%
EAR 28,170 36,145 -7,975 -22%
Transportation and travel 26,473 23,642 2,831 12%
Inventory losses 19,907 14,659 5,248 36%
Dues and subscription 5,898 5,144 754 15%
Insurance 6,033 4,216 1,817 43%
Amortization of software 2,599 3,090 -491 -16%
Provision for impairment 3,811 1,623 2,188 135%
Others 29,594 29,010 584 2%
R3,012,178 R2,531,390 R480,788 19%

(amount in thousand Pesos)

Interest Expense

Interest incurred to service debt went down slightly by 2% to £16.0 million owing to lower
interest rates. Outstanding loan balance at the end of 2011 was pegged at £374.7 million, up by
£54.7 million or 17% from £320.0 million at the beginning of the year.
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Net Income

Net income in 2011 grew by P79.5 million or 29% to £356.3 million. This was primarily due to
better sales, continuing support from trade suppliers and store expansion.

The net income generated during 2011 translated into a 3.8% return on sales and 23.8% return
on equity. The key ratios in 2011 are much better compared to the ROS and ROE of 3.6% and
23.7%, respectively, a year ago. Moreover, EPS is pegged £1.03 at the end of 2011, up from
£0.80 a year earlier.

Financial Condition

Balance Sheet Highlights %
4000 ¢ (in Php Million except book value Change
per share)
3,500
) Total Assets 3,734 21%
3,000 [
2,500 o Total Assets Current Assets 1,429 23%
2,000 B Total Liabilities
Non-current Assets 2,305 19%
1,500 & Stockholders' Equity
1000 Current Liabilities 1,991  17%
500
Total Liabilities 2,238 16%
2011 2010
Stockholders’ Equity 1,497 28%
Total assets increased by P641.1 million or 21% to [gook value Per Share (P) 232 11%
£3.7 billion at the end of 2011. Cash and cash

equivalents during the year increased to £394.7 million from £358.7 million at the beginning of
the year.

The year was characterized by strong cash flow from operations enabling the Company to
manage its resources on an effective and efficient manner. Cash flow from operations
increased by 18% to support 8% increase in cash flow used in investing activities and payment
of cash dividends.

Merchandise inventories reached £519.3 million, an increase of £116.8 million or 29 percent
compared with 2010 level. This was due to increase in number of franchised stores and faster
inventory turnover that improved to 12.4 times from 12.0 times in the preceding year.

Receivables increased by £81 million due to higher balance of supplier collectibles arising from
ad and promo programs implemented during the year. Others are receivables from Franchisees,
employees and sublease spaces. Inventories went up by £116.8 million while prepayments
were up by £32.8 million coming from advance rent paid for new stores and down payments to
equipment sellers. The aforementioned factors resulted into a net increase in total current
assets by £266.6 million from the beginning of the year.

Total current liabilities increased by £281.5 million or 16.5% mainly due to the increase in trade
payables and other current liabilities. However, current ratio went up to 0.72 to 1 in 2011
against 0.68 to 1 at the beginning of the year.

The Company operates on a negative working capital position, which is manifested by a current

ratio of 0.72:1 from 0.68 in 2010. This is because cash proceeds from retail sales are invested
in long-term assets and at the same time utilizing credit term extended by trade suppliers.
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Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation increased by £338.7 million mainly
due to capital expenditure spent in relation to store expansion.

Stockholders’ equity at the end of 2011 comprises 40.1% of total assets, compared to 37.8% at
the beginning of 2011. Debt to equity ratio pegged at 1.50 for 2011 from 1.64, end of 2010.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company obtains majority of its working capital requirements from cash generated by
retailing operations and franchising activities and borrowings under the revolving facility
extended by banks

PSC believes that operating activities and available working capital sources will provide
sufficient liquidity in 2012 as it continue to expand its store base. This will enable the Company
to fund its capital expenditure, pay dividends and other general corporate purposes. The
following are the discussion of the sources and uses of cash in 2011.

2011 2010 VELET )
(in million PhP) Amount %
Income before income tax 518 406 112 28%
Depreciation and amortization 378 292 86 29%
Working capital changes -111 -33 -78 236%
Net cash from operating activities 785 665 120 18%
Additions to property and equipment -717 -672 -45 7%
Increase in other assets -41 -31 -10 32%
Net cash used in investing activities -758 -703 -55 8%
Net availment (payment) of bank loan 55 -20 75  -375%
Payment of cash dividend -30 -14 -16 114%
Interest paid -16 -17 1 -6%
Net cash from financing activities 60 -118%
Net decrease in cash 126 -140%
Cash and cash equivalent, beginning 359 449 -90 -20%
Cash and cash equivalent, ending 395 359 36 10%

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash generated from operating activities in 2011 resulted to £785.5 million, compared to
P664.3 million generated last year. Such is attributable to increase in income before income tax
by 112.8 million compared last year. Accounts payable also increased by 165 million this year.
Depreciation and amortization also increased cash from operating activities with an amount
higher by 86.5 million compare last year.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to £758 million in 2011 compared to net cash
out flow of £703 million in 2010. Major cash outlay went to the procurement of store
equipment, new store constructions and store renovations. There were 147 new stores
opened from last year to current year.

Maijority of the company’s commitments for capital expenditures for the year are for new store
constructions and renovations. Funds for these expenditures are expected to come from the
anticipated increase in cash flows from retail operations and from additional borrowings if the
need for such may arise.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash inflow from financing activities reached £8.8 million representing availments of bank
loans in the amount of P230 million, payment of cash dividends and bank loans for 30 million
and 175 million respectively while interest expense on outstanding bank loans totaled P15.7
million.

PSC expects to reduce the level of its debt within the next three years to minimize the impact of
interest expense in the net income and consequently reduce the leverage ratios.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS IN 2010 COMPARED WITH 2009

Results of Operations

At the end of calendar year 2010, PSC has generated net income totaling to £276.9 million.
This represents an increase of 78% compared with the 2009 level of £155.8 million. EPS during
the period grew by 77% and is pegged at £0.92. Moreover, share prices of the Company
doubled from £7.00 per share at the end of 2009 to more than £14.00 per share at the end of
2010.

The improved earnings results can be attributed to the growth in system-wide sales and
opening of 112 new stores that increased store base by 24% to 551 stores at the end of the
year. In addition, continuous supplier support and higher franchise revenues contributed
positively to the bottom-line.

System-wide sales, the measure of sales of all corporate and franchise operated stores, rose by
29 percent to £9.1 billion from £7.1 billion in 2009. This is driven mainly by the higher number
of operating stores and improvement in same store sales. Sales went up as a result of better
weather conditions coupled by favorable effect of a recovering economy and higher spending
during the election season.

Revenue from merchandise sales grew by 26% to £7.6 billion while cost of goods sold went up
by 28% to £5.6 billion resulting into gross profit of £2.0 billion enabling the Company to meet
its profit guidance for the year.

New operators boosted franchise store count by 27% and grew franchise revenues by 46% to
P442.8 million. Marketing income continued to support corporate earnings by delivering
£338.8 million, an increase of 43% from 2009 level.

EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization) rose by 55% from
£441.8 million in 2009 to £684.5 million while EBITDA margin improved to 7.5% percent at the

end of the year.

Financial Condition

Total assets of the Company rose by 14% to £3.1 billion at the end of 2010. Current assets
slightly decreased by 1 percent due to the 18% reduction in cash and cash equivalent which
settled at £368.9 million. The decrease in cash was due to the following factors;

a. store expansion which was funded internally

b. repayment of debt
c. payment of cash dividend
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The year was characterized by strong cash flow from operations enabling the Company to
manage its resources on an effective and efficient manner.

Merchandise inventories reached £402.4 million, a decrease of £13.2 million or 3% compared
with 2009 level. This was due to increase in number of franchised stores and faster inventory
turnover that improved to 14 times from 12 times in the preceding year.

Receivables and prepaid and current assets went up by 13% and 33%, respectively. Combined,
the two accounted for 13% of total assets owing to the increase in advance rental paid for
stores waiting in the pipeline and higher balance of suppler collectibles due to more ad and
promo programs implemented during the year.

The Company operates on a negative working capital position which is manifested by a current
ratio of 0.7:1 (same with 2009). This is because cash proceeds from retail sales are invested in
long-term assets and at the same time utilizing credit term extended by trade suppliers.

Further, non-current assets had grown by 26% to £1.9 billion due mainly to the 31% growth in
property and equipment resulting from continued store opening. Property and equipment
now accounted for 52% of total assets, higher compared with 45% in the same period in 2009.
For company-owned stores, PSC, invest on leasehold improvement and equipment, while for
franchised stores, investment is only for the latter.

By year-end, total liabilities rose by 7% or £121.4 million to £1.9 billion mainly due to the
higher current liabilities which grew by 6% or £91.5 million. Net trade payables went up by 6%
or £50.8 million because of increase in trade purchases while average payable period
shortened to 54 days from 59 days in the preceding year.

Short term debt which pertains to unsecured bank loans went down by 6% or £20.0 million to
end 2010 with outstanding debt of £320.0 million. Income tax payable was higher by 18% at
year-end due mainly to increase in taxable income while other current liabilities increased by
25% to end 2010 at the £265.0 million level.

Noncurrent liabilities posted an increase of £121.4 million or 7% attributed to higher deposit
payable of 19% which came from rent and guaranty deposit paid by franchisees and operators.

Stockholders’ equity at the end of 2010 comprises 38% of total assets, higher compared to 34%
at the beginning of the year. This increased by P262.5 million or 29% mainly due to the

net income earned during the year. As a result, debt to equity ratio improved to 1.6:1 from 2.0:
1in 2009.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company obtains majority of its working capital requirements from cash generated by
retailing operations and franchising activities and borrowings under the revolving facility
extended by banks

PSC believes that operating activities and available working capital sources will provide
sufficient liquidity in 2011. This will enable the Company to fund its capital expenditure, pay
dividends and other general corporate purposes. The following are the discussion of the
sources and uses of cash in 2010.
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash used from operating activities increased by £123.1 million or 23% mainly driven by
the P174.8 million or 76% growth in income before tax. Net working capital was lower by
P141.0 million.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities totaled to £703.1 million, an increase of 80 percent
compared with 2009 level. Major cash outlay went to the procurement of store equipment,
new store constructions and store renovations. There are 112 new stores opened in 2010
against 7 store closures resulting into net opening of 105 stores. This is higher compared to net
opening of 78 stores in 2009.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities reached £50.9 million almost tripling the 2009 level of
£17.2 million. The increase was due to net repayment of debts during the year totaling to
P20.0 million, payment of interest expense and cash dividend amounting to £16.6 million and

£14.4 million, respectively.

PSC expects to reduce the level of its debt within the next three years to minimize the impact
of interest expense in the net income and consequently reduce its leverage ratios.

Discussion and Analysis of Material Events and Uncertainties

1. There are no known trends, events and uncertainties that will have a material impact
on liquidity after the balance sheet date.

2. There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements and obligations of
the Company with unconsolidated entities during the reporting period.

3. All of the Company’s income was earned in the ordinary course of business.

4. There are no seasonal aspects that have a potentially material effect on the financial
statements.

5. The Company’s financial risk management objectives and policies are discussed in Note
30 of the December 31, 2012 Notes to Audited Consolidated Financial Statements.

There are no other known trends, events and uncertainties that will have a material impact on
the Company’s liquidity.
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A. Description of the General Nature and Scope of Business of the Company and its Subsidiaries

Philippine Seven Corporation (“PSC”) was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) on
November 23, 1982. It acquired from Southland Corporation (now Seven Eleven, Inc.) of Dallas, Texas the license to operate 7-
Eleven stores in the Philippines in December 13, 1982. Operations commenced with the opening of its first store in February 29,
1984 at the corner of Kamias Road and EDSA Quezon City, Metro Manila. Considering the country’s economic condition at that
time, the Company grew slowly in its first few years of existence.

In July 28, 1988, PSC transferred the Philippine area license to operate 7-Eleven stores to its affiliate, Phil-Seven
Properties Corporation (“PSPC”), together with some of its store properties. In exchange thereof, PSC received 47% of PSPC
stock as payment. Concurrent with the transfer, PSC entered into a sublicensing agreement with PSPC to operate 7-Eleven
stores in Metro Manila and suburbs. As part of PSPC’s main business, it acquired or leased commercial properties and
constructed retail store buildings, leasing the buildings to PSC on long term basis together with most of the capital equipment
used for store operations. In effect, PSC concentrated on managing its stores and effectively took the role of a pure retailer.

In May 2, 1996, the stockholders of both PSC and PSPC approved the merger of the two companies to advance PSC
group’s expansion. In October 30, 1996, SEC approved the merger and PSPC was then absorbed by PSC as the surviving entity.
With the consolidation of the respective lines of business of PSC and PSPC, PSC’s retailing strengths were complemented by
PSPC’s property and franchise holdings. Their management as a single entity enhanced operational efficiency and
strengthened ability to raise capital for growth. PSC listed it shares (SEVN) in the Philippine Stock Exchange and had its initial
public offering in February 04, 1998. The shares were offered at the price of P4.40 per share from its par value of P1.00 per
share. In September 17, 1998, PSC established Convenience Distribution Inc. (“CDI’), a wholly owned subsidiary, to provide a
centralized warehouse and distribution system to service its 7-Eleven stores.

With the effectivity of the Retail Trade Liberalization Act (R.A. 8762) on March 25, 2000, foreign entities were
allowed to invest in an existing retail company subject to the requirements of the law. President Chain Store Corporation of
Taiwan (PCSC), which is also the 7-Eleven licensee in Taiwan operating about 2,700 stores, purchased 119,575,008 common
shares of PSC or 50.4% of PSC’s outstanding capital stock at the price of P8.30 per share. The purchase was made under a
tender offer during October 9 to November 7, 2000 by President Chain Store (Labuan) Holdings, Ltd., a Malaysian investment
holding company, wholly-owned by PCSC. The acquisition is meant to forge a strategic alliance which aims to provide PSC with
technical support from PCSC in strengthening its organizational structure and operating systems. This shall enable PSC to
pursue store expansion plans on sound and profitable basis. A new affiliate, Store Sites Holdings Inc. (SSHI), was also
established on November 9, 2000, as the entity to own land properties. These land properties are leased to PSC by SSHI. PSC's
area license to operate 7-Eleven Stores in the Philippines was renewed in August 31, 2007 for another term of 20 years,
renewable every 10 years. The Renewal Area License Agreement has been approved by and registered with the Intellectual
Property Office as of September 25, 2007.

PSC initiated the establishment of PhilSeven Foundation Inc. (PFl) in October 2, 2007 to support its corporate social
responsibility programs. PFl was granted a certificate of registration by DSWD on August 6, 2010. BIR issued a certificate of
registration to PFl dated December 21, 2011 recognizing PFl as a donee institution. Last March 1, 2013, PCNC Board granted
the renewal of PFI’s certification as donee institution for another 3 years, subject to confirmation of the BIR.

The company had a manpower complement of 2,666 personnel, 615 of whom are regular employees, 66
contractual/probationary and 1,985 cooperative members to augment temporary needs during peak hours or season in the
stores and the support services units. There is no existing labor union in the company and collective bargaining agreement.
There is a PSC Employees Council which communicates to management the employees concerns. There has been no strike or
threat to strike from the employees for the past three years.

At year end, PSC is operating 829 stores, 345 of which are franchise stores under FC1, 209 franchise stores under FC2,
and the remaining 275 are company-owned stores. The store franchise contracts have a minimum term of 5 years each,
renewable for a similar term. The stores under franchise are indicated in the store list provided in the discussion of Leases
herein.

Currently, PSC considers three major competitors in maintaining its leadership in the Convenience Store (“C-Store”)
Industry. There are a number of other generic or hybrid stores or grocery stores including gas marts, but their store count or
sales volume as a group by itself is not significant to be considered. PSC has forged a non-exclusive tie-up with Chevron
Philippines Inc. in August 2009 for opening of 7-Eleven stores in selected Caltex stations. Another non-exclusive tie-up was
concluded in May 2011 with Total (Philippines) Corporation to establish 7-Eleven Stores in identified Total gasoline stations.
The Company continues to sustain its leadership by putting stores in strategic locations, carrying product assortment fit for
such market.

In spite of the growing competition in convenience store (“C-Store”) businesses, PSC maintains its leadership in the

industry. The Corporation estimates its market share in branded C-store businesses as of December 31, 2012, in terms of
number of C-store outlets in Metro Manila and adjacent provinces, as follows:
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Number of Market Share
C- stores (as of 31 Dec 2012)
7-Eleven 829 45%
Mercury Self-Serve 606 33%
Ministop 334 18%
San Miguel Food Shop 60 3%
TOTAL 1,829 100%

The majority shareholder, PCSC, has hands-on experience and know how in operating more than 4,852 7-Eleven
Stores in Taiwan and continually providing technical expertise, logistics infrastructure and marketing support program to build
the Corporation’s business systems for its store expansion program. The continuous improvement of the Corporation’s supply
chain shall generate further efficiencies to effectively compete with the entry of other players in the C-store business. The
successful franchise program is another mover to achieve the expansion plans and to dominate the c-store market.

The average number of customers that transact in the stores is about 988 per day per store with an average purchase
transaction of about £ 49.77. The stores carry a wide range of beverages, food service items, fresh foods, hot foods, frozen
foods, confectioneries, cookies and chips, personal care products, groceries and other daily needs and services for modern
convenience which neighborhood residents, commuters, students and other urban shoppers would look for in a convenience
store. Also offered in the store are proprietary product lines under the 7-Eleven trademark such as but not limited thereto:

Trademarks Description of Product Application Date Status
Frozen carbonated beverage, prepared with a variety

1. Slurpee of high-quality syrups, properly brixed and served in Aug. 19, 1992 Renewed as of Aug. 19, 2012
standardized trademark SLURPEE cups

- . Registered for 15 years from Aug. 29,

2. Super Big Bite Sandwiches, hotdogs and buns Aug. 29, 2003 2003 to Nov. 17, 2018

3. Big Gulp PPSt-mIX .fountam beverage, prepared with a variety of Nov. 16, 1992 Renewed as of Nov. 16, 2012
high quality syrups

PSC also sells its developed or own branded products/services under the following trademarks:

Trademarks Description of Product Application Date Status of Registration

Instant pre-packed hot beverages sold in 7- Registered for 10 years

1. Hot Cup Quick Mix Eleven stores June 5, 2006 (March 3, 2008 to March 3, 2018)
3rd year DAU filed on June 5, 2009
Brewed coffee, hot chocolate, cappuccino, Registered for 10 years
2. Café 24/7 hot tea and other coffee and chocolate June 5, 2006 (Feb. 16, 2009 to Feb. 16, 2019)
variants 3rd year DAU filed on February 23, 2010
3. 24-Hr Express Receiving from customers payments to June 5, 2006 Application pending
Payment various establishments ! 3rd year DAU filed on June 5, 2009
4. Pinoy Rice Meal & Ready-to-eat rice meals with variants June 5, 2006 Application pending

Device

3" year DAU filed on June 5, 2009

5. Medi-express

Pharmaceutical

January 19, 2006

Registered for 10 years
(Apr. 14, 2008 to Apr. 14, 2018)
3rd year DAU filed on July 20, 2009

Registered for 10 years

6. Daily Bread Different variants of bread May 18, 2007 (May 19, 2008 to May 19, 2018)
3rd year DAU filed on April 30, 2010
Ready-to-eat rice meals with different Registered for 10 years
7. Hotta Rice September 22, 2008 (Feb. 23, 2009 to Feb. 23, 2019)

variants

3rd year DAU filed on September 7, 2011

8. Pastarrific

Pasta meals with variants

March 10, 2009

Registered for 10 years
(Nov. 19, 2009 to Nov. 19, 2019)

Further, the products or services carried by the stores as described above are generally categorized as General
Merchandise which accounts for 75.79%, Food Service and Cupdrinks for 23.35% and Services at 0.85%.

The merchandise stocks are supplied by over 350 vendors/suppliers and are mostly governed by the standard trading
terms contract prescribed by the Company. Among the largest suppliers for the products carried by the stores are Unilever
Philippines Inc., San Miguel Corporation, Pepsi Cola Products Phils. Inc.,, Coca Cola Bottlers Phils. Inc., Universal Robina
Corporation, PMFTC, Absolute Sales Corporation, Del Monte Philippines Inc., Nestle Philippines Inc., Superdough Food and
Catering. These top suppliers account for 51% share in the 7-Eleven business.

B. Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant’s Common Equity and Related Stockholders Matters

Market Information

The Company’s common shares were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange on February 04, 1998. The trading
record of the Company’s shares as of December 31, 2011 and 2012 are as follows:
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December 31, 2011

Month Open High Low Close Volume
1 Quarter 17.02 18.20 17.02 18.20 800
2" Quarter 18.10 18.10 18.10 18.10 100
3" Quarter 24.00 24.00 23.20 23.20 1,200
4™ Quarter 25.90 25.90 25.90 25.90 600

December 31, 2012

Month Open High Low Close Volume
1 Quarter 41.00 49.00 41.00 49.00 2,100
2" Quarter 46.20 49.50 46.20 48.80 77,400
3" Quarter 73.00 73.00 72.00 73.00 110,190
4" Quarter 90.00 92.00 87.70 92.00 6,570

Latest Trading

Date | Open | High | Low | Close | Volume
Latest Trading for January
January 31, 2013 | 93.00 | 100.00 | 93.00 | 100.00 | 7,710
Latest Trading for February
February 28, 2013 | 90.00 | 95.00 | 90.00 | 95.00 | 3,180
Latest Trading for March
March 26, 2013 94.00 94.00 94.00 94.00 200
Month of April
April 1, 2013 94.00 94.00 93.00 94.00 1,380
April 4, 2013 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 2,200
April 5, 2013 90.20 90.40 90.10 90.10 3,510
April 10, 2013 90.10 92.50 90.10 92.50 2,100
April 11, 2013 92.00 92.00 92.00 92.00 1,850
April 12,2013 92.00 93.00 89.00 93.00 19,260
April 15, 2013 93.00 93.00 93.00 93.00 140
April 16, 2013 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 600
April 17,2013 90.10 90.10 90.10 90.10 100
April 18,2013 93.00 93.00 93.00 93.00 270
April 22,2013 92.90 92.90 92.90 92.90 3,690
April 23,2013 90.10 93.00 90.10 92.90 220
April 24,2013 92.90 92.90 92.75 92.75 840
April 25,2013 92.70 93.00 92.70 93.00 6,430
April 29, 2013 93.00 93.50 93.00 93.50 17,690
April 30, 2013 93.75 93.75 93.75 93.75 2,000
Month of May
May 2, 2012 90.00 93.75 90.00 93.75 950
May 3, 2012 92.50 93.00 92.50 93.00 510
May 7, 2012 92.00 92.00 92.00 92.00 3,180
May 8, 2013 92.00 92.00 92.00 92.00 10
May 9, 2013 92.00 92.00 92.00 92.00 510
May 14, 2013 92.00 92.00 90.10 90.10 330
May 15, 2013 90.10 90.50 90.10 90.50 1,430
May 16, 2013 90.15 92.00 90.10 92.00 2,380
May 17, 2013 91.80 92.00 91.80 92.00 3,060
May 20, 2013 90.10 90.20 90.10 90.10 430
May 21, 2013 92.05 93.50 92.05 93.50 102,490
May 22, 2013 94.00 94.00 94.00 94.00 1,070
May 23, 2013 95.00 95.00 95.00 95.00 7,020
May 24, 2013 96.00 96.00 95.20 95.20 1,570
May 27, 2013 90.05 94.95 90.00 94.95 1,340
May 28, 2013 94.85 94.85 90.00 90.00 4,060
May 29, 2013 91.00 91.00 91.00 91.00 15,000
May 30, 2013 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 1,670
May 31, 2013 90.00 90.00 89.50 90.00 161,720
Month of June
June 3, 2013 90.00 90.00 90.00 90.00 13,100

Stock/Cash Dividends

A stock dividend was declared and approved by the stockholder during the Annual meeting last 24 July 2012. The
stock dividend corresponds to 15% of the outstanding capital stock of the Corporation of 346,642,966 shares or equivalent to
51,996,445 common shares. Also, cash dividend of ten centavos (Php 0.10) per share was declared and approved during the
Special Board of Directors Meeting last July 24, 2012. Stockholders of record as of August 22, 2012 were entitled to said cash
dividend and the corresponding cash payments were issued and paid to stockholders on payment date last September 14,
2012. Record date for entitlement to stock dividend was set by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on November 15,
2012 in connection with its approval of the Corporation’s application for increase in authorized capital stock from Four
Hundred Million Pesos (Php 400,000,000.00) to Six Hundred Million Pesos (Php 600,000,000.00).
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Total outstanding capital stock of the Corporation after the payment of the stock dividend is 398,639,411 shares. Likewise,
there was no sale of any unregistered securities. There is no restriction that limits the ability of the Company to pay dividends
on common equity.

Holders

As of April 30, 2013, there were 656 shareholders of the Company’s outstanding common shares totaling

398,639,411 shares.

The top 20 shareholders and their corresponding shareholdings as of April 30, 2013 are as follows:

SHAREHOLDER CITIZENSHIP TITLE OF CLASS SUBSCRIPTION % HOLDINGS
1. President Chain Store (Labuan) Holdings, Ltd. Malaysian Common 205,544,409 51.56%
2. PCD Nominee Corporation (Non-Filipino) Non-Filipino Common 94,352,781 23.67%
3. Asian Holdings Corporation Filipino Common 26,784,047 6.72%
4. Agus Development Corporation Filipino Common 10,738,530 2.69%
5. Jose Victor P. Paterno Filipino Common 10,420,327 2.61%
6. Progressive Development Corporation Filipino Common 10,009,176 2.51%
7. PCD Nominee Corporation (Filipino) Filipino Common 9,006,251 2.26%
8. Ma. Cristina P. Paterno Filipino Common 7,189,210 1.80%
9. Ma. Elena P. Locsin Filipino Common 6,054,377 1.52%
10. Paz Pilar P. Benares Filipino Common 4,926,931 1.24%
11. Ma. Teresa P. Dickinson Filipino Common 3,767,950 0.95%
12. Maria Henrietta R. Santos Filipino Common 1,766,874 0.44%
13. Seven Eleven, Inc. American Common 1,550,650 0.39%
14. Dante G. Santos Filipino Common 1,541,992 0.39%
15. Vicente T. Paterno Filipino Common 1,220,237 0.31%
16. Manuel U. Agustines Filipino Common 707,613 0.18%
17. Antonio Diaz Sta Maria Filipino Common 168,024 0.04%
18. Felicia R. Santos Filipino Common 136,194 0.03%
19. Luis Y. Locsin Filipino Common 100,786 0.03%
20. Leandro Y. Locsin Jr. Filipino Common 100,786 0.03%
TOTAL OF TOP 20 SHAREHOLDERS 396,087,145 99.36%
OTHER SHAREHOLDERS 2,552,266 0.64%
TOTAL 398,639,411 100.00%

Discussion on Compliance with Leading Practices on Corporate Governance

Election of independent Directors
In April 2002 the Company disclosed to the SEC that it has complied with the requirement to elect independent directors.

Manual of Corporate Governance
In August 2002, the Board of Directors approved the adoption of its Manual of Corporate Governance.

Creation of Board Committees: Audit, Nomination and Compensation
In July 2002, the Board has constituted the abovenamed committees and appointed their members to enable them to
organize and perform the functions as provided in the Manual of Corporate Governance.

Compliance with the designation of a Compliance Officer

Corporate Governance Self-Rating Form
The Corporation has submitted to SEC its Corporate Governance Self Rating Form on July 2003.

In 2004, amendment of the Code of By-Laws of the Corporation to include the procedure for electing independent
directors pursuant to SEC Circular No. 16, Series of 2002, and the revised Implementing Rules and Regulations of the
Securities Regulation Code.

Yearly issuance of Certifications by Compliance Officer
Compliance Officer submits every January of each year to the SEC its certifications on substantial compliance with leading

practices and principles on good corporate governance, and the attendance at board meetings by the directors.

July 2007 - Inclusion of the Governance Committee in the Nomination Committee to form Nomination & Governance
Committee.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34,

35.

36.

37.

Accomplished and submit the 2007 Corporate Governance Scorecard and Survey Form as per SEC Memo Circular No. 2
dated 09 August 2007.

August 07, 2008 - Holding of Corporate Governance seminar conducted by Sycip Gorres Velayo & Company to all
executive officers and senior management of the Corporation.

October 2007 — Creation of PhilSeven Foundation Inc. to support the CSR program of PSC.

November 10, 2008 - Submission of 2008 Corporate Governance Scorecard for Publicly Listed Company to SEC.

January 2009- Submission to SEC of Disclosure on Directors’ Attendance in Corporate Governance Seminar and
amendment to Manual of Corporate Governance to include attendance to such training prior to assumption to office by a
director.

March 26, 2009 — participated in Corporate Governance Scorecard survey sponsored by Asian Institute of Management.
December 18, 2009 - Submission of 2009 Corporate Governance Scorecard for Publicly Listed Company to SEC.

August 24, 2009 - Adoption of Code of Ethics

July 29, 2010 - Adoption of Self-Rating Scorecard for directors and the Board

November 15, 2010 - Submission of Online Corporate Governance Scorecard to Institute of Corporate Directors

January 28, 2011 - Accomplished and submitted PSE Corporate Governance Disclosure Survey Form for 2010

February 11, 2011 - Revised Internal Audit Charter

January 21, 2011 — Submission and compliance of minimum public float pursuant to PSE Memorandum

September 15, 2011- Became sighatory to the Integrity Pledge: A commitment to ethical business practices and good
corporate governance

October 18, 2011 — Execution of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Philippine Seven Corporation (PSC) and
PhilSeven Foundation (PFI) providing that PFI shall implement the CSR programs of PSC and PSC has committed to donate
each year to PFl % of 1% of PSC’s annual net income before tax.

December 05, 2011 — Participation in the Corporate Governance Scorecard of the Institute of Corporate Directors (ICD)
January 01, 2012 - Issued Policy on Director’s Fee for Independent Directors

February 08, 2012 - Accomplishment of Self Assessment Forms for the Board of Directors and Directors

March 21, 2012 - Accomplished and submitted PSE Corporate Governance Disclosure Survey Form for 2011

May 2012 - PSC recognized as Silver Awardee for the ICD 2011 Corporate Governance Scorecard

August 30-31, 2012 - Attended a Seminar on Enterprise Risk Management: Robust framework to identify, assess and
manage risks

September 11, 2012 - Attended ASEAN CG Scorecard Launch by Institute of Corporate Directors
September 18, 2012 - Attended the 2" Integrity Summit: Driving Culture Change

September 30, 2012 - Adoption of Audit Committee Charter and an evaluation process to assess the Committee’s
performance

January 01, 2013 - Adopted the Insider Trading Policy (Trading Blackouts)
January 30, 2013 - Accomplished and submitted PSE Corporate Governance Disclosure Survey Form for 2012

March 5, 2013 - Attended the Integrity Forum 11: SEC Reforms to Strengthen an Ethical and Competitive Business
Environment

March 20, 2013 - Attended ASEAN CG Scorecard Information Briefing by Institute of Corporate Directors

April 23, 2013 - Attended the Integrity Forum 12: The Discipline of Ethics and Compliance
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Plans on Improvement

1.

The Corporation shall continue with setting up an evaluation procedure to measure compliance with the Manual of

Corporate Governance:

a. Develop a Corporate Governance Evaluation Form and conduct periodic compliance survey;
b. Obtain external and internal audit findings on effectiveness of oversight of Company’s accounting and

financial processes;

c. Monitor Board and other Committees minutes and attendance;
d. Develop compliance review system with risks owners.

Provide workshop/seminars to operationalize the Manual, evaluation system and compliance review as part of the

Company’s training program.

The Corporation shall continue to adopt the International Accounting Standards as they are approved as Philippine

Accounting Standards.

List of Directors, Corporate Officers, Executive Committee and Board Committees Chairmen and Members

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Name

WoONOURAEWNPE

=
= o

Vicente T. Paterno
Nan-Bey Lai

Jose Victor P. Paterno
Jui-Tang Chen
Mao-Chia Chung
Lien-Tang Hsieh
Wen-Chi Wu

Diana Pardo-Aguilar
Jorge L. Araneta

Antonio Jose u. Periquet, Jr.

Michael B. Zalamea

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Name

nhwneE

6.

Vicente T. Paterno

Jose Victor P. Paterno
Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr.
Diana Pardo-Aguilar
Ping-Hung Chen

Ying-Jung Lee

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Name

1.
2.
3.

Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr.
Jose Victor P. Paterno
Diana Pardo-Aguilar

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Name

1. Nan-Bey Lai

2. Jose Victor P. Paterno
3. Michael B. Zalamea

4. Ping-Hung Chen

5.

NOMINATION & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Ying-Jung Lee

Name

1. VicenteT. Paterno
2. Michael B. Zalamea
3. Diana P. Aguilar

4. EvelynS. Enriquez

CORPORATE OFFICERS

ouvkewmN

Chin-Yen Kao

Vicente T. Paterno
Nan-Bey Lai

Jose Victor P. Paterno
Ping-Hung Chen
Evelyn S. Enriquez

Position

Chairman of the Board and Director
Vice-Chairman and Director
President & Director
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Independent Director
Independent Director

Position

Chairman of the Board and Executive Committee

Member and President

Member and Independent Director

Member and Director

Member/ Treasurer & CFO

Member and Operations Director and Concurrent Marketing Director

Position

Chairman and Independent Director
Member and President

Member and Director

Position

Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Board

Member and President

Member and Independent Director

Non-voting member/Treasurer & CFO

Non-voting member/ Operations Director and Concurrent Marketing Director

Position

Chairman of the Board and the Committee
Member and Independent Director

Member and Director

Non-voting member and Corporate Secretary

Honorary Chairman of the Board
Chairman of the Board
Vice-Chairman

President

Treasurer & CFO

Corporate Secretary
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ANNEX “B”

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE STOCKHOLDERS
PHILIFFINE SEVEN CORPORATION
RUBY B, LEVEL 4 CROWHNE PLAZA GALLERIA MANILA
ORTIGAS AVENUE CORNER ADE AVENUE, QUEZDN CITY
JULY 24, 2012
3:00 P.M.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES DUTSTANDING - 346 642,966

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES HELD BY THE

STOCKHOLDERS PRESENT AND/OR REPRESENTED - 312,222,643

Directors in Attendance:

1. Vicente T. Patemo - Chairman of the Board and Director

2. Jose Victor P. Patemo . President and Director

3. Jome L, Aransta - Director

4, Diana P. Aguitar - Direcior

5, Antonic Jose U, Periquet - independent Dircctor and Chairman of Audit Commitise
& Michasl B. Zalames - independent Diractor

PROCEEDINGS OF THE MEETING

TON OF QUORUM AND CALL TO ORDER

Upon request of the Chairrman, M Vicente T, Patomno, the Corporate Secratary, Atty. Evelyn S
Enaquez annnunced that Philiopine Seven Corporation's (the "Comoration” or *“PSCY stock and transter
agent 800 Unibank Inc- Tiust & investment Group, in accordance with the Code of By-laws, sent
nofice of the mesting le all stockholoers of rocord es of June 11 201° The notice was publisted in the
Ciassified Sechon of the July 09 2012 issue of the Philippine Star, She repared the computation of
P3C's Stock and Trensfer Agent that out of 346 647 966 shares of stock outsisnding and entitisd ic vote,
312,222,543 shares or 90.07% wore reprezented al the meeling in person andior by proxy, and that
accomdingly, a quorum for the mesting existed Thereupon, the Chairman calied the maeting o omder.

I, APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE LAST STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

On modion duly made ang secondad, the stockholders dispensed wilh the regding of mingtes of
tne last stockholders' mesting of the Caorporation hald on July 29, 2011 and approved the sams as
_ reconded.

1L MANAGEMENT REPORT AND APPROVAL OF 2011 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Boarg Chaimman, Mr Vicente Patemo, read  his message 1o the stockholders, Tollowed by
the President, Mr. Jose Victor P Paterno, reporing the 2011 Review of Operatibns. The Chisf Financia)
Officer, Mr. Ping-Hung Chen, rendereg the financiat Righlights of the auwdited consolidated Tinancial
statements Tor Y2011,

Print capies of tha 2011 Annual Report and Audited Financial Statemenis were distributed to the
slockholders gunng the meating

S0 Annual Sleckiniders hMesimg
Juaty 23, T
Frye 1 of &
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The steckholders were given the opportunity to ask guestions or share some comments. Afler
responding o some questions and comments, on motlon duly made and seconded, the stockhoiders
approved and accepted lhe report on operations tor Y2011 and the audited financial siatements for he
SETE YEAT,

"RESOLVED, that the stocknolders of the Philipping Seven Comoration hersty
approve the 2011 Annual Report and the Audited Consolidaled Financial Statements of
Philppine Seven Corporation for Y2011 as presented.”

. RATIFICATION OF ALl CORPORATE ACTS

On mation duly made and seconded, the stockhoiders unanmousty ratified all acks of the
Caorporation, its Beard of Directors, Exccutive Committes, Beard Committees and Management from the
last annual stockholdars” meeting to the present

“RESDLVED. thal lhe slockholders of Pnllippine Seven Corporation  {the
“Corporation”) hersby approve and rality all the actions taken by the Corporation's Board
ot Directors, Execubive Committee, Board Cormmitiess and Management for Y2011 and
up o e present.”

V. ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOUARD

The Adicdes of ncorporalion of the Corporation provide For 11 dirogtors. The Corporate
Secretary stated that the names of the eleven nominees being presontod to the stockholders were
submitted 10 the Morenabon Committee in Its mesting on Mayv 17, 2012 and were cleared to have
sormphied with the “non-compete” provision of P5C's Coaa of By-laws  These nominess alss nolude 1
Fingl List of Candicates eligipie for slection as indopendent dirsciors, pre-screened pursuzal o ihe
muceduras provides it ne SEC Cirmular No. 16 on the Suiasines or Momination and Elecion of
Incapendent DireCtots.  Hence, the following are the nominses submitied o and soresned by the
Mominstion Commitieo (0 alphisbetica ordar)

1 Dians & Aguilar T. Jose Victor . Patemo

2. Jome L. Aransia &. Yen-Sen Yang

3. Chien-Man Hsieh S Wen-Thi Wu

4 Claursg-Jden Hsu 10, Antonio Jose L. Pengust (independent directorn)
3. Man-Boy Lal 11 Michae! B Zslamez (independaent directon

& Nicente T Patemo

On mation duly made. seconded and unanimovely camied, the abovo-ramet nominess were
nominated as dirsctors and independent directors of the Sorporation. Thore being no objaciion, ths
(TN 0N was closed.

SOn molion duly made, seconded and unanimously carned, the stockholders aporoved that the
body dispense with the individual casting of votes and agroed 1o vote and count the shares of sl the
shareholders present and/or repssssmied in favor of the 17 nominess.  Hencs, the abowve-mared
IFOETIIBEE Were duly Blecisd as directors of the Corporation for a2 teem of ope (1) year and undil 1hei
successars shall have been duly elected and gualitied.

PEC Armsal Slockinckiera Meaaling
dii 24, TS

-

Byza ol 5
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LB APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Thne stockholders were informed that present suditor. Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. {(3GV), was
appointed  Company suditor In 2005 The Audit Committee and the Executive Committes recomtiend
the re-appointment of 3GV and SSV has accepied the Invitation to stand for re—election this year, The
curtent engagement parner, Ms. Julie Christine Ong-Mateo, is now on her fourth year as the designatad
audit partner in PSC. This s in compliance with Rule 88 of the Securities Regulation Code reguining the

ratation of external auditors or engagement parinars who have served the company for a2 parod of &
consecutive years

O mobion duly made and seconded. the stockholders unanirngusty approved the re-appoirmment
of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Company as the extermnal auditor of the Corporation for 2012

“RESOLVED, that the stockholders of Phifippine Seven Cormporation (the
"Corporation™ nhereby spprove and ratify the appeintment! of Sycip Gures Velayo and
Company (SGV) as the extermal auditer of the Corporation for Y2012

Vil APPFROVAL STOCK DIVIDEND DECLARATION AND THE INCREASE [N THE
CORPORATION'S AUTHORIZED CAPITAL STOCK AND AMENDMENT OF ARTICLE

BEVEMNTH OF THE AMEMDED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION TO REFLECT THE
CAPITAL INCREASE

Appreval of Stock Dividend Declaration

The Chaimman informed e stockholders that the Sompany issusd o 104 5100 dividand in 2008
anc 2008 and & 5% sluck dividend in 2010, 1ogethar witn a casy dividend of five centavos per share.
Las! year, 2 15% stock dividenc ano & 1an centave cash dividend was ssuad. 0 view of the faworgbis
fnancia pedormance of 2011 the Soard has approved g casn dividend of ten cantave ser share and 4
siock dividend of 1585,

Fursuant 1o the above, the Board recommenced a 15% stosk dividend for approval anc
ratification by at laast 2% o the stockhnlders of the Corporation. The aclions fo: gpproval are 2 1ollows:

1 GSiock divigend daclaration of 15% of the outstanding capits) stock of the Corporation o
345 542 850 shares or egquivalent to 51,298 445 cormimon shares with par value of 24,00 prey
share

-

Issusnce of 51 993445 common shares with par walue of P1.00 per share from the
authorzed and unissued capital stock of the Corporation for distipotion 8s smook
dividenc

3. Any fractional shares resulting from the stock dividend shall be rounded off to the neares

are 1), following the rules of rounding off;

4, Record date for entitlement to stock dividend will be set by the Secunties and Txehange
Commission (SEC) In conngclion with its approval of the Corporation's applicaban for
murgase in authorzed caplial stock.

il

Fayment date of the stock dividend will be set not later than 18 frading days after the Recomd
Date.
B. Supmission of the stock dividend declaration for approval and ratification by stockhoiders
representing af leas!l 22 of the owtstanding capnal of the Corporation in this annual meeting
af July 24 2012

AE0 Annuze Steckholders Moating

July 24 2333

Fage 3ol £
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‘RESOLVED, that the Stockholders of Philippine Seven Corporation [the
“Corporation”) hereby approve a stock dividend declaration comespnding 1o
51,986,445 common shares and the issuance of 51,9068 445 commoaon shares with
par value of P1.00 per shars:"

“RESOLVED, ALS0, that any fraciional shares resulfing form the
dedclaration of the stock dividend shall be ounded off to the nearest one (13,
Following the rules of rounding off"

"RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Record Date tor enfitlement to ihe sgid
Stock dividend will be set by the Securifies and Exchange Commisslon (SEC)
conneciion with s approval of the Corporation's application for incresse in
authorized capital stock, with the payment date to he set not later than the 1Eth
trading day atter the Record Date-*

"RESOLVED, FIMALLY, thei any one of the Chairrnan of the Hoad,
Presidenl, Treasurer or Corporste Secretary Is hereby authonzed W file the
necessary petilicn and other requisite documenis tn secure approvals from the

appropeigke guvemment agencies and olher entities to implerment the toregoing
resolutions.”

Approval of increase in Authorized Capital Stock and Amengment of Article Seventh of the
Amended Articles of Incorporation fo reflect the increase in capital

Tne Chaiman informed e stockholders that the authorzed capital stock of the Corporation
currently stands at 400 million shares with par value of P1.00 per share OF the 408 miltion, 392 & mikiion
have been utilized i the form of paid-up capital and annual sfock dividend distribution. The remalnng
unissusd shares of 1.4 million & no tonger suthoent 1o cover fubure stock dividend distribution
Therefore, an application for morease in authonized capital stack is reguired, Tne propssed inoreass or
200 miliion shares will accommodae anaual stock dividens distribetion for 4t beast fhe nast 3 YEHME.

Sonsklang the above, tne Board recommendsd the inoreass i the gulnorized caphal stock of
the Lorporauon trom 400 miling g 600 milhor and Lk amesdmem of Amtlcle Ssventh of the Amendes
Arcros of imcorparation o peflect the capilal vesiease for the approva; and tatifization by &f taasi 203 of

tne stocknoiders of the Corparation, The aclions for approval are as follows:

i-  Increase in Authonzed Capital Stoock from Fow Hlendred Million Pesos (=400, GO0, 000,005 to
Six Hundrad Million Pesos (PEO0, 000,000.00), the increase of Twe Hundres Miion Pesas
{F2a0. 000,000.00) consists of an additional Twe Hundred Million Shares (200,000,000) with
& parvalue of One Pese (21.00) per shame

k3

Amendmant of Arlicle Seventh of the Corporation’s sAmended Aricles of Irrcoiporation o
reflect the capital increase

)

. Submission of the nerease in asthorizes capital stock and [he amendment of Artisls Seyvontn
of the Amended Aricles of Incorporation to refiec! the capial inorease for approval and
ratification by stockhoiders representing at leas! 203 of the outstanding capial stock of the
Corparabion in the annual mesting of July 24 2012,

n maotion duly mate and seconded. stockholders represanting 90 07% of oulstanding capital
s5tock of the Corporation approved and ratified the tollowing resoliufions

"RESOLVED, that the Stockholders ol Phiipping Soven Corporaiion the
"Corporation”) hareby appiove and authorize this Corporation 1o inciease e IU
|

FEL Anrual Sockholiders Masting
duby T H

-
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present authorzed capital stock from Four Hundred Million Pegos (P400,000.000.00)
fo Six Hundred Million Pesos (PGO0,000.000.00), Philippine Cumrency. the increase
of Two Hundred Million Pesos (P200.000,000.00) consisting of an additional Two
Hundred Million Shares (200,000,0000 with a par value of One Pezo (P1.00) par
share, and for this purpose, to amend Aticle Sevanth of the Corporation's Amended

Aricies of incorporaiion, so that the said anicle, as horein amended . shall hencefoth
1ead as follows:

"SEVENTH. - that the authonzed capital stock of the Comoration s Six
Hundred Million Pesos (PA0O0.000.000.00), i lowiul money of fhe
Philippnes, and the said capital stock is divided into Six Hurdeed Miliion
(E0C.000, 000 shares with a par value of One Pesg (P A0y per shars”
{changes underscored)

FIOL XX bt e

“RESOLVED, FINALLY, to authorize and approve the registration of bhe
increase In the Comporation's authorzed capital stock under the provisions of thi
Revised Securilies Act, and for this purpose, 10 asthorize the Directors anddar
Officers of the Corporation to sign, executc and hie with the appropriate govemment
agencles or other ontities the required application’s and olber documents and papers
redatad therelo 10 secure the necessary approvalis,”

VL ADJOURNMENT

Thers being no further bosiness to transact. on motion duly mads and seconded, the Chalrman
adjeurned the masting al 2:30 pm

Abtast=d by

VICENTE

“1

Certihed Somreet:
..

EVELYN §. ENGJQURY
Comporale Secretary

Chatrrmar of e Bosmd

FEC Lnnual 3tocklhdiees Kesnng
9
iy T4 20T

Papee B pf £
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ANNEX “C”
RELEVANT RESOLUTIONS APPROVED BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEES
FOR RATIFICATION BY THE STOCKHOLDERS

2012 Minutes

VL.

Meeting of the Audit Committee — February 10, 2012

Presentation and approval of the audited financial statements of the Corporation and the consolidated audited financial
statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries for the year ending December 31, 2011 and for submission and endorsement to
the Executive Committee’s approval.

Approval of recommendation to re-appoint Sycip Gorres Velayo and Company as external auditor and for ratification by the
stockholders in the annual meeting in July.

Approval of the 2011 Internal Audit Update Report and Plans for 2012.

Approval of the 2012 Annual Plan and Budget and recommended the approval by the Executive Committee of the proposal for the
expansion of 7-Eleven to Cebu.

Approved the proposal for tax compliance review from SGV and Company.

Noted the submission to the Philippine Stock Exchange of the Disclosure Survey for Corporate Governance on March 30, 2012.

Meeting of the Executive Committee — February 10, 2012

Noted the recommendation of the Audit Committee and approved the audited financial statements of the Corporation and the
consolidated audited financial statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2011.
Approval of the recommendation for the re-appointment of SGV and Company as the Corporation’s external auditor for 2012,
subject to ratification by the stockholders in the annual meeting in July.

Approval of the 2012 Annual Plan and Budget and the proposal for the expansion of 7-Eleven to Cebu.

Noted the acceptance of the resignation of Mr. Yu-Hsiu Tsai effective February 10, 2012 and confirmed the appointment of Mr.
Ping-Hung Chen as Chief Financial Officer effective February 11, 2012.

Approval of the resolutions on corporate signatories for updating and inclusion of CFO, Mr. Ping-Hung Chen, as one of the
signatories of the Corporation, effective immediately.

Noted the letter of Chairman Paterno discussing the PSC shares under his name.

Noted the copy of the accomplished PSE Disclosure Survey for Corporate Governance for submission.

Meeting of the Nomination and Governance Committee — May 17, 2012

Noted and reviewed the documents to ascertain the qualifications of the nominees and recommended the Final List of Candidates
for election as directors and independent directors in the Corporation for the annual meeting in July 2012 and for endorsement to
the Executive Committee.

Meeting of the Executive Committee — May 17, 2012

Approved the presentation of the Update on Operations and Interim Financial Statements for the period ending April 30, 2012.
Noted the updates on the Study of Dividend Declarations and proposed increase in authorized capital stock based on 2011 audited
financial statement and for recommendation to the Board for approval.

Approved the endorsement of the Nomination and Governance Committee of the final list of candidates for election as PSC
directors and independent directors in the annual stockholders meeting in July.

Setting of the record date of June 11, 2012 for determining the stockholders of PSC entitled to vote in its annual stockholders
meeting on July 24, 2012.

Approval of resolutions to delegate certain management authority of the President to supply chain committee to approve site
acquisitions, lease contract terms and franchise applications. The supply chain committee shall be composed of the Operations
Director, Business Development Division Manager and the Operations Division Manager and shall act jointly and unanimously on
said matters for their approval.

Special Meeting of the Board of Directors — July 24, 2012

Approved the declaration of a ten centavos (P0.10) cash dividend per share and a 15% stock dividend of the outstanding capital
stock of the Corporation of 346,642,966 shares.

Approved the increase in authorized capital stock and the amendment of Article 7™ of the Amended Articles of Incorporation to
reflect the increase in capital from four hundred million pesos (P400,000,000.00) to six hundred million pesos (P600,000,000.00)
with a par value of one peso (P1.00) per share.

Approved the resolutions setting the record date for entitlement of cash dividends on August 22, 2012 and the payment date on
September 14, 2012 while for the Stock Dividend, SEC shall set the record and payment date in line with the application of stock
dividend as payment for the 25% subscription to the Increase in Authorized Capital Stock

Approved the resolution authorizing the stock and transfer agent, BDO Unibank Inc.—TIG, to prepare, sign, issue and mail the cash
dividend checks to stockholders.

Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors — July 24, 2012

Approved the presentation of the Update Report on Operations as of June 30, 2012 and the interim financial statements for the
same period.
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Vil.

Viil.

Approved resolutions to renew credit lines with BPI, Chinatrust, Metrobank and Citibank upon their expiry.
Election of Corporate Officers

The Board of Directors nominated and elected the following corporate officers:

Honorary Chairman of the Board -
Chairman of the Board -
Vice-Chairman -
President -
Treasurer and CFO -
Corporate Secretary -

Ching-Yen Kao
Vicente T. Paterno
Yen-Sen Yang

Jose Victor P. Paterno
Ping-Hung Chen
Evelyn S. Enriquez

Designation of members of the Executive and other Board Committees

The Board of Directors, pursuant to Section 21 of the Code of By-laws, designated the following as members of the Executive
Committee:

Chairman of the Board and Executive Committee

Member and President

Member and Independent Director

Member and Director

Member and Treasurer/CFO

Member and Operations Director & Concurrent Marketing Director

. Vicente T. Paterno -
. Jose Victor P. Paterno -
. Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr. -
. Diana Pardo-Aguilar -
. Ping-Hung Chen -
. Ying-Jung Lee -

O Uhs, WN R

The Board of Directors also designated the members of the Board Committees, including one (1) independent director in each
Committee, as follows:

Audit Committee:

Chairman:
Members: Jose Victor P. Paterno

Diana Pardo-Aguilar

Compensation Committee:
Chairman:
Members:

Yen-Sen Yang
Michael B. Zalamea
Jose Victor P. Paterno
Ping-Hung Chen
Ying-Jung Lee

Non-voting Members:

Nomination & Governance Committee:

Vicente T. Paterno
Michael B. Zalamea
Diana Pardo-Aguilar
Evelyn S. Enriquez

Chairman:
Members:

Non-voting Member:

Antonio Jose U. Periquet, Jr.

Independent Director
President and Director
Director

Vice Chairman and Director

Independent Director

President and Director

Treasurer/CFO

Operations Director and Concurrent Marketing Director

Chairman of the Board and Director
Independent Director

Director

Corporate Secretary

e Approval of the resolutions for the corporate signatories of the Corporation and update the names of the corporate officers as
appointed above as authorized signatories by virtue of the positions they hold in the Corporation.

Meeting of the Executive Committee — September 4, 2012

e Approved the presentation of the Update Report on Operations as of July 31, 2012 and the interim financial statements for the

same period.

e Confirmed the Audit Committee Charter, subject to final approval and promulgation of the same by the Audit Committee.

e  Approved the adoption of a policy on trading blackouts.

Meeting of the Audit Committee — October 18, 2012

e Approved the interim financial statements for the period ending September 30, 2012.

. Concurred to the appointment of Ms. Ma. Celina de Guzman as PSC Internal Audit Division Head last May 1, 2012.
e Approved the internal audit update report as of September 30, 2012.

¢  Noted the presentation by the external auditor, SGV and Company of the 2012 audit scope.

e Approved the proposal of tax review services by SGV.

Meeting of the Executive Committee - October 18, 2012

e Approved the presentation of the Update Report on Operations as of September 30, 2012 and the interim financial statements for

the same period.

e Approved the 2012 audit scope and plan presented by the external auditor, SGV and Company.
¢ Approved the policy on insider trading (Trading Black-outs) as presented.
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X. Meeting of the Board of Directors — November 13, 2012

Approved the presentation of the Update Report on Operations as of September 30, 2012 and the interim financial statements for
the same period.

Reiterated the resolution by the Board of Directors authorizing the Executive Committee to approve the interim financial
statements and audited financial statements of the Corporation.

Initial presentation of the proposed 2013 annual plan and targets was duly noted by the Board.

Accepted the resignation of nominee directors of PCSLH, Messrs. Chung-Jen Hsu, Chien-Nan Hsieh and Yen-Sen Yang, as members
of Board of Directors of PSC, effective November 13, 2012 due to the retirement of Mr. Hsu and Hsieh and assignment of Mr. Yang
to another subsidiary of PCSLH

Approved and elected the new nominee directors from President Chain Store Labuan Holdings, (PCSLH), Messrs. Jui-Tang Chen,
Mao-Chia Chung and Lien-Tang Hsieh, as directors and members of the Board of PSC. Pursuant to PSC’s By-laws, any vacancy
occurring due to resignation may be filled by the vote of a majority of the remaining directors constituting a quorum, there being
no objection from any of the directors to fill such vacancy.

Approved the appointment of Director Nan-Bey Lai as Vice-Chairman of the Board and Chairman of the Compensation Committee
of PSC in place of Mr. Yen-Sen Yang.

2013 Minutes

I.  Meeting of the Audit Committee — February 14, 2013

Presentation and approval of the audited financial statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries for the year ending
December 31, 2012. The status report was presented by SGV and noted no significant exception. It shall complete the validation
audit on pending items before end of February and submit to Audit Committee for approval of the 2012 AFS of the Corporation
and its subsidiaries. It shall then be endorsed by Audit Committee to the Executive Committee for approval.

Noted the deferment of the discussion to re-appoint SGV and Company as external auditor for year 2012 after completion of the
audit of PSC’s financial statements..

Noted the presentation of tax compliance review by SGV.

Approved the presentation of the Internal Audit Update Report for 2012.

Il. Meeting of the Executive Committee — February 14, 2013

Noted the status report on the audit of the Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation and its
subsidiaries for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012. Upon completion of audit by SGV, Audit Committee shall submit in
writing its recommendation for the approval of the audited financial statements for written approval of the Executive Committee.
Noted the deferment of the discussion to re-appoint SGV and Company as external auditor for year 2012 after completion of the
audit of PSC’s financial statements.

Approved the 2013 Annual Plan and Budget.

Noted the proposal to amend the shareholders’ agreement with parent company, President Chain Store Labuan Holdings, Ltd.

lll. Meeting of the Nomination & Governance Committee — April 18, 2013

Noted and reviewed the documents to ascertain the qualifications of the nominees and recommended the Final List of Candidates
for election as directors and independent directors in the Corporation for the annual meeting in July 2013 and for endorsement to
the Executive Committee

Noted the presentation SEC Memo No. 5, series of 2013 on the requirement for publicly listed companies to submit the Annual
Corporate Governance Report (ACGR) Form by May 30, 2013

IV. Meeting of the Executive Committee — April 18, 2013

Approved the presentation of the Update on Operations and Interim Financial Statements for the period ending March 31, 2013.
Approved the endorsement of the Nomination and Governance Committee of the final list of candidates for election as PSC
directors and independent directors in the annual stockholders meeting in July.

Setting of the record date of June 04, 2013 for determining the stockholders of PSC entitled to vote in its annual stockholders
meeting on July 18, 2013.

Approval of the recommendation for the re-appointment of SGV and Company as the Corporation’s external auditor for 2013,
subject to ratification by the stockholders in the annual meeting in July.

Noted the requirement to submit by May 30, 2013 the Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR) as per SEC Memorandum No.
5, Series of 2013.

V. Meeting of the Executive Committee- May 23, 2013

Approved the presentation of the Update on Operations and Interim Financial Statements as of 30 April 2013

Noted the study for dividend declaration and to prepare final recommendation for cash and stock dividend declaration for
approval of the Board

Noted and confirmed the content of the Annual Corporate Governance Report for submission to SEC on May 301, 2013
Noted the presentation on the possible write-off of the remaining P3.7M loan of ADAMs in line with its application for
bankruptcy.
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2012, 2011 and 2010 8
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Map of the relationships of the companies within the group 73
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November 15, 2012, valid until November 16, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Philippine Seven Corporation

7th Floor, The Columbia Tower

Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Philippine Seven
Corporation and Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December
31, 2012 and 2011, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, statements of
changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2012, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited 2
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Philippine Seven Corporation and Subsidiaries as at December 31, 2012
and 2011, and their financial performance and their cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2012 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.
}m‘ Ui, 0« Wi

Julie Christine O. Mateo

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 93542

SEC Accreditation No. 0780-AR-1 (Group A),
February 2, 2012, valid until February 1, 2015

Tax Identification No. 198-819-116

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-68-2012,
April 11, 2012, valid until April 10, 2015

PTR No. 3670009, January 2, 2013, Makati City

February 18, 2013



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION

7th Floor, The Columbia Tower, Ortigas Avenue, Mandalayong City 1550 Phifippines
Telephone Nos. (6321 724-44-41 to 53 / 705-52-00
w7 -shaven com ph

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Philippine Seven Corporation is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, including the
additional components attached herein, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
This responsibility includes designing and implementing intemal controls relevant to the preparation and
fair presentation of the consolidated financial slalements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, selecling and applying appropriate accounting policies, and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The Board of Directors or the Executive Committee or the Audit Committee, as authorized by the Board,
reviews and approves the consolidated financial statements and submits the same to the stockholders.

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for the period
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, have examined the consolidated financial statements of the
company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in their reports fo the stockholders,
have expressed their opinion on the fairmess of presentation upon completion of such examination.

f
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WCéNT T. PATERNO

Chairman of the Boa

JOSE VICTOR P. PATERNO
Chief Executive Officer
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Chief Financial Officer
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2012

2011

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 4, 29 and 30)
Short-term investment (Notes 4, 29 and 30)
Receivables (Notes 5, 29 and 30)

Inventories (Note 6)

Prepayments and other current assets (Note 7)

P415,285,569
10,632,115
374,597,843
726,986,563
259,007,887

P394,696,749
10,409,907
239,289,287
519,258,936
161,522,138

Total Current Assets

1,786,509,977

1,325,177,017

Noncurrent Assets

Property and equipment (Note 8)

Deposits (Note 9)

Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 27)
Goodwill and other noncurrent assets (Note 10)

2,276,921,044
249,418,061
43,009,798
208,489,602

1,946,032,976
215,964,826
40,662,817
206,461,345

Total Noncurrent Assets

2,777,838,505

2,409,121,964

TOTAL ASSETS

P4,564,348,482

P3,734,298,981

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Bank loans (Notes 11, 29 and 30)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Noteslhd®90)
Income tax payable

Other current liabilities (Notes 13 and 25)

R477,777,778
1,261,289,989
105,144,142
541,881,392

P374,666,667
1,243,937,457
73,922,196
298,435,516

Total Current Liabilities

2,386,093,301

1,990,961,836

Noncurrent Liabilities

Deposits payable (Note 14) 181,901,238 171,457,833
Net retirement obligations (Note 24) 61,120,420 65,192,720
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares (Note 15) 6,000,000 6,000,000
Deferred revenue - net of current portion (Note 16) 2,643,179 4,057,482
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 251,664,837 246,708,035

Total Liabilities

2,637,758,138

2,237,669,871

Equity
Common stock (Notes 17 and 31) - B1 par value
Authorized - 600,000,000 and 400,000,000 shares$ as
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively
Issued - 399,325,661 and 347,329,216 shares as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively
[held by 656 and 666 equity holders in 2012

and 2011, respectively (Note 1)] 399,325,661 347,329,216
Additional paid-in capital (Note 31) 293,525,037 293,525,037
Retained earnings (Notes 17 and 31) 1,233,432,997 855,468,208
Revaluation increment on land [net of deferred medax liability

(Notes 8 and 27)] 3,229,895 3,229,895
1,929,513,590 1,499,552,356
Cost of 686,250 shares held in treasury (Note 17) (2,923,246) (2,923,246)

Total Equity

1,926,590,344

1,496,629,110

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

P4,564,348,482

P3,734,298,981

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2012

2011

2010

REVENUES

Revenue from merchandise sales (Note 32) R11,713,760,468

Franchise revenue (Note 32) 683,572,827
Marketing income (Note 20) 375,768,257
Commission income (Note 32) 67,396,391
Rental income (Note 26) 45,751,718
Interest income (Notes 4, 9, 22 and 26) 5,377,093
Other income (Note 26) 123,025,663

B9,435,604,073
534,025,712
239,888,660

37,236,539
44,143,593

5,864,713
99,300,756

B7,612,243,056
442,822,680
147,469,060

29,271,506
37,361,844

5,355,769
72,802,078

13,014,652,417

10,396,064,046

8,347,325,993

EXPENSES

Cost of merchandise sales (Notes 18 and 32)
General and administrative expenses (Note 19)
Interest expense (Notes 11, 15 and 21)

Other expenses

8,523,151,274
3,785,661,595
16,596,830
14,595,186

6,844,562,019
3,012,177,978
16,024,647
4,806,251

5,388,497,887

2,531,390,104
16,398,169
5,403,913

12,340,004,885

9,877,570,895

7,941,690,073

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 674,647,532 518,493,151 405,635,920
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 27) 210,022,001 162,150,162 128,755,672
NET INCOME 464,625,531 356,342,989 276,880,248

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P464,625,531

P356,342,989

P276,880,248

BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS

PER SHARE (Note 28) P1.17

P0.89

P0.69

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 201

Revaluation
Retained Increment on Treasury
Common Stock  Additional Earnings  Land - net Stock
(Note 17)Paid-in Capital (Note 17) (Note 8) Total (Note 17) Total

BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 P287,761,172P293,525,037 B326,309,628 B3,229,895 B910,825,7 (R2,923,246) B907,902,486
Total comprehensive income:

Net income for the year - - 276,880,248 - 276,880,248 - 276,880,248

Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Stock dividends (Note 17) 14,353,746 - (14,353,746) - - - -
Cash dividends (Note 17) - - (14,353,746) - (14,353,746) - (14,353,746)
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2010 302,114,918 293,525,037 574,482,384 3,229,895 1,173,352,234 928246) 1,170,428,988
Total comprehensive income:

Net income for the year - - 356,342,989 - 356,342,989 - 356,342,989

Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Stock dividends (Note 17) 45,214,298 - (45,214,298) - - - -
Cash dividends (Note 17) - — (30,142,867) - (30,142,867) — (30,142,867)
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011 347,329,216 293,525,037 855,468,208 3,229,895 1,499,552,356 (2,923,246},496,629,110
Total comprehensive income:

Net income for the year - - 464,625,531 - 464,625,531 - 464,625,531

Other comprehensive income - - - - - - -
Stock dividends (Note 17) 51,996,445 - (51,996,445) - - - -
Cash dividends (Note 17) — - (34,664,297) — (34,664,297) - (34,664,297)
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012 P399,325,661P293,525,037 B1,233,432,997 B3,229,895 P1,93%R0 (B2,923,246P1,926,590,344

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2012

2011

2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax
Adjustments for:

P674,647,532

P518,493,151

P405,635,920

Depreciation and amortization (Notes 8 and 19) 527,786,925 378,355,521 291,803,754
Interest expense (Notes 11, 15, and 21) 16,596,830 16,024,647 16,398,169
Net retirement benefits cost (Notes 23 and 24) 16,206,912 12,368,401 11,220,501
Interest income (Notes 4, 9, 22 and 26) (5,377,093) (5,864,713) (5,355,769)
Amortization of:
Deferred lease (Notes 10 and 26) 2,485,728 2,779,684 1,414,700
Software and other program costs
(Notes 10 and 19) 1,490,475 2,598,741 3,089,728
Deferred revenue on exclusivity contract
(Notes 16 and 32) (1,934,524) (1,934,524) (5,476,190)
Deferred revenue on finance lease
(Notes 16 and 26) (589,567) (589,567) (709,665)
Unrealized foreign exchange loss (gain) 439,728 (49,798) 378,900
Loss on retirement of property and equipment — - 67,751
Operating income before working capital changes 1,231,752,946 922,181,543 718,467,799
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (130,841,872) (75,684,791) 14,301,014
Inventories (207,727,627) (116,839,359) 13,233,094

Prepayments and other current assets
Increase (decrease) in:

(97,485,749)

(32,811,310)

(58,286,054)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17,353,481 165,298,414 50,754,902
Other current liabilities 243,445,876 32,636,218 21,551,666
Deposits payable 10,443,405 28,595,696 22,895,083
Deferred revenue 1,109,788 (418,727) 5,133,336
Retirement benefits contributions (Note 24) (20,279,212) (4,629,263) (9,434,042)
Cash generated from operations 1,047,771,036 918,328,421 778,616,797
Income taxes paid (181,147,036) (133,352,439) (118,023,813)
Interest received 2,866,833 2,933,116 3,711,520
Net cash provided by operating activities 869,490,833 787,909,098 664,304,504

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to:
Property and equipment (Note 8)
Software and other program costs (Note 10)
Decrease (increase) in;
Deposits
Goodwill and other noncurrent assets
Short-term investment
Collection of lease receivable (Note 26)

(858,674,993)
(190,000)

(35,553,176)

(7,405,740)
(222,208)
1,591,280

(717,091,736)

(37,156,223)

(7,922,962)
(268,352)
1,591,280

(671,923,830)
(161,900)

(28,984,235)
6,339,916

(10,141,555)

1,775,466

Net cash used in investing activities

(900,454,837)

(760,847,993)

(703,096,138)

(Forward)



Years Ended December 31

2012

2011

2010

CASH FLOW S FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Availments of bank loans (Note 11)
Payments of bank loans (Note 11)

Interest paid

Cash dividends paid (Note 17)

R210,000,000
(106,888,889)
(16,597,779)
(34,664,297)

R230,000,000
(175,333,333)
(15,725,011)
(30,142,867)

P290,000,000
(310,000,000)

(16,577,074)

(14,353,746)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 51,849,035 8,798,789 (50,930,820)
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (296,211) 107,321 (378,900)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 20,588,820 35,967,215 (90,101,354)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 394,696,749 358,729,534 448,830,388

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

P415,285,569

P394,696,749

P358,729,534

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information and Authorization for Issuance of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Corporate Information

Philippine Seven Corporation (the Company or PS& incorporated in the Philippines and
registered with the Philippine Securities and Exg®g Commission (SEC) on
November 29, 1982. The Company and its subsidiggellectively referred to as “the
Group”), are primarily engaged in the businessetditing, merchandising, buying, selling,
marketing, importing, exporting, franchising, aaing, holding, distributing, warehousing,
trading, exchanging or otherwise dealing in alldarof grocery items, dry goods, food or
foodstuffs, beverages, drinks and all kinds of comsr needs or requirements and in
connection therewith, operating or maintaining \haxeses, storages, delivery vehicles and
similar or incidental facilities. The Group is @lengaged in the management, development,
sale, exchange, and holding for investment or etiser of real estate of all kinds, including
buildings, houses and apartments and other stesctur

The Company is controlled by President Chain Stioabuan) Holdings, Ltd., an investment
holding company incorporated in Malaysia, which ewh1.56% of the Company’s
outstanding shares. The remaining 48.44% of tleeeshare widely held. The ultimate
parent of the Company is President Chain Store @atjon (PCSC), which is incorporated
in Taiwan, Republic of China.

The Company has its primary listing on the Philngp5tock Exchange. As of December 31,
2012 and 2011, the Company has 656 and 666 eculiets, respectively.

The registered business address of the Comparth iSl@or, The Columbia Tower, Ortigas
Avenue, Mandaluyong City.

Authorization for Issuance of the Consolidated Rmal Statements

The consolidated financial statements as of Dece®hbe2012 and 2011 and for each of the
three years in the period ended December 31, 2@1t@ authorized for issue by the Board of
Directors (BOD) on February 18, 2013.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Finacial Reporting Practices

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements are prepameér the historical cost basis, except for
parcels of land, which are carried at revalued arho@rhe consolidated financial statements
are presented in Philippine Peso (Peso), whichasCompany’s functional currency and all
amounts are rounded to the nearest Peso exceptotliemvise indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial statements, which aepaed for submission to the SEC, are
prepared in compliance with Philippine FinanciapBeing Standards (PFRS). PFRS also
includes Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) ddlilippine Interpretations from

10



International Financial Reporting Interpretationoon@nittee (IFRIC) issued by the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards CoundR®§).

Changes in Accounting Policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent titdse of the previous financial year
except for the following amended PFRS and PAS, whiere adopted on January 1, 2012.

* Amendments to PFRS Financial Instruments. Disclosures - Transfers of Financial
Assets
The amendments require additional disclosures afinahcial assets that have been
transferred but not derecognized to enhance theerstahding of the relationship
between those assets that have not been derecoa@ndetheir associated liabilities. In
addition, the amendments require disclosures abmrtinuing involvement in
derecognized assets to enable users of finana@nsénts to evaluate the nature of, and
risks associated with, the entity’s continuing ilwement in those derecognized assets.
The amendments affect disclosures only and havenpact on the Group’s financial
position or performance.

«  Amendments to PAS 1Pncome Taxes - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets

This amendment to PAS 12 clarifies the determimabd deferred tax on investment
property measured at fair value. The amendmenbtdaotes a rebuttable presumption
that the carrying amount of investment property sneed using the fair value model in
PAS 40,Investment Property, will be recovered through sale and, accordingdguires
that any related deferred tax should be measurea ‘sale’ basis. The presumption is
rebutted if the investment property is depreciabid it is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially alltieé economic benefits in the
investment property over time (‘use’ basis), ratttemn through sale. Furthermore, the
amendment introduces the requirement that defeta®@don non-depreciable assets
measured using the revaluation model in PAS Riperty, Plant and Equipment,
always be measured on a sale basis of the asset.

The Group has parcels of land under PAS 16 cawmeter the revaluation model. These
assets are all classified as ordinary assets ¢ome tax purposes. As the jurisdiction in
which the Group operates does not have a diffdeentate for ‘sale’ or ‘use’ basis of
assets classified as ordinary assets for incomeptagoses, the amendment has no
impact on the consolidated financial statementh®iGroup.

New Accounting Standards, Interpretations and AmesTds

to Existing Standards Effective Subsequent to Déesr81, 2012

The Group will adopt the following standards, ipretations and amendments to existing
standards enumerated below when these becomeiedfedExcept as otherwise indicated,
the Group does not expect the adoption of theswlatds, interpretations and amendments
to existing standards to have a significant impaxcthe consolidated financial statements.

Effective in 2013

« Amendments to PFRS Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities
These amendments require an entity to disclosen#ton about rights of set-off and
related arrangements (such as collateral agreejnente new disclosures are required
for all recognized financial instruments that ast-aff in accordance with PAS 32,
Financial Instruments. Presentation - Classification of Rights Issues. These disclosures
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also apply to recognized financial instruments #rat subject to an enforceable master
netting arrangement or ‘similar agreement’, irresppe of whether they are set-off in
accordance with PAS 32. The amendments requinéiesnto disclose, in a tabular
format unless another format is more appropridte,following minimum quantitative
information:

a) The gross amounts of those recognized financiatassd recognized financial
liabilities;
b) The amounts that are set-off in accordance withdfiteria in PAS 32 when
determining the net amounts presented in the balsineet;
c) The net amounts presented in the balance sheet;
d) The amounts subject to an enforceable master gettirangement or similar
agreement that are not otherwise included in (byepincluding:
I. Amounts related to recognized financial instrumehtt do not meet some
or all of the offsetting criteria in PAS 32; and
ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (includicgsh collateral); and
e) The net amount after deducting the amounts inr@h the amounts in (c) above.

This is presented separately for financial assadsfimancial liabilities recognized at the
end of the balance sheet period. The amendmenBFRS 7 are to be applied
retrospectively and are effective for annual pesidebginning on or after January 1,
2013. The amendments affect disclosures only awk o impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance.

PFRS 10Consolidated Financial Statements

PFRS 10 replaces the portion of PAS Zignsolidated and Separate Financial
Satements, that addresses the accounting for consolidatezhéial statements. It also
includes the issues raised in SIC Consolidation - Soecial Purpose Entities. PFRS 10
establishes a single control model that appliealt@ntities including special purpose
entities. The changes introduced by PFRS 10 wijuire management to exercise
significant judgment to determine which entitiese arontrolled, and therefore, are
required to be consolidated by a parent, compairigd thve requirements that were in
PAS 27. The standard becomes effective for anpeabds beginning on or after
January 1, 2013.

A reassessment of control was performed by the @ompn accordance with the
provisions of PFRS 10. The Company determined tthette will be no change in the
composition of subsidiaries currently includedhe tonsolidated financial statements.

PFRS 11Joint Arrangements

PFRS 11 replaces PAS 3hterests in Joint Ventures, and SIC 13,Jointly Controlled
Entities - Non-Monetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11 removes the option to
account for jointly controlled entities using proponate consolidation. Instead, jointly
controlled entities that meet the definition oban} venture must be accounted for using
the equity method. The standard becomes effe@tivannual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013.

PFRS 12Disclosure of Interest with Other Entities

PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures relatedotwsolidated financial statements that
were previously in PAS 27, as well as all the disales that were previously included in
PAS 31 and PAS 28nvestments in Associates. These disclosures relate to an entity’s
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interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,@ates and structured entities. A number
of new disclosures are also required. The stanb@cdmes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

Adoption of PFRS 12 will affect disclosures onlydanave no impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance.

PFRS 13Fair Value Measurement

PFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidanceruR&RSs for all fair value

measurements. PFRS 13 does not change when anisntequired to use fair value,
but rather provides guidance on how to measuresédire under PFRS when fair value is
required or permitted.

This standard should be applied prospectively abhebeginning of the annual period in
which it is initially applied. Its disclosure regements need not be applied in
comparative information provided for periods befmiéal application of PFRS 13.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of twgphis standard, but based on
preliminary analyses, no material impact is expdctpart from additional disclosures
required by the standard.

Amendments to PAS Rresentation of Financial Statements - Presentation of Items of
Other Comprehensive Income or OCI

The amendments to PAS 1 change the grouping olif@msented in OCI. Items that
can be reclassified (or “recycled”) to profit osfoat a future point in time (for example,
upon derecognition or settlement) will be presemsigiarately from items that will never
be recycled. The amendment becomes effectiveniouna periods beginning on or after
July 1, 2012. The amendments will be applied sgteatively and will result to the
modification of the presentation of items of OCIThe amendments affect presentation
only and have no impact on the Group'’s financiaipon or performance.

Amendment to PAS 1&mployee Benefits (Revised)

Amendments to PAS 19 range from fundamental chasgels as removing the corridor

mechanism and the concept of expected returns am gdsets to simple clarifications
and rewording. The revised standard also requieg disclosures such as, among
others, a sensitivity analysis for each significantuarial assumption, information on

asset-liability matching strategies, duration ot tdefined benefit obligation, and

disaggregation of plan assets by nature and risk. dmendments become effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1320Q@nce effective, the Group has to
apply the amendments retroactively to the earbesbd presented.

The Group reviewed its existing employee benefitd determined that the amended
standard has significant impact on its accountmgrétirement benefits. The Group
obtained the services of an external actuary topcdenthe impact to the financial

statements upon adoption of the standard. The atzdmelow are expected to increase
(decrease) as follows:
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Consolidated balance sheets

As at As at
December 31, 2012 January 1, 2012
Net retirement obligations R24,892,273 R25,088,27
Deferred income tax asset 7,467,682 7,518,983
Retained earnings (17,424,591) (17,544,295)
Consolidated statements of comprehensive income

2012 2011
Net retirement benefits cost (R786,417) (B608),38
Income tax expense 235,925 180,116
Net income for the year 550,492 420,270
Other comprehensive income (430,788) (7,183,143)
Total comprehensive income 119,704 (6,762,873)

Amendment to PAS 2%&eparate Financial Satements (Revised)

As a consequence of the issuance of the new PFR&IA®PFRS 12, what remains of
PAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiariesjnily controlled entities, and
associates in the separate financial statemente amendment becomes effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 13201

Amendment to PAS 28nvestments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Revised)

As a consequence of the issuance of the new PFR&n@l1PFRS 12, PAS 28,
Investments in Associates, has been renamed PAS 28yestments in Associates and
Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the equity netticanvestments in joint
ventures in addition to associates. The amendbeumes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 2@&ripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface
Mine

This interpretation applies to waste removal c§'stisipping costs”) that are incurred in
surface mining activity during the production phasehe mine (“production stripping
costs”). The interpretation becomes effective donual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013. The new interpretation is n@vaaht to the Group.

Effectivein 2014

Amendments to PAS 3Ejnancial Instruments. Presentation - Offsetting Financial

Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the meaning of “currentlg hdegally enforceable right to set-
off” and also clarify the application of the PAS &&fsetting criteria to settlement

systems (such as central clearing house system&}hwdpply gross settlement
mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The amendntenPAS 32 are to be

retrospectively applied for annual periods begignom or after January 1, 2014. The
amendments affect presentation only and have nadmpn the Group’s financial

position or performance.
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Effective in 2015

* PFRS 9Financial Instruments
PFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase omefilacement of PAS 39 and applies to
the classification and measurement of financiaé@sand liabilities as defined in PAS
39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Work on impairment of
financial instruments and hedge accounting is setijoing, with a view to replacing
PAS 39 in its entirety. PFRS 9 requires all finahassets to be measured at fair value at
initial recognition. A debt financial asset maf/the fair value option (FVO) is not
invoked, be subsequently measured at amortizedfdos held within a business model
that has the objective to hold the assets to dotlee contractual cash flows and its
contractual terms give rise, on specified dategagh flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstandin@ll other debt instruments are
subsequently measured at fair value through poofibss. All equity financial assets are
measured at fair value either through OCI or profitoss. Equity financial assets held
for trading must be measured at fair value thropgtiit or loss. For FVO liabilities, the
amount of change in the fair value of a liabilibhat is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in OCI. The remainder efctange in fair value is presented in
profit or loss, unless presentation of the fairugathange in respect of the liability’s
credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an actimg mismatch in profit or loss. All
other PAS 39 classification and measurement reapgings for financial liabilities have
been carried forward into PFRS 9, including the edded derivative separation rules
and the criteria for using the FVO. PFRS 9 isaite for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2015.

The adoption of the first phase of PFRS 9 may taveffect on the classification and
measurement of the Group’s financial assets, blitpetentially have no impact on the
classification and measurement of financial lidieii.

As of December 31, 2012, the Group did not condurctevaluation of the impact of
PFRS 9 in its consolidated financial statementee Group did not early adopt PFRS 9
in its
December 31, 2012 consolidated financial statemehite Group will assess the impact
of PFRS 9 in its consolidated financial statemarisn completion of all phases of
PFRS 9.

Effective date to be determined

* Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13greements for the Construction of Real Estate
This interpretation covers accounting for reveno associated expenses by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate direatlyhrough subcontractors. The SEC
and the FRSC have deferred the effectivity of thisrpretation until the final Revenue
standard is issued by the International Account8tgndards Board (IASB) and an
evaluation of the requirements of the final Revestamdard against the practices of the
Philippine real estate industry is completed. Adwp of the interpretation when it
becomes effective will not have any impact on tharicial statements of the Group.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle)

The Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2009-2011 cycle) contain non-urgent but necessary
amendments to PFRSs. The amendments are efféotiamnual periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2013 and are applied retrospégtiarlier application is permitted.
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PFRS 1First-time Adoption of PFRS - Borrowing Costs

The amendment clarifies that, upon adoption of PFR$ entity that capitalized
borrowing costs in accordance with its previous egally accepted accounting
principles, may carry forward, without any adjustipehe amount previously capitalized
in its opening balance sheet at the date of tiansiSubsequent to the adoption of PFRS,
borrowing costs are recognized in accordance wAs R3, Borrowing Costs. The
amendment does not apply to the Group as it igffiost-time adopter of PFRS.

PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Satements - Clarification of the Requirements for
Compar ative Information

The amendments clarify the requirements for conipaaformation that are disclosed
voluntarily and those that are mandatory due toospective application of an
accounting policy, or retrospective restatementrexlassification of items in the
financial statements. An entity must include corapae information in the related
notes to the financial statements when it voluhtgsrovides comparative information
beyond the minimum required comparative period.e @dditional comparative period
does not need to contain a complete set of finhrstedements. On the other hand,
supporting notes for the third balance sheet (m@angavhen there is a retrospective
application of an accounting policy, or retrospeetrestatement or reclassification of
items in the financial statements) are not requifdte amendments affect disclosures
only and have no impact on the Group’s financiaifon or performance.

PAS 16,Property, Plant and Equipment - Classification of Servicing Equipment

The amendment clarifies that spare parts, standegoypment and servicing equipment
should be recognized as property, plant and equipmben they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment and should be rezegnas inventory if otherwise. The
amendment will not have any significant impact de Group’s financial position or

performance.

PAS 32,Financial Instruments: Presentation - Tax Effect of Distributions to Holders of
Equity Instruments

The amendment clarifies that income taxes relatngjstributions to equity holders and
to transaction costs of an equity transaction amunted for in accordance with PAS
12. The Group expects that this amendment will reate any impact on its financial
position or performance.

PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Interim Financial Reporting and Segment
Information for Total Assets and Liabilities

The amendment clarifies that the total assets mmlilies for a particular reportable
segment need to be disclosed only when the amawnatsegularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker and there has been a ialatdrange from the amount
disclosed in the entity’s previous annual finansiatements for that reportable segment.
The amendment affects disclosures only and hasmpadt on the Group’s financial
position or performance.
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Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include tbeoants of the Company and the
following subsidiaries:

Country of Percentage of

Incorporation Ownership
Convenience Distribution, Inc. (CDI) Philippines 100
Store Sites Holding, Inc. (SSHI) Philippines 100

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Comeas an interest of more than one half of
the voting rights or otherwise has power to govetra financial and operating policies

through interlocking directorships such that suttsah benefits from the subsidiaries’

activities flow to the Company. Subsidiaries arkyfconsolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Company. They areaesolidated from the date on which
control ceases. The results of subsidiaries aeduar disposed of during the year are
included in profit or loss from the date of acqtisi or up to the date of the disposal, as
appropriate.

SSHI's capital stock, which is divided into 40% aoon shares and 60% preferred shares
are owned by the Company and by Philippine Severp@ation-Employees Retirement
Plan (PSC-ERP) through its trustee, Bank of théippmes Islands-Asset Management and
Trust Group (BPI-AMTG), respectively. These preder shares which accrue and pay
guaranteed preferred dividends and are redeembtile aption of the holder are recognized
as a financial liability in accordance with PFR8g®Note 15). The Company owns 100% of
SSHI's common shares, which, together with commeynrkanagement, gives the Company
control over SSHI.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries agpamed for the same balance sheet period as
the Company, using uniform accounting policieselobmpany transactions, balances and
unrealized gains and losses are eliminated in full.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cashadepis are short-term, highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to knowroants of cash with original maturities of
three months or less from the date of acquisitioth that are subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value.

Financial Instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a firsri@bility in the consolidated balance
sheet when it becomes a party to the contracte&igons of the instrument.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are geumed initially at fair value. Transaction
costs are included in the initial measurement bfisdncial assets and financial liabilities,
except for financial instruments measured at faiu® through profit or loss (FVPL).

All regular way purchases and sales of financiaksare recognized on the trade date, i.e.
the date the Group commits to purchase or selfitlaecial asset. Regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets require delivery of assgéhin the time frame generally established

by regulation in the market place.
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The Group classifies its financial assets as firrassets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM)
financial assets, available-for-sale (AFS) finahassets or loans and receivables. Financial
liabilities, on the other hand, are classified dkee financial liabilities at FVPL or other
financial liabilities. The classification depenais the purpose for which the financial assets
and financial liabilities were acquired. Managem@etermines the classification at initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriateevauates classification at every balance
sheet date.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group hdsancial assets or liabilities at FVPL,
HTM financial assets and AFS financial assets.

The Group’s financial instruments are as follows:

a. Loans and Receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative finanasdets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active markéioans and receivables are
subsequently carried either at cost or amortized tothe consolidated balance sheet.
Amortization is determined using the effective et rate method. Loans and
receivables are classified as current assets minais within 12 months from balance
sheet date. Otherwise, these are classified asun@mt assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables consists of eagh cash equivalents, short-term
investment, receivables and deposits (excluding deposits) as of December 31, 2012
and 2011 (see Note 29).

b. Other Financial Liabilities
This category pertains to financial liabilities thare neither held-for-trading nor
designated as at FVPL upon the inception of tHalilig. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently carried at amortized cost, taking adoount the impact of applying the
effective interest rate method of amortization éocretion) for any related premium,
discount and any directly attributable transactiosts.

Other financial liabilities are classified as cuntrdiabilities if maturity is within the
normal operating cycle of the Company and it dasshave unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 montingm balance sheet date. Otherwise,
these are classified as noncurrent liabilities.

The Group’s other financial liabilities consist bank loans, accounts payable and
accrued expenses, other current liabilities, amdutative redeemable preferred shares as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011 (see Note 29).

Determination of Fair Value

The fair value of financial instruments traded ativle markets at balance sheet date is based
on their quoted market price or dealer price quanat (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without deduction faartsaction costs. When current bid and ask
prices are not available, the price of the mosemedransaction provides evidence of the
current fair value as long as there has not beesigaificant change in economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not traded me&tive market, the fair value is determined
by using appropriate valuation techniques. Vatuatiechniques include present value
techniques, comparison to similar instruments foiclw observable market prices exist, and
other relevant valuation models.
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Day 1 Difference

Where the transaction price in a non-active makdtfferent from the fair value from other
observable current market transactions in the sersument or based on a valuation
technigue whose variables include only data frorseolable market, the Group recognizes
the difference between the transaction price aimdvédue (a Day 1 difference) in profit or
loss unless it qualifies for recognition as somieeottype of asset. In cases where use is
made of data which is not observable, the diffeedmetween the transaction price and model
value is only recognized in profit or loss when thputs become observable or when the
instrument is derecognized. For each transactioa, Group determines the appropriate
method of recognizing the Day 1 difference.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are efffand the net amount is reported in the
consolidated balance sheet if, and only if, thera currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intentiosettbe on a net basis, or to realize the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet dateemwhefimancial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairmesslon loans and receivables has been incurred, the
amount of impairment loss is measured as the diffeg between the financial asset's carrying
amount and the present value of estimated futusk taws (excluding future expected credit losses
that have not been incurred) discounted at thanfiiahasset’s original effective interest rate.(ithe
effective interest rate computed at initial rectign). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced
by the impairment loss, which is recognized in prarf loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidehirepairment exists for financial assets that are
individually significant and collectively for finaml assets that are not individually significant.
Objective evidence includes observable data thatesoto the attention of the Group about loss
events such as but not limited to significant ficiah difficulty of the counterparty, a breach of
contract, such as a default or delinquency in @#eor principal payments, probability that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financiabrganization. If it is determined that no objeeti
evidence of impairment exists for an individually apllectively assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in theugr of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and that group of financial assetscollectively assessed for impairment.

Assets that are individually assessed for impaitnaed for which an impairment loss is or
continue to be recognized are not included in gective assessment of impairment. The
impairment assessment is performed at each balsimeet date. For the purpose of a
collective evaluation of impairment, financial assare grouped on the basis of such credit
risk characteristics such as customer type, paymmstary, past-due status and term.

Loans and receivables, together with the relatedvahce, are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all deltal has been realized. If, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impainh was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any sulbseigreversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in profit or loss, to the extent that tarrying value of the asset does not exceed
its amortized cost at the reversal date.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a partadinancial asset or a part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

» the right to receive cash flows from the assetexqured;

» the Group retains the right to receive cash flovesnf the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material dglto a third party under a pass-through
arrangement; or

» the Group has transferred its right to receive dkwsts from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewaodisthe asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all risksd aewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to wveceiash flows from an asset and has
neither transferred nor retained substantiallyth# risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset isgrezed to the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuingoirement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measutbd kwer of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of considerdhiat the Group could be required to

repay.

Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the adtion under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or has expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced lanother from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of arsting liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated asrecdgnition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difface in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and reatizable value (NRV). Cost of
inventories is determined using the first-in, fiogtt method. NRYV is the selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimatedotosarketing and distribution.

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments and other current assets are primaoityprised of advances to suppliers,
deferred input value-added tax (VAT), prepaid resmtd prepaid store expenses.
Prepayments and other current assets that aretegpecbe realized for no more than 12
months after the balance sheet date are classafiedurrent assets; otherwise, these are
classified as other noncurrent assets.

Advances to suppliers are downpayments for aceuisitof property and equipment not yet
received. Once the property and equipment arevextethe asset is recognized together
with the corresponding liability. These are staedost less any impairment in value.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except for land, are chatecost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization, and any impairment in value.
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The initial cost of property and equipment consiststs purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to itskivay condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditures incurred after the assets hese put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, are recognizedofit pr loss in the period in which the
costs are incurred. In situations where it carclearly demonstrated that the expenditures
have resulted in an increase in the future econtenefits expected to be obtained from the
use of an item of property and equipment beyondoiiginally assessed standard of
performance, the expenditures are capitalized aglditional cost of the assets.

Construction in progress includes cost of consimacand other direct costs and is stated at
cost less any impairment in value. Constructioprmgress is not depreciated until such time
the relevant assets are completed and put intabpeal use.

Depreciation and amortization commence once thet@ase available for use. It ceases at the earlie
of the date that it is classified as noncurrenétissld-for-sale and the date the asset is derestn

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line methedr the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

Years
Buildings and improvements 10to 12
Store furniture and equipment 5to 10
Office furniture and equipment 3to5
Transportation equipment 3to5
Computer equipment 3

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the attunuseful life of the improvements,
ranging from five to ten years, or the term of ligse, whichever is shorter.

The assets’ estimated useful lives and depreciatiod amortization method are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the period and methfodiepreciation and amortization are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits fromitdras of property and equipment. When assets
are retired or otherwise disposed of, the costemalued amount and the related accumulated
depreciation and amortization and any impairmentailue are removed from the accounts and any
resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit osd. The revaluation increment in equity relatmg
the revalued asset sold is transferred to retagaecings.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the bootisdisposed

Land is carried at revalued amount less any impaitrim value. Revaluations shall be made
with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carmgyamount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair valuetbet end of the balance sheet period.
When the fair value of a revalued land differs matly from its carrying amount, a further
revaluation is required.

A revaluation surplus is recorded in OCI and cesliio the “Revaluation increment on land

- net of deferred tax” account in equity. Howeuerthe extent that the Group reverses a
revaluation deficit previously recognized in prafitloss, the increase is recognized in profit
or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognized i torofit or loss, except to the extent that it

offsets an existing surplus.
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Deposits

Deposits are amounts paid as guarantee in reldatononcancelable lease agreements
entered into by the Group. These deposits aregreped at cost and can be refunded or
applied to future billings.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measureditial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at lesst accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment loss, if any. Internally-generated mgible assets, if any, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expeedis reflected in profit or loss in which the
expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessé@ either finite or indefinite. Intangible asset
with finite lives are amortized over the useful eomic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible assey rha impaired. The amortization period and
amortization method for an intangible asset witfinte useful life is reviewed at least at each
balance sheet date. Changes in the expected ugefol the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the assetdsunted for by changing the amortization period
or method, as appropriate, and treated as changexounting estimates. The amortization expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recogudize profit or loss in the expense category coasist
with the function of the intangible asset. Intagibssets with indefinite useful lives are tested f
impairment annually at the cash generating uniell@nd are not amortized. The useful life of an
intangible asset with an indefinite life is revieha&nnually to determine whether indefinite usefel |
assessment continues to be supportable. If notchliamge in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective bagi&ains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the differenagebatthe net disposal proceeds, if any, and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognizedoiit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Software and Program Cost

Software and program cost, which are not specifi¢gdéntifiable and integral to a specific computer
hardware, are shown under “Goodwill and other nomelt assets” in the consolidated balance sheet.
These are carried at cost, less accumulated armotizand any impairment in value. Amortization
is computed on a straight-line method over thdimeged useful life of five years.

Goodwill

Goodwill, included in “Goodwill and other noncurtesissets” in the consolidated balance
sheet, represents the excess of the cost of ams#amuover the fair value of the businesses
acquired. Following initial recognition, goodwi# measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet dateemtigtie is an indication that its non-
financial assets such as property and equipmemipsits and intangible assets may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or whemaal impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Group makes an estimate of the assetoverable amount. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’sash generating unit’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value-in-use and is determinedafoindividual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independétihose from other assets or groups of
assets. For land, the asset’s recoverable amgtme land’s net selling price, which may be
obtained from its sale in an arm’s length transecti For goodwill, the asset’s recoverable
amount is its value-in-use. Where the carrying ammf an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and isewrdown to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future ¢asis Bire discounted to their present value,
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using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects curreatket assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the asset. Impairn@ssges, if any, are recognized in profit or
loss, except for revalued property and equipmernarevaluation was taken to OCI. In this
case, the impairment is also recognized in OCbupé amount of any previous revaluation.

For non-financial assets, excluding goodwill, asegsment is made at each balance sheet
date as to whether there is any indication thatipusly recognized impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If sucltation exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognized impairmensiasreversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the’sagsebverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. If that is theecdbe carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. That incceaseount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net ofes#gdion and amortization, had no
impairment loss been recognized for the assetanipus years. Such reversal is recognized
in profit or loss, unless the asset is carrieceafilued amount, in which case, the reversal is
treated as a revaluation increase. After suchrsaliethe depreciation charge is adjusted in
the future periods to allocate the asset’s revesedying amount, less any residual value, on
a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or radrequently if event or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value tmaympaired. Impairment is determined
for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amounthefcash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the goodwill relat&ghere the recoverable amount of the
cash-

generating unit or group of cash-generating urstéess than the carrying amount of the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generatiritg tm which goodwill has been allocated,
an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment Iess&ating to goodwill cannot be reversed
in future periods.

Deposits Payable

Deposits payable are amounts received from fragekjsstore operators and sub lessees as
guarantee in relation to various agreements entetedby the Group. These deposits are
recognized at cost and payable or applied to fuiuliegs.

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares

Cumulative redeemable preferred shares that extubdracteristics of a liability is
recognized as a financial liability in the consatied balance sheet, net of transaction cost.
The corresponding dividends on those shares argeathas interest expense in profit or loss.

Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue is recognized for cash receivedinicome not yet earned. Deferred
revenue is recognized as revenue over the lifdh@frévenue contract or upon delivery of
goods or services.

Equity
Common Sock
Common stock is measured at par value for all shaseied and outstanding.

Additional Paid-in Capital

When the shares are sold at premium, the differeertgeen the proceeds and the par value
is credited to the “Additional paid-in capital” ammt. When shares are issued for a
consideration other than cash, the proceeds aresurezh by the fair value of the
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consideration received. In case the shares aredds extinguish or settle the liability of the
Group, the shares shall be measured either adthedlue of the shares issued or fair value
of the liability settled, whichever is more religldeterminable.

Retained Earnings

Retained earnings represent the cumulative balafgeeriodic net income or loss and
changes in accounting policy. When the retainediegs account has a debit balance, it is
called “deficit.” A deficit is not an asset but adiiction from equity.

Treasury Stock

Treasury stock is stated at acquisition cost ardeducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sakjance or cancellation of the Group’s
own equity instruments.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is @btdthat the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measelradly. The Group has assessed its
revenue

arrangements against the criteria enumerated uR&& 18, Revenue Recognition, and
concluded that it is acting as principal in allaaigements, except for its sale of consigned
goods. The following specific recognition critenaust also be met before revenue is
recognized:

Merchandise Sales

Revenue from merchandise sales is recognized whersignificant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have passed to the buyererRie is measured at the fair value of
the consideration received, excluding discountsyng, rebates and sales taxes.

Franchise

Franchise fee is recognized upon execution of thiechise agreement and performance of
initial services required under the franchise agre®. Franchise revenue is recognized in
the period earned.

Mar keting
Marketing income is recognized when service is eead. In case of marketing support
funds, revenue is recognized upon start of promatiactivity for the suppliers.

Rental
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-liasi®over the term of the lease.

Commission
Commission income is recognized upon the sale $igned goods.

Interest
Interest income is recognized as it accrues bas¢deoeffective interest rate method.

Costs and Expenses Recognition
Costs of merchandise sold are recognized in poofibss at the point of sale. Expenses are
recognized in profit or loss upon utilization oétkervices or when they are incurred.

Other Comprehensive Income

Other comprehensive income comprises items of ieca@md expense (including items
previously presented under the statement of chaimgeguity) that are not recognized in
profit or loss for the year in accordance with PFRS
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Retirement Benefits

Retirement benefits cost is determined using thegepted unit credit actuarial valuation
method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognaeihcome or expense when the net
cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and loBsesach individual plan at the end of the
previous balance sheet year exceeded 10% of tHeemigf the present value of the
retirement obligations and the fair value of theplan assets as of that date. These gains or
losses are recognized over the expected averageniag working lives of the employees
participating in the plan.

Past service cost is recognized as an expensefih @rloss on a straight-line basis over the
average period until the benefits become vestethelbenefits are already vested following
the introduction of, or changes to the plan, pastise cost is recognized immediately.

The net retirement obligation is the aggregate e present value of the retirement
obligation and actuarial gains and losses not nr@izedg reduced by past service cost not yet
recognized and the fair value of the net plan asset of which obligations are to be settled
directly. If such aggregate is negative, the assateasured at the lower of such aggregate
or the aggregate of cumulative unrecognized nefaaietl losses and past service cost and the
present value of any economic benefits availabl¢hen form of refund from the plan or
reductions in the future contributions to the plan.

Leases

Finance leases, which transfer to the lessee sulaha all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset, are capitalized at theptime of the lease at the fair value of the
leased property or, if lower, at the present vadighe minimum lease payments. Lease
payments are apportioned between the interest iea@md reduction of the lease receivable
SO as to achieve a constant rate of interest orrdhmining balance of the receivable.
Interest income is recognized directly in profiti@ss.

Leases where the lessor retains substantiallyhallrisks and rewards of ownership of the
asset are classified as operating leases. OpgHatases are recognized as an expense in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over thasketerm.

The determination of whether an arrangement iscantains a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an asm@sef whether the fulfillment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specfiet aor assets and the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. A reassesssiemde after inception of the lease only if
one of the following applies:

a. there is a change in contractual terms, other tharenewal or extension of the
arrangement; or

b. arenewal option is exercised or extension is gdininless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term; or

c. there is a change in the determination of whethiéitliinent is dependent on a specified asset; or

d. there is a substantial change to the asset.

* Where a re-assessment is made, lease accountihg@manence or cease from the date when

the change in circumstance gave rise to the ressigsgmnt for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) above, and the
date of renewal or extension for scenario (b).
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Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acdfios, construction or production of an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial pefitiche to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of thpe@s/e assets. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costssist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing ahfis.

Foreign Currency-denominated Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are initially resed at the exchange rate at the date of
transaction. Outstanding foreign currency-denoieithanonetary assets and liabilities are
translated using the applicable exchange rate laht@& sheet date. Exchange differences
arising from translation of foreign currency momgtdems at rates different from those at

which they were originally recorded are recognigegdrofit or loss.

Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for thgent and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid tdakation authorities. The tax rates and

tax laws used to compute the amount are thosehidnae been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred Income Tax

Deferred income tax is recognized for all tempordifferences at the balance sheet date
between the tax bases of assets and liabilitiesthen carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized falt taxable temporary differences.
Deferred income tax assets are recognized forealudtible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient futuaadble profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utllize

Deferred income tax relating to items recognizeddlly in equity is recognized in profit or
loss.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax asseteviewed at each balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer @it that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the defed income tax assets to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are re&skas each balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become prefihalt sufficient future taxable profits will
allow the deferred income tax assets to be recdvere

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are orealsat the tax rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the asset is realizet@tiability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantivegted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities areetfi$ a legally enforceable right exists to set

off current tax assets against current tax liabgiand the deferred income taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority
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VAT

Input VAT is the 12% indirect tax paid by the Groumpthe course of the Group’s trade or
business on local purchase of goods or servicekjdimg lease or use of property, from a
VAT-registered entity. For acquisition of capigdods over B1,000,000, the related input
taxes are deferred and amortized over the usétubfithe asset or 60 months, whichever is
shorter, commencing on the date of acquisitionfeed input VAT which is expected to
be utilized for more than 12 months after the badasheet date is included under “Goodwill
and other noncurrent assets” account in the caregelil balance sheet.

Output VAT pertains to the 12% tax due on the sélmerchandise and lease or exchange of
taxable goods or properties or services by the &rou

If at the end of any taxable month the output VATe=ds the input VAT, the excess shall
be paid by the Group. Any outstanding balance ctuded under “Accounts payable and

accrued expenses” account in the consolidated talsimeet. If the input VAT exceeds the
output VAT, the excess shall be carried over togheceeding month or months. Excess
input VAT is included under “Prepayments and otloerrent assets” account in the

consolidated balance sheet. Input VAT on capitalds may, at the option of the Group, be
refunded or credited against other internal reveaxes, subject to certain tax laws.

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognizedthetashount of VAT.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is calculated Wigidg the net income or (loss) for the year
attributable to common shareholders by the weightetage number of shares outstanding
during the year, excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings (loss) per share is calculatedlibiding the net income or (loss) for the
year attributable to common shareholders by theghted average number of shares
outstanding during the year, excluding treasuryreshand adjusted for the effects of all
potential dilutive common shares, if any.

In determining both the basic and diluted earnifigss) per share, the effect of stock
dividends, if any, is accounted for retrospectively

Segment Reporting

Operating segments are components of an entitwlidch separate financial information is
available and evaluated regularly by managemedeagiding how to allocate resources and
assessing performance. The Group considers the gp@ration as its primary activity and
its only business segment. Franchising, rentingroperties and commissioning on bills
payment services are considered an integral pdheoftore operations.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Group l@esent obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event; (b) it is probablg #ra outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle thégattion; and (c) a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. If the effecthe time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the exqukefitture cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the timgeval money and, where appropriate, the
risks specific to the liability. Where discountirggused, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognized as interest eepewhen the Group expects a provision
or loss to be reimbursed, the reimbursement isgrezed as a separate asset only when the
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reimbursement is virtually certain and its amownéstimable. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in profit or loss, net oy asimbursement.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in thenswlidated financial statements. They are

disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow e$gurces embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent assets are not recognizedercamsolidated financial statements but
disclosed when an inflow of economic benefit ishaiole. Contingent assets are assessed
continually to ensure that developments are appatgby reflected in the consolidated
financial statements. If it has become virtuakytain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the asset and the related income acegmized in the consolidated financial
statements.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Post year-end events that provide additional in&drom about the Group’s position at the
balance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflentéte consolidated financial statements.
Post year-end events that are non-adjusting evardgsdisclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

Use of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimatesnd Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial st&tets in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumfitat affect the amounts reported
in the consolidated financial statements and noteShe judgments, estimates and
assumptions used in the consolidated financiakstahts are based upon management’s
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstancesfdmlance sheet date. Future events may
occur which can cause the assumptions used inrggrat those judgments, estimates and
assumptions to change. The effects of any changéde reflected in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as they becomsoreably determinable.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Group’s accountidices, management has made the

following judgments, apart from those involving igstions, which have the most
significant effect on amounts recognized in thesodidated financial statements:

Determination of Functional Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlyingrastances relevant to the Company,
the functional currency of the Company has beeeargehed to be the Peso. The Peso is the
currency of the primary economic environment in ebhthe Company operates. It is the
currency that mainly influences the revenue, castsexpenses of the Company.

Classification of Financial Instruments

The Group classifies a financial instrument, oratenponents, on initial recognition as a
financial asset, liability or equity instrument Bccordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement and the definitions oharfcial asset, liability or equity instrument.

The substance of a financial instrument, rathen itmlegal form, governs its classification

in the consolidated balance sheet.
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Financial assets are classified as financial assetsVPL, HTM financial assets, AFS
financial assets and loans and receivables. Haahabilities, on the other hand, are
classified as financial liabilities at FVPL and etHinancial liabilities.

The Group determines the classification at initggognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this classification argbalance sheet date.

» The Group’s financial instruments consist of loansl receivables and other financial liabilities
(see Note 29).

Classification of Leases

a. Finance lease as lessor
The Group entered into a sale and leaseback triéamsagith an armored car service
provider where it has determined that the risks eswlards related to the armored
vehicles leased out will be transferred to thedess the end of the lease term. As such,
the lease agreement was accounted for as a fihease (see Note 26).

b. Operating lease as lessee
The Group entered into various property leasesravitehas determined that the risks
and rewards related to the properties are retawigd the lessors. As such, the lease
agreements were accounted for as operating lessedNpte 26).

c. Operating lease as lessor
The Company entered into property subleases oleated properties. The Company
determined that it retains all the significant ssknd rewards of these properties which
are leased out on operating leases (see Note 26).

Impairment of Non-financial Assets Other than Goodwill

The Group assesses whether there are any indicaftarspairment for all non-financial
assets, other than goodwill, at each balance slaet These non-financial assets (property
and equipment, rent deposits, and software andramogost) are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amonnatg not be recoverable. The factors that
the Group considers important which could trigger impairment review include the
following:

» significant underperformance relative to expectistbhical or projected future operating
results;

» significant changes in the manner of use of theliaed assets or the strategy for overall
business;

» significant negative industry or economic trendgj a

» decline in appraised value.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group hasidwttified any indicators or
circumstances that would indicate that the Groygtgperty and equipment, rent deposits
and software and program costs are impaired. Timogmpairment losses on these non-
financial assets were recognized in the years eDeéeember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. The
carrying value of these non-financial assets ®Bows:

2012 2011
Property and equipment (Note 8) P2,276,921,044 B1,946,032,976
Rent deposits (Note 9) 183,893,042 155,379,984
Software and program costs (Note 10) 1,183,651 2,484,126
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Estimates

The key assumptions concerning the future and dtégrsources of estimation uncertainty
at the balance sheet date that have a significsiabf causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities follow:

Determination of Fair Values

The fair value for financial instruments tradedattive markets at the balance sheet date is
based on their quoted market price or dealer pyictations (bid price for long positions
and ask price for short positions), without anyu#ebn for transaction costs. When current
bid and asking prices are not available, the patéhe most recent transaction provides
evidence of the current fair value as long as thexe not been a significant change in
economic circumstances since the time of the tciimsa

For all other financial instruments not listed mactive market, the fair value is determined
by using appropriate valuation techniques. Valumtechniques include net present value
techniques, comparison to similar instruments fdiclw market observable prices exist,
options pricing models, and other relevant valuatredels.

Note 29 presents the fair values of the financiatruments and the methods and
assumptions used in estimating their fair values.

Impairment of Loans and Receivables

The Group reviews its loans and receivables at batdnce sheet date to assess whether a
provision for impairment should be recognized iofgror loss or loans and receivables
balance should be written off. In particular, jotent by management is required in the
estimation of the amount and timing of future céieawvs when determining the level of
allowance required. Such estimates are basedsumasions about a number of factors and
actual results may differ, resulting in future ches to the allowance. Moreover,
management evaluates the presence of objectiveereadof impairment which includes
observable data that comes to the attention ofatweip about loss events such as but not
limited to significant financial difficulty of theounterparty, a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or principal pegnts, probability that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial re-organization

« In addition to specific allowances against indivatly significant loans and receivables, the
Group also makes a collective impairment allowamgminst exposures which, although not
specifically identified as requiring a specificaallance, have a greater risk of default than when
originally granted. This takes into consideratiba credit risk characteristics such as customee,ty
payment history, past due status and term.

The carrying value of loans and receivables amauté869,050,177 and B710,118,389 as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (sde R®). Allowance for impairment on
loans and receivables amounted to B8,227,26 ¥ a/488 483 as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively (see Note 5). Provision for ampent amounted to R788,778, B
3,810,991 and B1,622,883 in 2012, 2011 and 2@%pectively (see Notes 5 and 19).

Declinein Inventory Value

Provisions are made for inventories whose NRV aveel than their carrying cost. This
entails determination of replacement costs andscaostessary to make the sale. The
estimates are based on a number of factors, subtasot limited to the age, status and
recoverability of inventories.
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The carrying value of inventories amounted to R926,563 and R519,258,936 as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Bpte No provisions for decline in
inventory value were recognized in 2012, 2011 &biD2

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Software and Program Cost

The Group estimates the useful lives of its prgpemd equipment and software and
program cost based on a period over which the assetexpected to be available for use
and on collective assessment of industry practicgstnal evaluation and experience with
similar arrangement. The estimated useful livegroperty and equipment and software and
program cost are revisited at the end of each balasheet period and updated if
expectations differ materially from previous estiesa

Property and equipment, net of accumulated degreciand amortization, amounted to
R2,276,921,044 and B1,946,032,976 as of DeceBihe2012 and 2011, respectively (see
Note 8). The carrying amount of software and progmmst amounted to R1,183,651 and B
2,484,126 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, regplyctsee Note 10).

Revaluation of Land

The Group's parcels of land are carried at revalmdunts, which approximate its fair
values at the date of the revaluation, less angexyent accumulated impairment losses.
The valuations of land are performed by independ@nptraisers. Revaluations are made
every three to five years or more frequently asssary, to ensure that the carrying amounts
do not differ materially from those which would etermined using fair values at balance
sheet date.

The last appraisal made on the Group’s parcelaraf ivas on February 5, 2007, where it
resulted to an appraisal increase of B3,229,885,0hB1,384,249 deferred income tax
liability. The Group believes that carrying valoé the revalued parcels of land as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011 amounting to P44,481d06@s not materially differ from its
fair value as of these balance sheet dates (see8)lot

Impairment of Goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impairédeast on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of th&hegenerating units to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use amoequires management to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the casheggimg unit and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the presentevaf those cash flows.

Based on the assessment made by the Group, thewe impairment of goodwill as the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating uniteess the carrying amount of the unit,
including goodwill as of December 31, 2012 and 20Ilhe carrying value of goodwill
amounted to
B65,567,524 as of December 31, 2012 and 201INs&e10). No impairment losses were
recognized in 2012, 2011 and 2010 (see Note 10).

Estimation of Retirement Benefits

The determination of the net retirement obligateomd related expense is dependent on
management’s assumptions used by the actuary iktulaihg such amounts. Those

assumptions are described in Note 24 and inclutdeng others, discount rates per annum,
expected annual rate of return on plan assets aladysrate increase. Actual results that
differ from the Group’s assumptions are accumulated amortized over future periods and
therefore, generally affect the recognized expearse recorded obligation in such future
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periods. While the Group believes that the assiomgtare reasonable and appropriate,
significant differences in the actual experiencsignificant changes in the assumptions may
materially affect the retirement obligations.

The Group’s net retirement obligations amounte®®d,120,420 and B65,192,720 as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively (see Rdde Retirement benefits cost
amounted to
B16,206,912, B12,368,401 and B11,220,501 in,Z0PL and 2010, respectively (see Notes
23 and 24).

Provisions and Contingencies

The Group has pending legal cases. The Groupimast of the probable costs for the
resolution of these legal cases has been developszhsultation with in-house and outside
legal counsels and is based upon the analysis eofptitential outcomes. It is possible,
however, that future results of operations couldféected by changes in the estimates or in
the effectiveness of strategies relating to theseqedings.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group haggioo for litigation losses amounting
to

B7,066,290 and is reported as part of “Others’eurnfthccounts payable and accrued
expenses” in the consolidated balance sheets (et I®). Provisions and contingencies
are further explained in Note 34.

Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognized foreatporary deductible differences to the
extent that it is probable that sufficient futuagdble profits will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utliz®anagement has determined based on
business forecast of succeeding years that thexeaggh taxable profits against which the
recognized deferred income tax assets will bezedli

The Group’s recognized deferred income tax asspisuated to B 49,036,340 and B
47,717,236 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, reegplgqsee Note 27).

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investment

2012 2011
Cash on hand and in banks P367,285,569 P394,696,749
Cash equivalents 48,000,000 -

P415,285,569 P394,696,749

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective dapksit rates. Cash equivalents are made
for varying periods up to three months dependinghenmmediate cash requirements of the
Group and earn interest at the respective caslvaeut rates.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, short-term imvest amounting to B10,632,115 and
R10,409,907, respectively, pertains to time depekich has a maturity date of more than
90 days.

Interest income from savings and deposits accoamdsshort-term investment amounted to
B2,857,696, B2,911,480 and B3,675,553 in 20121 and 2010, respectively (see Note 22).
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5.

Receivables

2012 2011
Franchisees P184,444,213 B89,638,852
Suppliers 139,512,975 99,035,030
Store operators 19,452,194 12,878,514
Employees 12,993,209 15,407,124
Rent 5,638,673 7,068,009
Due from PhilSeven Foundation, Inc. (PFI)
(Note 25) 1,637,912 173,945
2012 2011
Current portion of:
Notes receivable B1,403,344 B1,328,983
Lease receivable - net of unearned interest
income amounting to B197,221 and
B291,204 as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively (Note 26) 1,394,060 1,300,075
Insurance receivable 614,135 319,208
Others 15,734,389 19,578,030
382,825,104 246,727,770
Less allowance for impairment 8,227,261 7,438,483

P374,597,843

P239,289,287

The classes of receivables of the Group are asaell

* Franchisees - pertains to receivables for the torgnoans obtained by the franchisees
at the start of their store operations, cash dépasid deposits still in transit, negative
balance on franchisees’ holding account and invgntariation noted during monthly
store audit.

e Suppliers - pertains to receivables from the Grsugpippliers for display allowances,
annual volume discount and commission income frdfarént service providers.

e Store operators - pertains to the advances givethitd party store operators under
service agreements (see Note 32).

 Employees - includes car loans, salary loans astl shortages from stores which are
charged to employees.

 Rent - pertains to receivables from sublease ageewith third parties, which are
based on an agreed fixed monthly rate or as agneed by the parties.

* Notes receivable - pertains to three notes reckvesued by third party borrowers
evidenced by written promises of payment with thoeBve year terms maturing in 2013
and 2014. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, urtedrdiscount amounted to B
128,251 and B256,502, respectively. Accretiomigrest income amounted to B128,251,
R186,596 and B241,113in 2012, 2011 and 201Pectsely (see Note 10).

« Lease receivable - pertains to a five-year sale laadeback finance lease agreement
entered by the Company with an armored car sepric@der (see Note 26).

Receivables are noninterest-bearing and are géneraB0 to 90 day terms except for lease
receivable with a 7% interest rate per annum (see R6).

Impairment on receivables is based on individugessment of accounts. Movements in

allowance for impairment are as follows:
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2012

Suppliers Others Total
Beginning balances R1,777,954 R5,660,529 P7,438,483
Provision for the year (Note
19) 500,000 288,778 788,778
Ending balances B2,277,954 B5,949,307 B8,227,261

2011

Suppliers Others Total
Beginning balances P381,786 PB3,245,706 R3,627,492
Provision for the year (Note
19) 1,396,168 2,414,823 3,810,991
Ending balances R1,777,954 PR5,660,529 PR7,438,483
Inventories

2012 2011

At cost (Note 18):

Warehouse merchandise

Store merchandise

P415,590,676
311,395,887

P271,683,488
247,575,448

P726,986,563

P519,258,936

Prepayments and Other Current Assets

2012 2011
Advances to suppliers B109,149,544 PB47,628,097
Current portion of:

Deferred input VAT 64,041,931 43,844,078
Prepaid rent (Note 10) 42,241,979 36,729,050
Deferred lease (Notes 10 and 26) 421,194 2,425,557
Prepaid store expenses 11,625,230 11,354,992
Advances for expenses 6,600,314 5,176,635

Prepaid taxes 3,558,689 -
Supplies 3,256,203 1,825,459
Dues and subscription 2,983,004 1,126,881
Prepaid repairs and maintenance 2,214,838 1,992,019
Prepaid uniform 1,704,252 2,145,413
Others 11,210,709 7,273,957

P259,007,887

P161,522,138

Deferred input VAT pertains to the acquisition afpdal goods over B1,000,000 which are
being amortized over the useful life or 60 monthkichever is shorter, commencing on the

date of acquisition.
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8.

Property and Equipment

Movements in property and equipment are as follows:

2012
Land- Store Office
at revalued Buildings and Furniture and Furniture and Transportation Computer Leasehold Construction
amount Improvements  Equipment Equipment Equipment  Equipment Improvements  In-Progress Total
Costs/Revalued Amount
Beginning balances P44,481,000 P110,179,849 P1,307,026,58254,106,297 P38,988,602 P176,359,215 BR978,634,236 PR72,806F3,182,582,451
Additions - 7,975,000 449,148,981 129,124,221 8,818,393 36,162,964 127,255,239 100,190,195 8B%63
Retirements - - (15,762,339) (3,859,420)  (4,160,819)  (965,837) (9,907,251) —  (34,655,666)
Reclassifications — — — — — — 105,627,648 (105,627,648) —
Ending balances 44,481,000 118,154,849 1,740,413,144  579,371,09843,646,176 211,556,342 1,201,609,872 67,369,2906401,778
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Beginning balances - 64,958,094 425,110,107 194,721,454 15,683,194 105,282,852 430,793,774 15;236,549,475
Depreciation and amortization
(Note 19) - 5,223,497 281,563,647 65,818,055 8,676,760 30,322,248 136,182,718 —527,786,925
Retirements — —  (15,762,339)  (3,859,420) (4,160,819) (965,837)  (9,907,251) — _ (34,655,666)
Ending balances — 70,181,591 690,911,415 256,680,089 20,199,135 134,639,263 557,069,241 15729,680,734
Net Book Values P44,481,000 P47,973,258 P1,089,329 P322,691,009 P23,447,041 PR76,917,079 B538,912,983 PR172,98682,276,921,044
2011
Land- Store Office
at revalued Buildings and Furniture and Furniture and Transportation Computer Leasehold Construction
amount Improvements  Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Improvements  In-Progress Total
Costs/Revalued Amount
Beginning balances P44,481,000 P109,312,9117B847,311 P419,230,096 R37,624,956 P248,482,190 PR828894, P41,487,041 R2,906,359,589
Additions - 866,938 348,799,410 106,667,047 16,034,780 53,854,534 1721189 69,351,878 717,091,736
Disposals - — (218,620,219) (71,994,025) (14,671,134) (125,977,509) (9,605,987) — (440,868,874)
Reclassifications — — — 203,179 — — 37,828,990  (38,032,169) —
Ending balances 44,481,000 110,179,849 1,307,026,5@54,106,297 38,988,602 176,359,215 978,634,236 ,808750 3,182,582,451
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization
Beginning balances — 60,016,925 455,617,362 209,862,824 24,284,740 TSBY0 349,305,607 -1,299,062,828
Depreciation and amortization
(Note 19) - 4,941,169 188,112,964 56,852,655 6,069,588 31,984,9 91,094,154 — 378,355,521
Disposals — — (218,620,219) (71,994,025) (14,671,134) (125,977,509) (9,605,987) —  (440,868,874)
Ending balances — 64,958,094 425,110,107 194,721,454 15,683,194  8a®H82 430,793,774 -1,236,549,475
Net Book Values P44,481,000 P45,221,755 P881,916,395 P2594884,8P23,305,408 P71,076,363 P547,840,462 R7ZB06R1,946,032,976

On February 5, 2007, the Group revalued its lanith wost amounting to B39,866,864 at
appraised value of P44,481,000, as determined pyofessionally qualified independent
appraiser. The appraisal increase of B3,229,866,0f B1,384,241 deferred income tax
liability, resulting from the revaluation was cretl to “Revaluation increment on land”
account under equity section of the consolidatddnoa sheets. The appraised value was
determined using the market data approach, whéhneirvalue of the land is based on sales
and listings of comparable properties registerdatiiwithe vicinity.

The carrying value of the Group’s capitalized iestramounted to nil and B13,130 as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011.

The cost of fully depreciated property and equipinibat are still being used in operations
amounted to B 232,325,091 and P 88,860,329 as akerdeer 31, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. No property and equipment are plddger treated as security to the
outstanding liabilities as of December 31, 2012 20i1.

9.

Deposits

2012 2011
Rent P183,893,042 PR155,379,984
Utilities (Notes 29 and 30) 33,663,791 29,267,868
Refundable (Notes 29 and 30) 25,843,670 26,789,004
Others (Notes 29 and 30) 6,017,558 4,527,970

P249,418,061 P215,964,826
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Refundable
Refundable deposits on rent are computed at aredrtiast as follows:

2012 2011

Face value of security deposits P48,602,936 PB27,391,286
Additions 2,248,407 25,186,036
Refunded (4,797,455) (3,974,386)
Unamortized discount (20,210,218) (21,813,932)
B25,843,670 B26,789,004

Movements in unamortized discount are as follows:

2012 2011

Beginning balance P21,813,932 PR15,585,657
Additions 496,227 8,616,062
Accretion (Note 22) (2,099,941) (2,387,787)
Ending balance P20,210,218 P21,813,932

10.  Goodwill and Other Noncurrent Assets

2012 2011

Noncurrent portion of:
Deferred input VAT

P115,865,751

P103,958,618

Deferred lease (Note 26) 15,281,651 15,266,788
Lease receivable - net of unearned interest
income amounting to 102,216 and
B299,438 as of December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively (Notes 26, 29 and 2,054,276 3,448,336
Note receivable (Notes 5, 29 and 30) 955,355 1,689,268
Prepaid rent - 6,134,227
Intangible assets:
Goodwill 65,567,524 65,567,524
Software and program cost 1,183,651 2,484,126
Garnished accounts (Note 34) 5,223,977 6,241,465
Others 2,357,417 1,670,993
B208,489,602 PB206,461,345

Deferred Lease
Deferred lease pertains to Day 1 loss recognizedetumdable deposits on rent, which is
amortized on a straight-line basis over the terrthefrelated leases.

Movements in deferred lease are as follows:

2012 2011
Beginning balance R17,692,345 P11,855,967
Additions 496,228 8,616,062
Less amortization (Note 26) 2,485,728 2,779,684
Ending balance 15,702,845 17,692,345
Less current portion 421,194 2,425,557
Noncurrent portion P15,281,651 B15,266,788




Goodwill

On March 22, 2004, the Group purchased the leadaigiits and store assets of Jollimart
Philippines Corporation (Jollimart) for a total ciheration of B130,000,000. The excess of
the acquisition cost over the fair value of theetssacquired was recorded as goodwill
amounting to B70,178,892. In 2008, the Groupgezed an impairment loss in goodwill
amounting to R4,611,368.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill was estichatesed on the value-in-use calculation
using cash flow projections from financial budgapgroved by senior management covering
a five year period. The pre-tax discount rate igdplo cash flow projections is 10.67% in
2012 and 10.22% in 2011. The cash flows beyondfitteeyear period are extrapolated
using a 3% growth rate in 2012 and 2011 whichéssédime as the long-term average growth
rate for the retail industry.

No store acquired from Jollimart was closed in 201& 2011, the Group has closed one
store out of the 25 remaining stores it purchasech fJollimart. No impairment loss was
recognized in 2012, 2011 and 2010.

Goodwill is allocated to the group of cash genatunit (CGU) which comprises the
working capital and property and equipment of ladl purchased stores’ assets.

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculatiorZ0i.2 and 2011 follow:

a. Sales and Cost Ratio
Sales and cost ratio are based on average valhes/ed in the three years preceding
the start of the budget period. These are incteager the budget period for anticipated
efficiency improvements. Sales are projected twease by two to three percent per
annum while the cost ratio is set at 68.00% - Aa@d sales per annum.

b. Discount Rates
Discount rates reflect management’s estimates ef rikks specific to the CGU.
Management computed for its weighted average dosamtal (WACC). In computing
for its WACC, the following items were considered:

* Average high and low range of average bank lendites as of year-end
* Yield on a 10-year Philippine zero coupon bondfastuation date

* Market risk premium

» Company relevered beta

* Alpharisk

c. Growth Rate Estimates
Rates are based on average historical growth raiehws consistent with the expected
average growth rate for the industry. Annual itndla and rate of possible reduction in
transaction count were also considered in detengigrowth rates used.

Management recognized that unfavorable conditiaugdcmaterially affect the assumptions

used in the determination of value in use. Anease of 6.10% and 0.52% in the discount
rates, or a reduction of growth rates by 3.00% B08%, would give a value in use equal to
the carrying amount of the cash generating unigdit? and 2011, respectively.
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Software and Program Cost

Movements in software and program cost are asvistlo

2012 2011

Cost:

Beginning balance £14,661,985 P14,661,985

Additions 190,000 —

Ending balance 14,851,985 14,661,985
Accumulated amortization:

Beginning balance 12,177,859 9,579,118

Amortization (Note 19) 1,490,475 2,598,741

Ending balance 13,668,334 12,177,859
Net book value £1,183,651 P2,484,126

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the remainingrigmation period of software and
program cost is eight and nine years, respectively.

Garnished Accounts

Garnished accounts pertain to the amount set agidiee Group, as required by the courts,
in order to answer for litigation claims should ttesults be unfavorable to the Group (see
Note 34).

11. Bank Loans

Bank loans represent unsecured Peso-denominateeteim borrowings from various local
banks, payable in lump-sum in 2012 and 2011 witluahinterest rates ranging from 3.30%
to 3.75%, 3.50% to 4.25% and 4.20% to 5.20% in 2Q021 and 2010, respectively, which
are repriced monthly based on market conditionise groceeds of these loans were used for
the operations of the Group.

Movements in bank loans are as follows:

2012 2011
B374,666,667 B320,000,000
210,000,000 230,000,000
(106,888,889) (175,333,333)
R477,777,778 B374,666,667

Beginning balance
Availments
Payments

Ending balance

Interest expense from these bank loans amounted®1%338,080, R 15,697,647 and R
16,033,249 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively [$ate 21). Interest payable amounted
to R1,173,579 and R1,174,528 as of December@P, @nd 2011, respectively (see Note 12).
The carrying value of the Group’s capitalized iestramounted to nil and B13,130 as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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12.  Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

2012

2011

Trade payable

R1,077,213,586 R1,066,740,769

Utilities 55,148,912 38,219,462
Rent (Notes 26) 51,355,557 47,263,813
Employee benefits 22,772,206 23,954,117
Outsourced services 14,531,473 12,461,025
Advertising and promotion 8,754,528 16,054,548
Bank charges 3,860,300 2,278,700
Security services 3,361,310 3,054,419
Interest (Note 11) 1,173,579 1,174,528
Others 23,118,538 32,736,076

P1,261,289,989 P1,243,937,457

The trade suppliers generally provide 15 or 30-degdit terms to the Group. Prompt
payment discounts ranging from 0.5% to 5.0% arerglyy a number of trade suppliers. All
other payables are due within 3 months.

13. Other Current Liabilities

2012 2011

Non-trade accounts payable P423,183,843 P188,758,358
Withholding taxes 26,913,387 22,974,557
Output VAT 25,064,839 19,205,290
Retention payable 24,673,598 18,688,531
Service fees payable 20,586,182 19,370,472
Royalty (Note 25) 12,579,753 10,353,333
Employee related liabilities 2,481,125 3,860,665
Current portion of deferred revenue on:

Exclusivity contract (Notes 16 and 32) 818,452 1,934,524

Finance lease (Notes 16 and 26) 589,569 589,567
Others 4,990,644 12,700,219

P541,881,392 PB298,435,516

Non-trade accounts payable pertains to payabseippliers of goods or services that forms
part of general and administrative expenses. Tlaesenoninterest-bearing and are due
within one year.

14.  Deposits Payable

2012 2011
Franchisees (Note 32) P89,860,690 P88,795,094
Service agreements (Note 32) 79,041,337 69,260,533
Rent 12,999,211 13,402,206

P181,901,238 B171,457,833
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15.

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares

Cumulative redeemable preferred shares, whichexteemable at the option of the holder,
represent the share of PSC-ERP through its tru®@B&AMTG, in SSHI's net assets
pertaining to preferred shares. PSC-ERP is edtittean annual “Guaranteed Preferred
Dividend” in the earnings of SSHI starting April 3002, the date when the 25% of the
subscription on preferred shares have been paat,dardance with the Corporation Code.

The guaranteed annual dividends shall be calculatedi paid in accordance with the
Shareholder's Agreement dated November 16, 200@hwvmiovides that the dividend shall
be determined by the BOD of SSHI using the prewgilmarket conditions and other
relevant factors. Further, the preferred sharelmaddthall not participate in the earnings of
SSHI except to the extent of guaranteed dividenus \ehatever is left of the retained
earnings will be declared as dividends in favor coimmon shareholders. Guaranteed
preferred dividends included under “Interest expénia the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income amounted to B258,750, BG27A0d B364,920 in 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively (see Note 21). Interest payamoleded as part of “Others” under “Other
current liabilities” in the consolidated balancests amounted to B348,750 and B327,000 as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

16.

Deferred Revenue
2012 2011
Noncurrent portion of:
Deferred revenue on exclusivity contracts
(Note 32) R446,429 R1,264,881
Deferred revenue on finance lease (Note 26) 687,829 1,277,398
Deferred revenue - others 1,508,921 1,515,203

P2,643,179 P4,057,482

Deferred Revenue on Exclusivity Contracts
Movements in deferred revenue on exclusivity cartsrare as follows:

2012 2011
Beginning balance B3,199,405 B5,133,929
Less amortization (Note 32) 1,934,524 1,934,524
Ending balance 1,264,881 3,199,405
Less current portion (Note 13) 818,452 1,934,524
Noncurrent portion P446,429 R1,264,881
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Deferred Revenue on Finance Lease
Movements in deferred revenue on finance leasasafellows:

2012 2011
Beginning balance P1,866,965 B2,456,532
Less amortization (Note 26) 589,567 589,567
Ending balance (Note 26) 1,277,398 1,866,965
Less current portion (Notes 13 and 26) 589,569 589,567
Noncurrent portion (Note 26) P687,829 R1,277,398

17.

Equity

Common Stock

The Group was listed with the Philippine Stock Exuipe on February 4, 1998 with total

listed shares of 71,382,000 common shares congistin47,000,000 shares for public

offering and 24,382,000 shares for private placéemerfhe Parent Company offered the
share at a price of R4.40. As of December 312201d 2011, the Company has a total of
656 and 666 shareholders on record.

Movements in the number of shares are as follows:

2012 2011 2010

Beginning balance 347,329,216 302,114,918 287,761,172
Issuance of stock dividends

(Note 28) 51,996,445 45,214,298 14,353,746

Ending balance 399,325,661 347,329,216 302,114,918

On July 24, 2012, the BOD and at least 2/3 of tken@any’s stockholders approved the
increase of the Company’s authorized common stookn 2 400,000,000, divided into
400,000,000 common shares with par value of Blspare, to B600,000,000, divided into
600,000,000 common shares with a par value ofeéslpare.

The Philippine SEC approved the Company’s appbecator the increase in its authorized
capital stock on October 19, 2012.

Retained Earnings

The Company’s retained earnings is restricted ¢oetktent of B54,212,460 and B56,484,212
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively tier undistributed earnings of
subsidiaries and R2,923,246 as of December 312 208 2011 for the cost of treasury
shares.

Details of the Company’s stock dividend declarafmmthe years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Outstanding no. of
Stock common shares as of  Total stock

Declaration date Record date dividend % declaration date dividend issued

July 24, 2012 November 15, 2012 15% 346,642,966 51,996,445
July 21, 2011 August 19, 2011 15% 301,428,666 45,214,298
July 29, 2010 August 27,2010 5% 287,074,922 14,453,746
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The Company’s BOD and at least 2/3 of the Compasyxkholders approved all the
aforementioned stock dividend declarations above.

Details of the Company’s cash dividend declaratmrthe years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010 are shown below:

Outstanding no. of

Dividend common shares as  Total cash
Declaration date Record date Payment date per share  of declaration date dividends
July 24, 2012 August 22, 2012 September 14, 2012 0.8 346,642,966 B34,664,297
July 21, 2011 August 19, 2011  September 13, 2011 10 0. 301,428,666 30,142,867
July 29, 2010 August 27,2010  September 23, 2010 50.0 287,074,922 14,353,746

The Company’s BOD approved all the cash dividerrdsgnted above.

Treasury Shares

There are 686,250 shares that are in the treasmmgurming to B 2,923,246 as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011. There are no movemeéhe Group’s treasury shares in
2012 and 2011.

18. Cost of Merchandise Sales

2012 2011 2010
Merchandise inventory, beginning B519,258,936 R402,419,577 R415,652,671
Net purchases (Note 20) 8,730,878,901 6,961,401,378 5,375,264,793
9,250,137,837  7,363,820,955 5,790,917,464
Less merchandise inventory, ending 726,986,563 519,258,936 402,419,577
P8,523,151,274 P6,844,562,019 B5,388,497,887

19. General and Administrative Expenses

2012

2011

2010

Communication, light and water

P822,136,123

P610,997,841

P528,123,729

Outside services (Note 32) 663,221,838 527,283,460 389,212,920
Depreciation and amortization (Note 8) 527,786,925 378,355,521 291,803,754
Rent (Note 26) 488,292,500 401,628,602 341,397,389
Personnel costs (Note 23) 269,968,599 271,925,395 287,246,482
Trucking services 171,676,338 128,105,699 89,415,946
Advertising and promotion 139,445,376 119,151,632 101,175,106
Royalties (Note 25) 133,085,007 106,490,524 90,693,176
Repairs and maintenance 120,154,712 101,447,166 86,964,361
Supplies 119,944,818 98,718,890 81,307,138
Warehousing services 95,052,873 69,397,133 58,179,955
Taxes and licenses 85,985,255 76,189,697 68,340,335
Transportation and travel 38,476,668 26,472,937 23,642,048
Entertainment, amusement and recreation 24,609,677 28,169,708 36,145,205
Inventory losses 23,875,151 19,906,752 14,659,113
Dues and subscription 9,355,941 5,898,075 5,143,890
Insurance 8,968,897 6,032,839 4,216,516
Amortization of software and program costs

(Note 10) 1,490,475 2,598,741 3,089,728
Provision for impairment

of receivables (Note 5) 788,778 3,810,991 1,622,883
Others 41,345,644 29,596,375 29,010,430

P3,785,661,595

R3,012,177,978

P2,531,390,104
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20. Marketing Income

2012 2011 2010

Promotions P339,113,279 B171,330,886 R112,766,444
Marketing support funds

(Note 32) 36,654,978 68,557,774 34,702,616

P375,768,257 B239,888,660 P147,469,060

Display charges and certain marketing support fuprdsiously recorded within marketing
income have been reclassified as purchase discasnpsirt of “net purchases” under “cost
of merchandise sales”. Total amount reclassifimdunted to B297,943,350, R246,934,680

and B196,772,591 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respdgiisee Note 18).

21.Interest Expense

2012 2011 2010
Interest on bank loans (Note 11) B16,338,080 B15,697,647 B16,033,249

Guaranteed preferred dividends
(Note 15) 258,750 327,000 364,920
P16,596,830 P16,024,647 P16,398,169

22.Interest Income

2012 2011 2010
Bank deposits (Note 4) P2,589,071 B2/597,676 P3,417,333
Accretion of refundable deposits
(Note 9) 2,099,941 2,387,787 1,035,216
Finance lease (Note 26) 291,205 378,850 403,887
Short-term investment (Note 4) 268,625 313,804 258,220
Accretion of note receivable
(Note 5) 128,251 186,596 241,113

P5,377,093 B5,864,713 B5,355,769

23.Personnel Costs

2012 2011 2010
Salaries and wages P217,356,126 B227,335,598 B242,069,716
Employee benefits 36,405,561 32,221,396 33,956,265
Net retirement benefits cost
(Note 24) 16,206,912 12,368,401 11,220,501

P269,968,599 B271,925,395 B287,246,482
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24.Retirement Benefits

The Group maintains a trusteed, non-contributogfingéd benefit retirement plan
covering all qualified employees. Normal retiretnbenefits are equal to the employee’s
retirement pay as defined in Republic Act No. 76ddltiplied by the years of service.
Normal retirement date is the attainment of ageu®® completion of at least five years of
service.

The following tables summarize the components ef retirement benefits cost
recognized in profit or loss and the funding stafrsd amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets:

a. Net retirement benefits cost for the year arelésvs:

2012
PSC CDI Total
Current service cost R9,655,975 R545,788 R10,201,763
Interest cost 5,585,187 374,746 5,959,933
Expected return on plan assets (673,153) (31,105) (704,258)
Net actuarial losses 749,474 - 749,474
Net retirement benefits cost
(Note 23) P15,317,483 P889,429 P16,206,912
2011
PSC CDI Total
Current service cost R4,637,501 R351,324 R4988,
Interest cost 7,377,255 540,217 7,917,472
Expected return on plan assets (645,048) (31,373) (676,421)
Net actuarial losses 138,525 — 138,525
Net retirement benefits cost
(Note 23) P11,508,233 P860,168 P12,368,401
2010
PSC CDiI Total
Current service cost R3,706,434 R705,342 P4/461,
Interest cost 6,749,595 520,065 7,269,660
Expected return on plan assets (430,680) (30,255) (460,935)
Net retirement benefits cost (Note
23) R10,025,349 R1,195,152 P11,220,501
b. Net retirement obligations recognized by theuprare as follows:
2012
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations B109,977,260 P6,625,244 B116,602,504
Less fair value of net plan
assets 29,548,266 1,041,545 30,589,811
Unfunded retirement obligation 80,428,994 5,583,699 86,012,693
Unrecognized net actuarial
gain (losses) (25,021,701) 129,428 (24,892,273)

Net retirement obligations R55,407,293 R5,713,127 P61,120,420
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2011

PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations R96,296,328 P6,764,360 PR103,060,688
Less fair value of net plan
assets 12,239,143 565,547 12,804,690
Unfunded retirement obligation 84,057,185 6,198,813 90,255,998
Unrecognized net actuarial
gain (losses) (25,368,578) 305,300 (25,063,278)
Net retirement obligations P58,688,607 P6,504,11365,192,720
Changes in the present value of the retiremigligations are as follows:
2012
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances R96,296,328 P6,764,360 P103,060,688
Current service cost 9,655,975 545,788 10,201,763
Interest cost 5,585,187 374,746 5,959,933
Benefits paid (4,686,898) (1,245,962) (5,932,860)
Actuarial losses 3,126,668 186,312 3,312,980
Ending balances P109,977,260 P6,625,244 PR116,602,504
2011
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances R72,897,778 B5,615,558 PZ3B36
Current service cost 4,637,501 351,324 4,988,825
Interest cost 7,377,255 540,217 7,917,472
Benefits paid (4,018,237) - (4,018,237)
Actuarial losses 15,402,031 257,261 15,659,292
Ending balances R96,296,328 R 6,764,360 PR103880
Changes in the fair value of net plan assetasfellows:
2012
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances R12,239,143 B565,547 P12,804,690
Expected return on plan assets 673,153 31,105 704,258
Contribution 18,598,797 1,680,415 20,279,212
Benefits paid (4,686,898) (1,245,962) (5,932,860)
Actuarial gains 2,724,071 10,440 2,734,511
Ending balances B29,548,266 R1,041,545 P30,589,811
2011
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances R10,750,804 R522,878 R11K373,
Expected return on plan assets 645,048 31,373 576,4
Contribution 4,629,263 - 4,629,263
Benefits paid (4,018,237) - (4,018,237)
Actuarial gains 232,265 11,296 243,561

Ending balances P12,239,143 P565,547 P12,804,690
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The Group’s plan asset is being managed by BartkeoPhilippine Islands (BPI) - Asset
Management and Trust Group, a trustee bank. Bowakaf the Group’s net plan assets are
as follows:

2012 2011
PSC CDI PSC CDI
Investments in trust and
mutual funds 69.00% 100.00%  46.00%  46.00%
Investments in equity securities 31.00% - 54.00% 54.00%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Details on the cost and fair value of the fund faB@cember 31 are as follows:

2012
PSC CDI
Face amount Face amount
/No. of shares Cost Fair Value /No. of shares Cost  Fair Value
Investments in trust and mutual funds
BPI - ALFM Mutual Fund 62,463 P17,511,278 R18,689,399 3,480 PR1,010,8921,041,545
BPI - Short Term Fund
Unit Investment Trust Fund 11,809 1,590,436 1,591,027 — — —
19,101,714 20,280,426 1,010,852 1,041,545
Investments in equity securities
PSC - listed shares 35,520 122,417 3,267,840 - - -
SSHI - unlisted shares 60,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 — — -
6,122,417 9,267,840 — -
B25,224,131 P29,548,266 P1,010,852 PB1,041,545
2011
PSC CDI
Face amount Face amount
/No. of shares Cost Fair Value /No. of shares Cost Fair Value
Investments in trust and mutual funds
BPI - ALFM Mutual Fund 18,843 P4,896,967 B5,379, 2,003 B520,540 B565,547
BPI - Short Term Fund
Unit Investment Trust Fund — — — — — —
4,896,967 5,319,175 520,540 565,547
Investments in equity securities
PSC - listed shares 35,520 122,417 919,968 - - -
SSHI - unlisted shares 60,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 — — —
6,122,417 6,919,968 — -
P11,019,384 P12,239,143 B520,540 B565,547

The trustee exercises the voting rights over thé Blsares held by the retirement fund.

Actual return on plan assets amounted to B3,394r22012 and B877,313 in 2011 for PSC
and
R41,545 in 2012 and R42,669 in 2011 for CDI.

The overall expected rate of return on plan assedetermined based on the market prices
prevailing on the date applicable to the periodravigich the obligation is to be settled.

The Group expects to contribute B21,500,000 tdafsed benefit plan in 2013.

The principal assumptions used in determining aBtement benefits cost for the Group’s
plan at the beginning of the year are as follows:
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PSC CDI
2012 2011 2012 2011
Number of employees 681 655 23 20
Discount rate per annum 5.80% 5.80% 5.54% 5.54%
Expected annual rate of
return on plan assets 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
Salary increase rate 5.50% 5.50% 5.50% 5.50%
Amounts for the current and prior four periods asdollows:
2012
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement obligationsP109,977,260 P6,625,244 RP116,602,504
Fair value of net plan assets 29,548,266 1,041,545 30,589,811
Unfunded retirement obligation 80,428,994 5,583,699 86,012,693
Experience gain adjustments
on retirement obligations (5,731,481) (39,492) (5,770,973)
Experience gain adjustments on plan
assets 2,724,071 10,440 2,734,511
2011
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement obligations B96,296,328 B6,764,360 B103,060,688
Fair value of net plan assets 12,239,143 565,547 ,8042690
Unfunded retirement obligation 84,057,185 6,198,813 90,255,998
Experience loss (gain) adjustments
on retirement obligations 324,950 (267,061) 57,889
Experience gain adjustments on plan
assets 232,265 11,296 243,561
2010
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement obligations B72,897,778 B5,615,558 B78,513,336
Fair value of net plan assets 10,750,804 522,878 ,2781682
Unfunded retirement obligation 62,146,974 5,092,680 67,239,654
Experience gain adjustments on
retirement obligations (6,251,982) (857,124) (7,109,106)
Experience loss adjustments on plan
assets (43,253) (11,628) (54,881)
2009
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement obligations B62,438,440 B4,864,964 B67,303,404
Fair value of net plan assets 7,178,008 504,251 827269
Unfunded retirement obligation 55,260,432 4,360,713 59,621,145
Experience gain adjustments on
retirement obligations (12,458,512) (857,124) (13,315,636)
Experience loss adjustments on plan
assets (69,753) (10,086) (79,839)
2008
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement obligations B54,006,788 B4,174,204 B58,180,992
Fair value of net plan assets 6,165,743 471,869 376682
Unfunded retirement obligation 47,841,045 3,702,335 51,543,380
Experience loss adjustments on
retirement obligations 46,616 2,532,432 2,579,048
Experience loss adjustments on
plan assets (283,759) (21,716) (305,475)
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The discount rate of PSC and CDI as of December2812 are 5.80% and 5.54%,
respectively, based on market rates consistenttivlobligation of the defined benefit plan.
Future annual increase in salary as of Decembe2@I2 is 5.5%. Expected rate of return as
of December 31, 2012 is 5.5%.

25.Related Party Transactions

Related party relationships exist when one party tiee ability to control, directly or
indirectly through one or more intermediaries, thther party or exercise significant
influence over the other party in making financeahd operating decisions. Such
relationships also exist between and/or amongiestithich are under common control with
the reporting enterprise, or between and/or ambegréporting enterprises and their key
management personnel, directors or its stockhalders

Transactions with related parties consist of:

a. The Group executed a licensing agreement with SEl@ven, Inc. (SEI), a stockholder
organized in Texas, U.S.A. This grants the Grdwgpexclusive right to use the 7-Eleven
System in the Philippines. In accordance with dgeeement, the Group pays, among
others, royalty fee to SEI based on a certain p¢age of monthly gross sales, net of
gross receipts tax.

b. PSC has transactions with PFI, a foundation witmmon key management of the

Group, consisting of donations and noninterestibgaadvances pertaining primarily to
salaries, taxes and other operating expensedlinjad by PSC for PFI.

Balances arising from the foregoing transactiorth welated parties are as follows:

Transactions for the Outstanding Balance
Related Nature of Terms and Year Ended December 31 as of December 31
Parties Transactions Conditions 2012 2011 2012 2011
Receivables
PFI (Note 5) Donations None BP2,650,000 B61,355 B— B-

Non-interest Unsecured, no impairment
bearing advancesn 2012 and 2011.
Amounts are due and
demandable 1,463,967 469,856 1,637,912 173,945
P4,113,967 P531,211 PR1,637,912 P173,945

Other current liabilities
SEI (Note 13) Royalty fee Unsecured and payable
monthly P133,085,007 B106,490,524 BP12,579,753 PR10,353,333

c. Compensation of key management personnel arelas/ol

2012 2011 2010
Short-term employee benefits  p34,979,611 P31,624,639 P33,663,181
Post-employment benefits 430,000 1,664,000 1,662,152
Other long-term benefits 376,073 376,073 376,073
P35,785,684 P33,664,712 P35,701,406
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26.Leases

Finance Lease as Lessor

In March 2007, PSC entered into a five-year satklaaseback finance lease agreement
with an armored car service provider. The leagermaterms of renewal and no escalation
clauses. Unguaranteed residual values accruitiget@ompany amounted to B300,000.

In March 2010, the Company amended its agreemehttive armored car service provider
extending the lease term for another five yearmfidarch 1, 2010 to February 1, 2015,
imposing 7% interest per annum on the restructlo&a obligation and reducing its monthly
rental payments. The unguaranteed residual vacesiing to the Company was retained.
The restructuring resulted in the recognition ajaan on accretion amounting to 849,890
and is reported under “Other income” in the 2010sodidated profit or loss.

Future minimum lease receivables under this leasé Becember 31 are as follows:

2012 2011

Within one year P1,591,280 B1,591,280

After one year but not more than five years 2,156,493 3,747,773

Total minimum lease payments receivable 3,747,773 5,339,053

Less unearned interest income 299,437 590,642
Present value of future minimum lease

payments receivable 3,448,336 4,748,411

Less current portion (Note 5) 1,394,060 1,300,075

Noncurrent portion (Note 10) P2,054,276 P3,448,336

Collection of lease receivable amounted to R1 881 in 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Present value of lease receivable as of Decembisraslfollows:

2012 2011

Within one year P1,394,060 B1,300,075

After one year but not more than five years 2,054,276 3,448,336

Total minimum lease payments receivable 3,448,336 4,748,411

Less current portion 1,394,060 1,300,075
Present value of future minimum lease

payments receivable P2,054,276 P3,448,336

Unearned interest income as of December 31, 2082281 amounted to B299,437 and
R590,642, respectively. Related interest incomeuwmted to BR291,205, B378,850 and B
403,887 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Difference between the original lease agreememésgnt value of minimum lease payments
at the date of lease inception against the carnahge of the finance lease asset resulted in a
deferred revenue on finance lease amounting 8586/53, which is to be amortized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Theedldeferred revenue amounted to R1,277,398
and

B1,866,965 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011,cuitfent portion amounting to B589,569
in 2012 and B589,567 in 2011 (see Notes 13 and N&ncurrent portion amounted to B
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687,829 and R1,277,398 as of December 31, 20122ahdl, respectively (see Note 16).
Amortization of deferred revenue on finance leasmunted to B589,567, B589,567 and B
709,665, in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively Ksze 16).

Operating Lease as Lessee

a. PSC has various lease agreements with third pamtiesing to its store operations.
Certain agreements provide for the payment of fef@sed on various schemes such as
an agreed percentage of net sales for the montfixatimonthly rate.

Rental expense related to these lease agreemerasinted to B 449,915,799, B
375,908,146 and R314,390,025 in 2012, 2011 an@,2@%pectively (see Note 19). Of
the total rent expense, B2,573,518 in 2012, B2200 in 2011 and B1,902,221 in 2010
pertains to contingent rent of some stores base@eocentage ranging from 1.5% to
3.0% of merchandise sales. Amortization of detédease amounted to B719,536, B
1,164,066 and
B324,200 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

The approximate annual future minimum rental payeh the PSC under its existing
lease agreements as of December 31 are as follows:

2012 2011
Within one year P62,130,526  B52,930,899
After one year but not more than five years 131,556,590 114,077,970
More than five years 12,654,307 -

P206,341,423 P167,008,869

b. In April 2012, CDI entered into a 2-year lease cactt for the lease of a warehouse in
Cebu commencing in April 2012 until April 2014. dtease has a renewal option and is
subject to an annual escalation rate of 5%.

In 2011, CDI entered into a 10-year lease contfactthe lease of its warehouse
extension effective March 2011. The lease is suibpean annual escalation rate of 4.0%
starting on the second year of the lease.

In 2005, CDI entered into a 15-year operating leasatract for the lease of its
warehouse effective November 1, 2005. The leasehianewal option and is subject to
an escalation rate of 7.0% every after two yearisg on the third year of the lease.

Rent expense related to these lease agreementstetido R33,952,195, R23,828,055
and

R23,494,115 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivede (Note 19). Amortization of
deferred lease amounted to B1,766,192, B1,6156d81,090,500 in 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

The approximate annual future minimum rental payiheh CDI under its existing lease
contract as of December 31 are as follows:

2012 2011
Within one year £36,902,700 P31,879,766
After one year but not more than five years 183,491,415 138,038,344
More than five years 75,839,671 152,413,780

£296,233,786 P322,331,890
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CDI also has other various short-term operatingdegertaining to rental of warehouse
and equipments. Related rent expense amounted},u?# 506, R1,892,401 and B
3,513,249 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively Ksxe 19).

Operating Lease as Lessor

The Group has various sublease agreements withghrties which provide for lease rentals
based on an agreed fixed monthly rate or as agsped by the parties. Rental income
related to these sublease agreements amounted45o/7®1,718, B 44,143,593 and B
37,361,844 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

27.Income Tax

a. The components of the Group’s provision for (berfedim) income tax are as follows:

2012 2011 2010

Current:
Regular corporate income tax P211,923,436 PB161,398,364 PR124,265,727
Final tax on interest income 445,546 586,624 693,335
212,368,982 161,984,988 124,959,062
Deferred (2,346,981) 165,174 3,796,610

P210,022,001 PB162,150,162 P128,755,672

b. The components of the Group’s net deferred incarassets are as follows:

2012
PSC CDI SSHI Total
Deferred income tax assets:
Net retirement obligations B16,622,188 B1,713,938 B- P18,336,126
Accrued rent 8,700,799 6,705,868 - 15,406,667
Unamortized discount on refunda
deposit 4,336,926 1,726,139 - 6,063,065
Allowance for impairment on
receivables 2,468,178 - - 2,468,178
Provision for litigation losses 2,119,887 - - 2,119,887
Unamortized past service cost 3,952,094 29,082 - 3,981,176
Deferred revenue on exclusivity
contracts 379,464 — — 379,464
Unearned rent income 127,680 - - 127,680
Unamortized discount on receivable 37,323 — - 37,323
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 37,765 79,009 - 116,774
38,782,304 10,254,036 — 49,036,340
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred lease expense 3,088,956 1,248,107 - 4,337,063
Unamortized discount on purchase
of refundable deposit 305,238 - - 305,238
Revaluation increment on land — — 1,384,241 1,384,241
3,394,194 1,248,107 1,384,241 6,026,542
Net deferred income tax assets (liability) 235,388,110 R9,005,929 (P1,384,241) B43,009,798
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2011

PSC CDI SSHI Total
Deferred income tax assets:
Net retirement obligations B17,606,582 B1,951,234 B— P19,557,816
Accrued rent 7,951,803 6,227,340 - 14,179,143
Unamortized discount afundable
deposit 4,683,505 1,860,674 - 6,544,179
Allowance for impairment on
receivables 2,231,545 - - 2,231,545
Provision for litigation losses 2,119,887 - - 2,119,887
Unamortized past service cost 1,766,126 35,681 - 1,801,807
Deferred revenue on exclusivity
contracts 959,822 — - 959,822
Unearned rent income 243,731 - - 243,731
Unamortized discount on receivable 79,102 - - 79,102
Unrealized foreign exchange loss 205 — - 205
37,642,308 10,074,929 - 47,717,237
Deferred income tax liabilities:
Deferred lease expense 3,500,192 1,807,512 - 5,307,704
Unamortized discount on purchase
of refundable deposit 343,393 - - 343,393
Unamortized capitalized interest 3,937 - - 3,937
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - 15,145 - 15,145
Revaluation increment on land — — 1,384,241 1,384,241
3,847,522 1,822,657 1,384,241 7,054,420
Net deferred income tax assets (liability) 33,794,786 B8,252,272 (B1,384,241) B40,662,817

c. The reconciliation of the provision for income teomputed at the statutory income tax
rate to provision for income tax shown in the cdigdsted statements of comprehensive
income follow:

2012 2011 2010

Provision for income tax
computed at statutory income
tax rate

Adjustments for:

Nondeductible expenses:

P202,394,260 P155,547,945 P121,690,776

Inventory losses 7,162,545 5,972,026 4,397,733

Interest expense and others 867,483 955,165 3,114,649
Tax effect of rate difference

between final tax and

statutory tax rate on bank

interest income (364,133) (286,820) (386,196)
Nontaxable other income (38,154) (38,154) (61,290)

P210,022,001 P162,150,162 P128,755,672

d. RA 9504, effective on July 7, 2008 allows availmeitoptional standard deductions
(OSD). Corporations, except for nonresident farea@rporations, may now elect to
claim standard deduction in an amount not exceedd%) of their gross income. The
Group did not avail of the OSD for the computatadnts taxable income in 2012, 2011
and 2010.
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28.Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

2012 2011 2010
=§64,625,531 P356,342,989 P276,880,248

a. Netincome
b. Weighted average number

of shares issued 399,325,661 399,325,661 399,325,661
c. Less weighted average number
of shares held in treasury 686,250 686,250 686,250
d. Weighted average number of
shares outstandin@-c) 398,639,411 398,639,411 398,639,411
e. Basic/diluted earnings per share
(a/d) P1.17 R0.89 P0.69

The Group does not have potentially dilutive commbares as of December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010. Thus, the basic earnings per share & &mthe diluted earnings per share as of
those dates.

The Group’s outstanding common shares increased 847,329,216 to 399,325,661 as a

result of stock dividend issuance equivalent to %me outstanding common shares of the
Company of 346,642,966 shares approved on Julp@¥? (see Note 17). Therefore, the

calculation of basic/diluted earnings per sharedibiperiods presented has been adjusted
retrospectively.

29.Financial Instruments
The following tables summarize the carrying valuel &ir value of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities per class as afddeber 31:

2012 2011
Fair Value Carrying Value

Carrying Value Fair Value

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Loans and Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and in banks B367,285,569

P367,285,569

P394,696,749

P 394,696,749

Cash equivalents 48,000,000 48,000,000 — —
415,285,569 415,285,569 394,696,749 394,696,749
Short-term investment 10,632,115 10,632,115 10,409,907 10,409,907
Receivables
Franchisee 184,444,213 184,444,213 89,638,852 89,638,852
Suppliers 137,235,021 137,235,021 97,257,076 97,257,076
Store operators 19,452,194 19,452,194 12,878,514 12,878,514
Employees 12,993,209 12,993,209 15,407,124 15,407,124
Rent 5,638,673 5,638,673 7,068,009 7,068,009
Due from PFI 1,637,912 1,637,912 173,945 173,945
Current portion of:
Notes receivable 1,403,344 1,403,344 1,328,983 1,328,983
Lease receivable 1,394,060 1,570,588 1,300,075 1,563,950
Insurance claims 614,135 614,135 319,208 319,208
Others 9,785,082 9,785,082 13,917,501 13,917,501
374,597,843 374,774,371 239,289,287 239,553,162
Deposits
Utilities 33,663,791 33,663,791 29,267,868 29,267,868
Refundable 25,843,670 32,667,920 26,789,004 27,301,992
Others 6,017,558 6,017,558 4,527,970 4,527,970
65,525,019 72,349,269 60,584,842 61,097,830
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Other noncurrent assets
Noncurrent portion of:

Lease receivable 2,054,276 2,036,402 3,448,336 3,439,941
Notes receivable 955,355 955,355 1,689,268 1,689,268
3,009,631 2,991,757 5,137,604 5,129,209

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS P869,050,177 P876,033,081 B710,118,389 B710,886,857

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Other Financial Liabilities
Bank loans

BA77,777,778

R477,777,778

P374,666,667

P374,666,667

Accounts payable and accrued expenses:

Trade payable

1,077,213,586

1,077,213,586

1,066,740,769

1,066,740,769

Utilities 55,148,912 55,148,912 38,219,462 38,219,462
Employee benefits 22,772,206 22,772,206 23,954,117 23,954,117
Outsourced services 14,531,473 14,531,473 12,461,025 12,461,025
Advertising and promotion 8,754,528 8,754,528 16,054,548 16,054,548
Bank charges 3,860,300 3,860,300 2,278,700 2,278,700
Security services 3,361,310 3,361,310 3,054,419 3,054,419
Interest 1,173,579 1,173,579 1,174,528 1,174,528
Others* 23,116,538 23,116,538 32,734,076 32,734,076

1,209,932,432

1,209,932,432

1,196,671,644

1,196,671,644

Other current liabilities:

Non-trade accounts payable 423,183,843 423,183,843 188,758,358 188,758,358
Retention payable 24,673,598 24,673,598 18,688,531 18,688,531
Service fees payable 20,586,182 20,586,182 19,370,472 19,370,472
Royalty 12,579,753 12,579,753 10,353,333 10,353,333
Others 4,990,644 4,990,644 12,700,219 12,700,219
486,014,020 486,014,020 249,870,913 249,870,913

Cumulative redeemable preferred shares 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

P2,179,724,230

P2,179,724,230

P1,827,209,224

P1,827,209,224

* Excludes withholding taxes payable amounting to £2,000 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

Fair Value Information

Current Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Due to the short-term nature of the related traiwas, the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investment, receivablescdpk for lease receivables), accounts
payable and accrued expenses and other curreifitiegatapproximates their carrying values
as of balance sheet date.

Lease Receivables

The fair value of lease receivable is determinedlisgounting the sum of future cash flows
using the prevailing market rates for instrumenith \wimilar maturities as of December 31,
2012 and 2011, which is 3.80% and 4.64%, respdgtive

Utility and Other Deposits
The fair value of utility and other deposits appnoates its carrying value as it earns interest
based on repriced market conditions.

Refundable Deposits

The fair value of deposits is determined by distimg the sum of future cash flows using
the prevailing market rates for instruments witikr maturities as of December 31, 2012
and 2011 ranging from 1.33% to 4.36% and 2.74%Q@8%, respectively.

Bank Loans

The carrying value approximates fair value becaniseecent and monthly repricing of
related interest based on market conditions.
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Cumul ative Redeemabl e Preferred Shares

The carrying value approximates fair value becawseesponding dividends on these shares
that are charged as interest expense in profioss are based on recent treasury bill rates
repriced annually at year end.

Fair Value Hierarchy
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group hdmancial instruments measured at fair

value.

30.Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The main risks arising from the Group’s finandgratruments are credit risk, liquidity risk,
interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk. BI@&D reviews and approves policies for
managing each of these risks. The BOD also cremtxparate board-level entity, which is
the Audit Committee, with explicit authority andsponsibility in managing and monitoring
risks. The Audit Committee, which ensures the gritg of internal control activities
throughout the Group, develops, oversees, cheotgperapproves financial management
functions and systems in the areas of credit, malikgiidity, operational, legal and other
risks of the Group, and crisis management. ThanateAudit Department and the External
Auditor directly report to the Audit Committee redeng the direction, scope and
coordination of audit and any related activities.

Listed below are the summarized risk identifiecioy BOD.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a finah@nstrument will cause a financial loss to the
other party by failing to discharge an obligatiofihe receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis with the result that the Grougfsosure to impairment is managed to a not
significant level. The Group deals only with caenpiarty duly approved by the BOD.

The following tables provide information regardithg maximum credit risk exposure of the
Group as of December 31.:

2012 2011
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on
hand)
Cash in bank P204,668,267 R277,117,736
Cash equivalents 48,000,000 -
252,668,267 277,117,736
Short-term investment 10,632,115 10,409,907
Receivables
Franchisee 184,444,213 89,638,852
Suppliers 137,235,021 97,257,076
Store operators 19,452,194 12,878,514
Employees 12,993,209 15,407,124
Rent 5,638,673 7,068,009
Due from PFI 1,637,912 173,945
Current portion of:
Notes receivable 1,403,344 1,328,983
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Lease receivable 1,394,060 1,300,075
Insurance claims 614,135 319,208
Others 9,785,082 13,917,501

374,597,843 239,289,287
Deposits
Utilities 33,663,791 29,267,868
Refundable 25,843,670 26,789,004
Others 6,017,558 4,527,970
65,525,019 60,584,842
Other noncurrent assets
Noncurrent portion of:
Lease receivable 2,054,276 3,448,336
Notes receivable 955,355 1,689,268
3,009,631 5,137,604

P706,432,875

P592,539,376

The following tables provide information regardithg credit risk exposure of the Group by

classifying assets according to the Group’s cnediihgs of debtors:

2012
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Standard Past Due
High Grade Grade  Or Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in bank B204,668,267 B— B- P204,668,267
Cash equivalents 48,000,000 — — 48,000,000
252,668,267 — — 252,668,267
Short-term investment 10,632,115 — - 10,632,115
Receivables
Franchisee - 184,444,213 - 184,444,213
Suppliers - 105,591,971 31,643,050 137,235,021
Store operators - 19,452,194 - 19,452,194
Employees - 12,993,209 - 12,993,209
Rent - 5,638,673 - 5,638,673
Due from PFI - 1,637,912 - 1,637,912
Current portion of:
Notes receivable - 1,403,344 - 1,403,344
Lease receivable - 1,394,060 - 1,394,060
Insurance claims - 614,135 - 614,135
Others — 3,835,775 5,949,307 9,785,082
— 337,005,486 37,592,357 374,597,843
Deposits
Utilities - 33,663,791 - 33,663,791
Refundable - 25,843,670 - 25,843,670
Others — 6,017,558 — 6,017,558
— 65,525,019 — 65,525,019
Other noncurrent assets
Noncurrent portion of:
Lease receivable - 2,054,276 - 2,054,276
Notes receivable — 955,355 — 955,355
— 3,009,631 — 3,009,631
B263,300,382 P405,540,136 B37,592,357 B7063432,
2011
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Standard Past Due
High Grade Grade Or Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in bank B277,117,736 B— B- B277,117,736
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2011

Neither Past Due nor Impaired

Standard Past Due
High Grade Grade Or Impaired Total
Short-term investment 10,409,907 — — 10,409,907
Receivables
Suppliers - 13,012,022 84,245,054 97,257,076
Franchisee - 89,638,852 - 89,638,852
Store operators - 12,878,514 - 12,878,514
Employees 15,407,124 15,407,124
Rent - 7,068,009 - 7,068,009
Current portion of:
Notes receivable - 1,328,983 - 1,328,983
Current portion - 1,300,075 - 1,300,075
Insurance claims - 319,208 - 319,208
Due from PFI - 173,945 - 173,945
Others 8,256,972 5,660,529 13,917,501
— 149,383,704 89,905,583 239,289,287
(Forward)
2011
Neither Past Due nor Impaired
Standard Past Due
High Grade Grade Or Impaired Total
Deposits
Utilities = P29,267,868 = P29,267,868
Refundable - 26,789,004 - 26,789,004
Others — 4,527,970 - 4,527,970
— 60,584,842 — 60,584,842
Other noncurrent assets
Noncurrent portion of:
Lease receivable - 3,448,336 - 3,448,336
Notes receivable - 1,689,268 - 1,689,268
- 5,137,604 5,137,604

P287,527,643  P215,106,150 P89,905,583  P593539,

The Group uses the following criteria to rate crediality:

Class Description

High Grade Financial assets that have a recogrizetyn or local
third party rating or instruments which carry
guaranty/collateral.

Standard Grade Financial assets of companies &lvatthe apparent
ability to satisfy its obligations in full.

The credit qualities of the financial assets wertednined as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investanerdlassified as high grade since these
are deposited or transacted with reputable bankshwiave low probability of insolvency.

Receivables, deposits and other noncurrent assetlassified as standard grade since these
pertain to receivables considered as unsecuredtfiwchparties with good paying habits.

The following tables provide the analysis of finehcassets that are past due but not
impaired and past due and impaired:
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2012

Aging analysis of financial assets past due but hiompaired Past due and
31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days > 90 days Total imped Total
Receivables:
Suppliers P9,537,555 P8,726,274 P11,101,267 P29,365,096 P2,277,954 P31,643,050
Others — — — — 5,949,307 5,949,307
P9,537,555 P8,726,274 P11,101,267 P29,365,096 P8,227,261 P37,592,357
2011
Aging analysis of financial assets past due buimptired Past due and
31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days > 90 days Total ingplair Total
Receivables:
Suppliers P3,565,821 P3,058,308 B75,842,971 PB82,467,100 B1,777,954 B84,245,054
Others - - - - 5,660,529 5,660,529
B3,565,821 B3,058,308 P75,842,971 P82,467,100 B7,438,483 B89,905,583

Receivables from suppliers are noninterest-beaaimg) are generally on 30-day to 90-day
terms.

There are no significant concentrations of cradk within the Group.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will enaater difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial instruments. The Groegks to manage its liquidity profile to be
able to finance its capital expenditures and seryis maturing debts. To cover for its
financing requirements, the Group intends to usermally generated funds and sales of
certain assets.

As part of its liquidity risk management prograrne tGroup regularly evaluates projected
and actual cash flow information and continuoustgesses conditions in the financial
markets for opportunities to pursue fund raisingiatives. The Group uses historical
figures and experiences and forecasts of collestemd disbursements. These initiatives
may include drawing of loans from the approved itrigtk intended for working capital and
capital expenditures purposes and equity markeegss

The tables below summarize the maturity profiléhef financial assets of the Group:

2012
More than More than
Three months three months one year More than
or less to one year to five years five years Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and in banks B367,285,569 R B- B- PB367,285,569
Cash equivalents 48,000,000 - - - 48,000,000
415,285,569 — — — 415,285,569
Short-term investment 10,632,115 — — — 10,632,115
Receivables
Franchisee 184,444,213 - - — 184,444,213
Suppliers 31,685,993 105,549,028 - — 137,235,021
Store operators 19,452,194 - - - 19,452,194
Employees 12,993,209 - - - 12,993,209
Rent 5,638,673 - - - 5,638,673
Due from PFI - 1,637,912 - - 1,637,912
Current portion of:
Notes receivable 201,610 1,201,734 - - 1,403,344
Lease receivable 339,448 1,054,612 - - 1,394,060
Insurance claims - 614,135 - - 614,135
Others 9,785,082 — — — 9,785,082
264,540,422 110,057,421 — — 374,597,843
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Deposits

Utilities - - 33,663,791 - 33,663,791
Refundable - - 25,843,670 - 25,843,670
Others = = 6,017,558 = 6,017,558
— — 65,525,019 — 65,525,019
Other noncurrent assets
Noncurrent portion of:
Lease receivable - - 2,054,276 - 2,054,276
Notes receivable — — 955,355 — 955,355
— — 3,009,631 — 3,009,631
B690,458,106 P110,057,421 B68,534,650 — BEP869,050,177
2011
More than More than
Three months three months one year More than
or less to one year to five years five years Total
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and in banks P394,696,749 B- B- ®394,696,749
Short-term investment - 10,409,907 - - 10,409,907
Receivables
Suppliers 97,257,076 - - - 97,257,076
Franchisee 89,638,852 - - - 89,638,852
Store operators 12,878,514 - - - 12,878,514
Employees 15,407,124 - - - 15,407,124
Rent 7,068,009 - - - 7,068,009
Current portion of:
Notes receivable 189,303 1,139,680 - - 1,328,983
Lease receivable 325,019 975,056 - - 1,300,075
Insurance claims - 319,208 - - 319,208
Due from PFI - 173,945 - - 173,945
Others 13,917,501 - - - 13,917,501
236,681,398 2,607,889 - - 239,289,287
Deposits
Utilities - - 29,267,868 - 29,267,868
Refundable - - 26,789,004 - 26,789,004
Others - - 4,527,970 - 4,527,970
- - 60,584,842 - 60,584,842
Other noncurrent assets
Noncurrent portion of:
Lease receivable - - 3,448,336 - 3,448,336
Notes receivable - - 1,689,268 - 1,689,268
- - 5,137,604 - 5,137,604
P631,378,147 PB13,017,796 P65,722,446 B- P78(339

The tables below summarize the maturity profiléhef financial liabilities of the Group
based on remaining undiscounted contractual olubigsit

2012
More than
three
Three months months More than
or less to one year one year Total
Bank loans B457,777,778 B20,000,000 B—- PB477,777,778

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Trade payable

Utilities

Employee benefits

Outsourced services

Advertising and promotion

Bank charges

Security services

Interest

Others

1,077,213,586
55,148,912
22,772,206
14,531,473
8,754,528
3,860,300
3,361,310
1,173,579
23,118,538

1,077,213,586
55,148,912
22,772,206
14,531,473
8,754,528
3,860,300
3,361,310
1,173,579
23,118,538

1,209,934,432

1,209,934,432
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Other current liabilities

Non-trade accounts payable 47,226,209 375,957,634 - 423,183,843
Retention payable - 24,673,598 - 24,673,598
Service fees payable - 20,586,182 - 20,586,182
Royalty 12,579,753 - - 12,579,753
Others — 4,990,644 — 4,990,644

59,805,962 426,208,058 — 486,014,020
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares 6,000,000 — — 6,000,000

P1,733,518,172 P446,208,058

B— B2,179,726,230

2011
More than
three
Three months months More than
or less to one year one year Total
Bank loans P293,389,375 P81,277,292 B- P374,666,667

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Trade payable

1,066,740,769 -

— 1,066,740,769

Utilities 38,219,462 - - 38,219,462
Employee benefits 23,954,117 - - 23,954,117
Advertising and promotion 16,054,548 - - 16,054,548
Outsourced services 12,461,025 - - 12,461,025
Security services 3,054,419 - - 3,054,419
Bank charges 2,278,700 - - 2,278,700
Interest 1,174,528 - - 1,174,528
Others 32,736,076 — — 32,736,076

1,196,673,644 -

— 1,196,673,644

Other current liabilities

Non-trade accounts payable 23,253,171 165,505,187 - 188,758,358
Service fees payable - 19,370,472 - 19,370,472
Retention payable - 18,688,531 - 18,688,531
Royalty 10,353,333 - - 10,353,333
Others — 12,700,219 — 12,700,219

33,606,504 216,264,409 - 249,870,913
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares 6,000,000 - - 6,000,000

B1,529,669,523 PB297,541,701

B— P1,827,211,224

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair vabrefuture cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interaes. The Group’s fair value and cash
flows interest rate risk mainly arise from bankrsawith floating interest rates. The Group
is expecting to substantially reduce the level aflbloans over time. Internally generated
funds coming from its cash generating units anthfits franchising business will be used to
pay off outstanding debts and consequently redue@terest rate exposure.

The maturity profile of financial instruments thate exposed to interest rate risk are as
follows:

2012 2011
RA477,777,778 B374,666,667
3.30%-3.75%  3.50%-4.25%

Due in less than one year
Rate

Interest of financial instruments classified asfiog rate is repriced at intervals of 30 days.
The other financial instruments of the Group tha& @ot included in the above tables are
noninterest-bearing and are therefore not subpecitérest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivityatoeasonably possible change in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, lé Group’s income before income tax
(through the impact on floating rate borrowings):
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2012 2011

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
Decrease in Income Before Decrease in Income Before
Basis Points Income Tax Basis Points Income Tax
Bank loans - floating interest rate +100 (B4,777,778) +100 (B3,746,667)
-100 4,777,778 -100 3,746,667

There is no other impact on the Group’s equity othan those already affecting profit or
loss.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk to earnings @itah arising from changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Group’s foreign exchange expoatses from holding foreign
currency denominated rates, cash and cash equisalémans and receivables and
merchandise sale to foreign entity. In order tcabeé this exposure, the Group has some
sales denominated in foreign currency and maintain®reign currency accounts in a
reputable commercial bank. The Group does not emieiderivatives to hedge the exposure.
The Group’s cash and receivables denominated eidiorcurrency and converted into Peso
using the closing exchange rates at each balames dhte are summarized below.

2012 2011
Dollar Peso Dollar Peso
Cash $141,607 B5,812,967 $59,634 PB2,614,355
Receivables 27,049 1,110,362 90,349 3,960,900

$168,656 P6,923,329 $149,983 PB6,575,255

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the closing fanat currency exchange rate is B41.05
and R43.84, respectively.

The following table represents the impact on theupts income before income tax brought
about by reasonably possible changes in Peso tarDexchange rate (holding all other
variables constant) as of December 31, 2012 anil @6l its next financial reporting date:

Change in Peso to Dollar Effect on Income

Exchange Rate before Income Tax

2012 Increase by 6.36% (R440,324)
Decrease by 6.36% 440,324

2011 Increase by 3.00% (R197,258)
Decrease by 3.00% 197,258

There is no other effect on the Company’s equibeothan those already affecting profit or
loss.

31. Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital mamagat is to ensure that it maintains a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratioider to support its business and maximize
shareholder value.
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In the light of changes in economic conditions, Gx®up manages dividend payments to
shareholders, pay-off existing debts, return capatahareholders or issue new shares. The
Group mainly uses financing from local banks. TWreup considers equity contributed by
shareholders as capital. The Group manages itsatapiucture by keeping a net worth of
between 30% to 50% in relation to its total assdtse Group’s net worth ratio is 42% and
40% as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectivép. changes were made in the
objectives, policies and processes during the year.

2012 2011

Common stock P399,325,661  B347,329,216
Additional paid-in capital 293,525,037 293,525,037
Retained earnings 1,233,432,997 855,468,208
1,926,283,695  1,496,322,461

Less cost of shares held in treasury 2,923,246 2,923,246

P1,923,360,449 P1,493,399,215

Total assets BP4,564,348,482 B3,734,298,981

Net worth 42% 40%

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group wastabheet its objective.

32. Significant Agreements

a. Franchise Agreements
The Group has various store franchise agreemetitstiard parties for the operation of
certain stores. The agreement includes a oneftamehise fee payment and an annual
7-Eleven charge for the franchisee, which is edwala certain percentage of the
franchised store’s gross profit. Details follows:

2012 2011 2010
Franchise revenue P602,379,025 BP478,827,511 PB402,620,636
Franchise fee 81,193,802 55,198,201 40,202,044

P683,572,827 P534,025,712 P442,822,680

b. Service Agreements
The Group has service agreements with third paftiethe management and operation
of certain stores. In consideration thereof, #ugesoperator is entitled to a service fee
based on a certain percentage of the store’s gvosfg and operating expenses as
stipulated in the service agreement. Service ifegdaded under outside services shown
as part of “General and administrative expenses’piiafit or loss amounted to B
231,622,046 in 2012, R174,464,102 in 2011 andi893,173 in 2010 (see Note 19).

c. Memorandum of Agreement with TAIT
On April 1, 2011, CDI has entered into a MemorandiirAgreement (MOA) with TAIT
Marketing and Distribution Co., Ltd., a corporatialuly organized and existing
under the laws of the Republic of China (ROC) watincipal office at Taiwan, ROC.
The contract indicates that CDI shall provide consu goods and products from
Philippine Suppliers that meet the needs and spatidns of TAIT. Revenue from
merchandise sold to TAIT amounted to B2,864,202Ri,974,766 in 2012 and 2011,
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respectively. Associated cost of goods sold anmexut B2,574,025 and B9,986,582 in
2012 and 2011, respectively.

. Commission Income

The Group has entered into agreements with a phbare supplier and various third
parties. Under the arrangements, the Group eamsgssion on the sale of phone cards
and collection of bills payments based on a cepancentage of net sales and collections
for the month and a fixed monthly rate. Commissimome amounted to R67,396,391,
B37,236,539 and B29,271,506 in 2012, 2011 and,26%pectively.

. 2007 Exclusivity Agreement

The Group has entered into an exclusivity agreematht a third party supplier in the

Philippines on October 1, 2007. Upon the effetgivof the agreement, all existing

branches of 7-Eleven shall exclusively carry thiedtiparty supplier’s products and 7-
Eleven should not carry any other similar or patgiroducts. The agreement is for a
period of three years starting October 1, 2007 sdvadl continue in force and effect until

December 31, 2010. In June 2008, the Companyvuwate total consideration of B

11,741,071 in relation to the agreement, to be timsat over three years.

On October 15, 2010, the said agreement was exdefate another 3 years. The
Company received B29,000,000 as a result of ttension.

Income from exclusivity agreement included as paftMarketing support funds” under
“Marketing income” in profit or loss amounted td,i®?29,000,000 and B3,913,690 in
2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively (see Note 20).

2010 Exclusivity Contract

The Group has also entered into a 3-year exclysoontract with a Third Party soda
manufacturer in the Philippines effective April 20to0 March 2013. The contract
indicates that the Third Party soda manufacturdl e¥clusively supply all slurpee
products of 7-Eleven. The Group received a one-taigaing bonus amounting to B
4,464,286 upon the effectivity of the exclusivitypply contract amortized over three
years. Income from exclusivity contract includedpart of “Marketing support funds”
under “Marketing income” in profit or loss amountedP1,488,095, B1,488,095, and B
1,116,071 in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelyfeided revenue as of December 31,
2012 and 2011 amounted to B372,024 and RP1,860d9®=ctively (see Note 16).

. 2010 Signing Bonus

In 2010, the Group collected a signing bonus amogrtb B2,232,143 from one of the
Group’s food suppliers for awarding half of the GQmany's existing Hotdog Stock
Keeping Units (SKUs) to the food supplier for thexhfive years starting January 1,
2010. Income from exclusivity contract includedpast of “Marketing support funds”
under “Marketing income” in profit or loss amountemiP446,429 in 2012, 2011 and
2010 (see Note 20). Deferred revenue as of Decegihe2012 and 2011 amounted to B
892,857 and R1,339,286, respectively (see Note 16)

. MOA with Chevron Philippines, Inc.

The Group has entered into MOA with Chevron Phileg, Inc. (CPI) on August 6,
2009, wherein CPI has granted the Group as auttbrmo-locator for a full term of
three-years to establish, operate and/or franciiss@-Eleven stores in CPI service
stations. Both parties have identified 22 CPI menstations, wherein the Group will
give the Retailers of these service stations aeL&ffer to Franchise (LOF) 7-Eleven
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stores. Upon acceptance of the Retailers of th€&,Lie Retailers will sign a Store
Franchise Agreement (SFA) with the Group. If LMDt accepted by one of the 22
original service stations identified, that serv@tion will be replaced with another
mutually acceptable service station site.

Upon signing of the MOA, CPI executed a Caltex Rétgreement with each of the 22
service station Retailers, which shall have atgrn of three years and which will be co-
terminus with the SFA.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company hasdy opened 37 and 25
franchised serviced stations, respectively.

33.Segment Reporting

The Group considers the store operations as g lmrdiness segment based on its primary
business activity. Franchising, renting of promsrtand commissioning on bills payment
services are considered an integral part of thee sbperations. The Group’s identified
operating segments below are consistent with tgeneats reported to the BOD, which is
the Chief Operating Decision Maker of the Group.

The products and services from which the store aijmers derive its revenues from are as
follows:

* Merchandise sales

e Franchise revenue

* Marketing income

* Rental income

e Commission income
* Interest income

The aforementioned revenues are all revenues fxbenrel customers.

The segment’s relevant financial information idakws:

2012 2011 2010
Revenue
Revenue from merchandise sales PB11,713,760,468 B9,435,604,073 B7,612,243,056
Franchise revenue 683,572,827 534,025,712 442,822,680
Marketing income 375,768,257 239,888,660 147,469,060
Commission income 67,396,391 37,236,539 29,271,506
Rent income 45,751,718 44,143,593 37,361,844
Interest income 5,377,093 5,864,713 5,355,769
Other income 123,025,663 99,300,756 72,802,078
13,014,652,417 10,396,064,046 8,347,325,993
Expenses
Cost of merchandise sales 8,523,151,274  6,844,562,019 5,388,497,887
General and administrative expenses:
Depreciation and amortization 529,277,400 380,954,262 294,893,482
Others 3,256,384,195 2,631,223,716 2,236,496,622
Interest expense 16,596,830 16,024,647 16,398,169
Other expenses 14,595,186 4,806,251 5,403,913

12,340,004,885 9,877,570,895 7,941,690,073
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Income Before Income Tax 674,647,532 518,493,151 405,635,920

Provision for Income Tax 210,022,001 162,150,162 128,755,672
Segment Profit P464,625,531 P356,342,989 P276,880,248
Segment Assets B4,564,348,482 P3,734,298,981 P3,093,173,359
Segment Liabilities P2,637,758,138 P2,237,669,871 P1,922,744,371

Capital Expenditure for the Year P858,674,993 B717,091,736 B671,923,830

34.Provisions andContingencies

The Group is a party to various litigations involgj among others, employees suing for
illegal dismissal, back wages and damage clairsspls claiming for lease payments for the
unexpired portion of the lease agreements in caSpse-termination of lease agreements,
claims arising from store operations and as coemdents with manufacturers on
complaints with the Bureau of Food and Drugs, gmeperformance and other civil claims.
All such cases are in the normal course of busiaadsare not deemed to be considered as
material legal proceedings. Further, these casesithher pending in courts or under protest,
the outcome of which are not presently determinati#danagement and its legal counsel
believe that the liability, if any, that may resédbm the outcome of these litigations and
claims will not materially affect their financiabpition or financial performance.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company f@ssmpns amounting to B7,066,290
pertaining to probable loss on litigations.

35. Note to Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

The principal non-cash transaction of the Groupeurfthancing activities pertains to the
issuance of stock dividends (see Note 17).
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF RETAINED EARNINGS

AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
DECEMBER 31, 2012

The reconciliation of retained earnings availabledividend declaration as of December 31, 2012

follows:

Retained earnings as of December 31, 2011
Less: Deferred income tax asset
Non-actual/unrealized income, net of tax

B798,983,996
(37,642,307)

Accretion of interest incorfie (5,784,423)
Treasury shares (2,923,246)
Unrealized foreign exchange gain (684)

Retained earnings as adjusted, December 31, 2011 752,633,336
Net income during the year closed to retained egmi 466,897,283
Less: Non-actual unrealized income, net of tax
Accretion of interest income (1,205,938)
Movement in deferred income tax asset (1,139,998)
Net income actually earned during the year 464,551,347

Less:  Dividend declarations during the year

(86,660,742)

Retained earnings as adjusted, December 31, 2012

P1,130,523,941

*Based on accretion of income per PAS 39 from 2005-2011.
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ALL THE EFFECTIVE

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Not Not
AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted :
Effective as of December 31, 2012 Adopted | Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements N J
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and quiakt
characteristics
PFRSs Practice Statement Management Commentary v
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial N
(Revised) |Reporting Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of gn
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Vv Vv
Entity or Associate
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions N N
for First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v v
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflatior] N N
and Removal of Fixed Date for Firstre Adopterg
Amendments to PFRS 1: Government Loans v v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v v
Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and N N
Cancellations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled N N
Share-based Payment Transactions
PFRS 3 Business Combinations
(Revised)
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financia N N
Guarantee Contracts
PFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and N N
Discontinued Operations
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral N N
Resources
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures v
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS
Effective as of December 31, 2012

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicable

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective
Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosure
about Financial Instruments

1"

v

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfe
Financial Assets

rs of\/

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsettil
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities*

9

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures*

PFRS 8

Operating Segments

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments*

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective
Date of PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures*

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements*

PFRS 11

Joint Arrangements*

PFRS 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities*

PFRS 13

Fair Value Measurement*

LIS s < L | <

Philippine Accounting Standards

PAS 1
(Revised)

Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendment to PAS 1: Capital Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising Q
Liguidation

=
<<

Amendments to RS 1: Presentation of ltems
Other Comprehensive Income*

PAS 2

Inventories

PAS 7

Statement of Cash Flows

PAS 8

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors

PAS 10

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

PAS 11

Construction Contracts

PAS 12

Income Taxes

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recove

S R S S N N

'y

of Underlying Assets
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Not Not
AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted .
Effective as of December 31, 2012 Aelpicsl | AERIEEIE
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
PAS 17 Leases v
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 Employee Benefits Vv
Amendments to PAS 19: Actuarial Gains and N
Losses, Group Plans and Disclosures
PAS 19 Employee Benefits* N
(Revised)
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Grants and Disclogure N N
of Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates /
Amendment: Net Investment in a Foreign N N
Operation
PAS 23 Borrowing Costs N
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures N
(Revised)
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit N N
Plans
PAS 27 Separate Financial Statements* N
(Amended)
PAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures* N
(Amended)
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary N N
Economies
PAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures Vv Vv
PAS 32 Financial Instruments: Disclosure and Presentation +/
Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arisingan v Vv
Liguidation
Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights| N N
Issues
Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial N
Assets and Financial Liabilities*
PAS 33 Earnings per Share Vv
PAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting v
PAS 36 Impairment of Assets Vv
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent N

Assets
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PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

Not Not
AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted .
Effective as of December 31, 2012 Al | ARl
PAS 38 Intangible Assets v
PAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and N
Measurement
Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial v
Liabilities
Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge N J
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions
Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option Vv v
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4: Financia N N
Guarantee Contracts
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: N
Reclassification of Financial Assets
Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7:
Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective v
Date and Transition
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC9 N N
and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items Vv v
PAS 40 Investment Property v
PAS 41 Agriculture v Vv
Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, N v
Restoration and Similar Liabilities
IFRIC 2 Members’ Share in Co-operative Entities and N N
Similar Instruments
IFRIC 4 Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a N
Lease
IFRIC 5 Rights to Interests arising from Decommissioning,
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation v v
Funds
IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specifi
Market - Waste Electrical and Electronic Vv Vv
Equipment
IFRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Vv Vv
Economies
IFRIC 8 Scope of PFRS 2 Vv Vv
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives Vv v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation Vv v

72




PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Not Not
AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted Adopted | Aoplicable
Effective as of December 31, 2012 P PP
IFRIC - 9 and PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment Vv
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions Vv Vv
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements Vv Vv
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v Vv
IFRIC 14 The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum J v
Funding Requirements and their Interaction
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations
IFRIC- 14, Prepayments of a Minimum Funding v Vv
Requirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation ~ / Vv
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners Vv Vv
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers Vv Vv
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity J v
Instruments
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Sarfac J
Mine*
SIC-7 Introduction of the Euro Vv Vv
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to J J
Operating Activities
SIC-12 Consolidation - Special Purpose Entities Vv Vv
Amendment to SIC - 12: Scope of SIC 12 Vv Vv
SIC-13 Jointly Controlled Entities - Non-Monetary J v
Contributions by Venturers
SIC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives Vv
SIC-21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non- J J
Depreciable Assets
SIC-25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an J J
Entity or its Shareholders
SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving J
the Legal Form of a Lease
SIC-29 Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures. Vv Vv
SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising J v
Services
SIC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs Vv Vv

*These standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards will become effective subsequent to December 31, 2012.
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
MAP OF THE RELATIONSHIP OF THE COMPANIES WITHIN
THE GROUP

DECEMBER 31, 2012

Ultimate Parent Company

President Chain Store Corporation (100.00%)

Intermediate Parent Company

President Chain (BVI) Holdings, Limited (100.00%)

Immediate Parent Company

PCS (Labuan) Holdings, Limited (51.56%)

Reporting Company
Philippine Seven Corporation (100%)

Subsidiary Subsidiary
Convenience Distribution, Inc. Store Sites Holding, Inc.
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Ratios Formula In Php 2012 2011 % Change
Current Ratio Cm%mi R 075 067 11.94%
oomio e cmmm @ aw s
Asset-to-equity ratio Total S%fﬁ equity Lot oo02s 237 250 -5.20%
Intu:;?isot rate coverage Eaminﬁ'nst‘ebrgfs(t)rg;géirg;t & tax 674,6415535; 81:;3(,)596,830 41,65 33.36 24.86%
Net income margin %‘5 e 357%  3.43% 4.08%
Return on equity Net income 464,625,531 24.12% 23.81% 1.59%

Ave. Total stockholders’ equity

(1,926,590,344+1,496,629,110)/2
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX 68-E
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Schedule A. Financial Assets

Number of shares Valued based on
or principal Amount shown market quotations Income
Name of issuing entity and amount of bonds in the balance at end of reporting received and
association of each issue and notes sheet period accrued
Loans and Receivables
Cash and cash equivalents N/A B415,285,569 N/A 2,589,071
Short-term investment N/A 10,632,115 N/A 268,625
Receivables N/A 374,597,843 N/A 128,251
Deposits N/A 65,525,019 N/A 2,099,941
Other noncurrent assets N/A 3,009,631 N/A -
P869,050,177 P5,085,888

Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Gffers, Employees, Related Parties and
Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties)

Name and Balance of
Designation of Beginning of Amounts Amounts Non Balance at
debtor Period Additions collected  Written off Current Current end of period

BARCENAS,
ANGELITO
SIGUENZA P535,135.65 P44,485.13 P67,546.80 B- PB512,073.98 — B512,073.98

APOLINARIO,
VIOLETA
BUMALAY 483,562.65 46,534.97 134,929.34 — 395,168.28 — 395,168.28

BATACLAN,
EDUARDO
PEREZ 6,752.32 505,714.44 133,168.00 — 379,298.76 - 379,298.76

BUENO,
OLIVIA
ENRIQUEZ - 308,820.11 18,682.53 - 290,137.58 - 290,137.58

AQUINO,
CYRUS JUDE
ENRIQUEZ — 313,048.03 37,365.06 —  275,682.97 - 275,682.97

RODRIGUEZ,
ROBER
CARMELO B. - 317,152.07  49,820.08 - 267,331.99 - 267,331.99

FERNANDEZ,
LIWAYWAY
TENGCO 352,298.17 40,720.37 138,105.76 — 254,912.78 - 254,912.78

SALAZAR,
ELENA
TUAZON — 328,375.88  74,014.93 — 254,360.95 —  254,360.95
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Name and
Designation of
debtor

Balance of
Beginning
of Period

Additions

Amounts
Written off

Amounts
collected

Current

Balance at
end of period

TRINIDAD,
MAGDALENA
PALULAN

BELTRAN,
SEVERINO 11l

SORIANO,
MA. JULIA
SALUD
AMPER

DE GUZMAN,
MARIA
CELINA DE
GUZMAN

BORRAL,
ULYSSES DE
VERA

ABAD, GIL
MEDINA

NUCUM,
EMMA
BAYLON

CAGASAN,
ARMI
ANDRADE

MERINO,
JAIME
UNSON

MEDINA,
FRANCIS
SANTOS

ANG, JOSE
CHUA JR.

AMANCIO,
ELLEN
ZUELA

PADLAN,
PRUDENCIO
AQUINO JR.

TY,
JENNYLYN
DAVID

CRUZADO,
ALEXANDER
MENDOZA

PEREZ, LEE
GONZALO
IGNACIO

LATADE,
HILARIO
REYES

P294,927.48

238,618.54

283,351.71

279,580.91

273,860.01

254,144.50

247,899.46

211,884.66

181,167.17

277,245.13

195,913.58

175,000.00

R47,875.14

251,835.45

28,849.77

23,103.45

23,103.45

30,502.70

20,379.00

36,736.26

33,328.84

B97,374.04 P—

15,235.14 -

39,741.28 -

80,260.06 -

79,025.39 -

91,025.07 -

77,895.84 -

94,464.37 -

65,334.60 -

191,800.88 199,974.58 -

31,106.21 138,105.76

182,611.36

182,611.36

185,005.38

191,550.90

29,025.21

18,743.14

18,163.58 -

19,748.41 -

25,429.01 -

37,449.87 -

76,489.32 -

47,763.44 -

P245,428.58

236,600.31

227,727.03

226,195.10

223,658.97

213,337.64

196,627.66

190,171.35

179,878.90

172,993.47

170,245.58

164,447.78

162,862.95

159,576.37

154,101.03

148,449.47

145,979.71

B245,428.58

236,600.31

227,727.03

226,195.10

223,658.97

213,337.64

196,627.66

190,171.35

179,878.90

172,993.47

170,245.58

164,447.78

162,862.95

159,576.37

154,101.03

148,449.47

145,979.71
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Name and

Designation of

debtor

Balance of
Beginning of
Period

Additions

Amounts
collected

Current Current

Balance at

end of period

TABLANTE,
DENNIS
AUSTRIA

SANTOS,
RICARDO
DIAZ

ARAPE,
PRIMO
OBISCORO

SALAMAT,
ARTHUR
ASUNCION

MANUEL,
RICHARD
SANCHEZ

MONTILLAN
O, MARISSA
ESTACIO

AGBUNAG,
JENNIFER
ENDERIO

ESPIRITU,
NENITA
VELASCO

CASILDO,
MARISSA
MONGCAL
PACHECO,
RUBIE DE
GUZMAN

CASTILLONE
S, JANICE
JULIO

GUERRA,
MA. ELISA
AMBA

MABAQUIAO
, VIRGILIO
BATA

ALDA, MARY
GRACE
TRINIDAD

BRAVO,
ANDREW
DORIA

MORAGA,
CONRADO
RODRIGUEZ

MASANGKA
Y, MARK
ERWIN DELA
PENA

P174,656.25

171,510.97

172,679.79

171,367.29

171,510.97

171,510.97

171,510.97

171,510.97

182,870.01

175,364.98

198,243.68

169,550.92

164,351.68

167,729.65

157,148.55

161,034.86

B26,278.16 B56,181.05

16,208.26

14,354.64

14,572.29

14,391.91

19,172.47

14,135.35

43,546.79

34,260.69

138,627.10

15,875.66

17,571.16

10,355.77

12,807.16

13,477.00

20,774.80

20,774.77

43,849.19

43,592.52

43,592.52

43,849.20

48,629.76

43,592.64

73,004.08

76,489.32

37,182.39

51,659.50

76,489.32

43,592.64

44,059.71

48,541.46

52,586.52

50,727.37

B—- P144,753.36

143,870.04

143,441.91

142,347.06

142,053.68

142,053.68

142,053.68

142,053.68

140,641.38

101,444.71

139,581.14

139,325.52

136,314.05

133,099.14

132,665.19

125,336.83

131,082.26

B—- PR144,753.36

143,870.04

143,441.91

142,347.06

142,053.68

142,053.68

142,053.68

142,053.68

140,641.38

101,444.71

139,581.14

139,325.52

136,314.05

133,099.14

132,665.19

125,336.83

131,082.26
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Name and
Designation
of debtor

Balance of
Beginning of
Period

Additions

Amounts
collected

Amounts
Written off

Current

Non

Current

Balance at end

of period

SERRANO,
MARK
RAYMOND
GAMBOA

CASUPANA
N,
REYNALDO
VALERIO JR.

GAYANILO,
FRANCISCO
RODEROS
JR.

MARTINEZ,
ACHILLES
ARCE

HARN,
CHARLENE
PATIO

SISON,
RONALD
ONCHANGC
@)

SEGUN,
ROMMEL
JAMBO
MENDOZA

NAZARRO,
JEFF GLENN
LAMADRID

P161,681.23

153,443.74

153,601.42

155,926.87

153,571.39

152,303.28

152,383.76

P13,441.41

15,343.32

14,905.82

47,573.29

12,580.15

40,458.37

12,580.15

130,436.68

P50,515.53

44,618.77

44,618.79

79,612.50

42,759.73

71,828.96

44,618.82

15,568.80

B— B124,607.11

- 124,168.29

- 123,888.45

- 123,887.66

- 123,391.81

- 120,932.69

- 120,345.09

- 114,867.88

B—

B124,607.11

124,168.29

123,888.45

123,887.66

92383

982069

120,345.09

114,867.88

OTHER
EMPLOYEE
CAR LOANS

1,624,592.86

764,406.33

1,851,760.65

- 537238.52

537238.52

OTHER
RECEIVABLES
FROM
EMPLOYEE

5,655,724.82

1,055,166.55

3,400,376.52

3,310,514.85

3,310,514.85

TOTAL

BP15,407,123.82

B5,967,095.55

P8,381,010.52

B— P12,993,208.85

B—

P12,993,208.85

Schedule C. Amounts Receivable from Related Par8ewvhich are eliminated during the
consolidation of financial statements

Name and Designation BaIa_nC(_e of . Amounts Am(_)unts Non Balance at
Beginning  Additions Written Current end of
of Debtor . collected Current .
of Period off period
CONVENIENCE
DISTRIBUTION,INC.- PB1,967,947 B29,638,465 B30,687,074 p— P919,338 p— B919,338
Subsidiary
STORE SITES
HOLDINGS,INC.- 156,826 683,787 621,615 - 218,848 - 218,848
Subsidiary
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Schedule D. Intangible Assets - Other Assets

Chargedto  Charged to Other Charges

Description Beginning  Additions at cost and other additions Ending
balance cost . balance
expenses accounts (deductions)
Software &
Program Cost P2,484,126 P190,000 P1,490,475 B— B~ B1,183,651
Goodwill 65,567,524 - - - — 65,567,524

Schedule E. Long Term Debt

Amount shown under

Title of Issue and type Amount caption "Current portion of Amount shown under caption
- P authorized by b WP " Long Term Debt" in related
of obligation : long-term debt" in related ’
indenture balance sheet
balance sheet
NONE — — —

Schedule F. Indebtedness to Related Parties (Longeim Loans from Related Companies)

Balance of beginning of period Balance of endexiqu

NONE — —

Schedule G. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issise

Name of issuing entity of Title of issue of Total amount Amount owned by

securities guaranteed by  each class of . Nature of
. e guaranteed and person for which
the company for which securities : o Guarantee
. L outstanding statement is filed
this statement is filed guaranteed
NONE - - - -
Schedule H. Capital Stock
Number of Number of
Number of shares issued shares reserved Number of  Directors,
Title of and outstanding for options, shares held officers
Shares Others
Issue . as shown under  warrants, by related and
authorized . )
related balance conversionand  parties employees
sheet caption other rights
g.l(_)glCMKON 600,000,000 398,639,411 — 203,934,248 28,446,038,2%56,125
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